
 

Page 1 of 4 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Environment and Infrastructure 
Select Committee  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Thursday, 10 May 
2018 at 10.30 am 

Ashcombe Suite, 
County Hall, Kingston 
upon Thames, Surrey, 
KT1 2DN 
 

Richard Plummer 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 2813 2782 
 
richard.plummer@surreycc.gov.uk 

Joanna Killian 

 
We’re on Twitter: 
@SCCdemocracy 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
richard.plummer@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 
This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Richard Plummer on 
020 2813 2782. 

 

 
Elected Members 

Mr Bob Gardner (Chairman), Mr Wyatt Ramsdale (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Mary Angell, Mr Bill 
Chapman, Mr Stephen Cooksey, Mr Paul Deach, Mr Jonathan Essex, Mr Matt Furniss, Mr Eber 

A Kington, Mrs Bernie Muir, Mr John O'Reilly, Mr Stephen Spence, Mrs Lesley Steeds, Mr 
Richard Walsh and Mr Richard Wilson 

 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

The Committee is responsible for the following areas: 
Planning Waste and Recycling 
Transport Service Infrastructure Flood Prevention and Infrastructure 
Aviation Public Transport – Bus and Rail 
Highways Infrastructure Highways Maintenance 
Local Transport Plans and Strategies Road Safety 
Street Lighting Parking  Regulation and Enforcement 
Rights of Way Active Travel including Cycling and Walking 

Infrastructure, Promotion and Cycle Training 
Concessionary Travel Community Transport 
Economic Development and the Rural Economy  Economic Prosperity, including Local Enterprise 

Partnerships  
Housing  Countryside 
Minerals Air Quality 
Climate Change Gypsy and Traveller Sites 
Biodiversity and Wildlife Tourism 
Europe  Broadband 



 
Page 2 of 4 

AGENDA 
 

1/18  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
 

 

2/18  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 28 FEBRUARY 2018 
 
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a true and accurate 
record of proceedings. 
 

(Pages 7 
- 16) 

3/18  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter: 
 

I. Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or 
 

II. Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any 
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 
 
NOTES: 

 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item 
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of 
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or 
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a 
spouse or civil partner) 
 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the 
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be 
reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

4/18  QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
To receive any questions or petitions. 
 
Notes: 
 

1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 
before the meeting (3 May 2018). 

 
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting 

(3 May 2018) 
 

3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 
petitions have been received. 

 

 

5/18  RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
There have been no responses from Cabinet. 
 

 

6/18  RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 

(Pages 
17 - 26) 



 
Page 3 of 4 

 
The Board is asked to review and approve the Forward Work Programme 
and Recommendations Tracker and provide comment as required. 
 

7/18  UPDATES FROM MEMBER REFERENCE GROUPS AND TASK 
GROUPS 
 
Purpose of the report: To receive a verbal update from Chairmen of the 

Committee Member Reference Groups and Task Groups. 

 

(Pages 
27 - 28) 

8/18  TACKLING SINGLE USE PLASTICS 
 
Purpose of the report: To agree how the Select Committee should be 
engaged in developing Surreys Single Use Plastic Policy and Strategy. 
 

(Pages 
29 - 36) 

9/18  REVIEW OF THE SURREY WASTE PLAN: CONSULTATION ON 
DRAFT PLAN 
 
Purpose of the report:  Policy Development and Review  
 
Surrey County Council is the Waste Planning Authority and so is 
responsible for setting policy concerning the development of suitable 
waste management facilities in Surrey. The policy informs decision making 
for related planning applications. The current Surrey Waste Plan includes 
such policies and was adopted in 2008 and is now being reviewed. The 
new Plan, known as the ‘Surrey Waste Local Plan’ is required to go 
through several stages of public consultation.  
 
A Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan was published for public consultation 
between November 2017 and February 2018 and this report sets out the 
results of this consultation. 322 comments were received and these are 
being taken into account in the preparation of the text of a ‘Submission’ 
Plan. Further technical assessments are also being undertaken to verify 
the suitability of specific sites proposed in the Plan for waste management. 
 
Cabinet will be asked to agree the text at its meeting in September. If 
agreed, the Submission Plan would then be published for six weeks to 
allow representations on its soundness and legality. 
 
The Committee is asked to note and comment on the nature of the 
response to the Draft Plan and the work being undertaken to complete the 
Submission Plan. 
 

(Pages 
37 - 192) 

10/18  CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND THE ROLE OF VOLUNTEER AND 
PARISH COUNCIL INPUT IN MAINTAINING PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY 
 
Purpose of the report: To outline some of the significant issues facing 
the County Council in respect of public rights of way at the present time 
including capital investment and the role of volunteers and parish councils 
in helping to maintain the network. 
 

(Pages 
193 - 
198) 

11/18  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
The next public meeting of the committee will be held 6 September 2018 
at County Hall. 
 

 



 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 

Joanna Killian 
Chief Executive 

Published: Tuesday 1 May 2018 
 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the 
Chairman’s consent.  Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start 
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can 
be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 
   

FIELD_TITLE 



Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES of the meeting of the ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 29 November 2017 at Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey, KT1 2DN. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on 
Wednesday, 28 February 2018. 
 
Elected Members: 
 
 * Mr Bob Gardner (Chairman) 

* Mr Wyatt Ramsdale (Vice-Chairman) 
  Mrs Mary Angell 
* Mr Bill Chapman 
* Mr Stephen Cooksey 
* Mr Paul Deach 
* Mr Jonathan Essex 
* Mr Matt Furniss 
* Mr Eber A Kington 
* Mrs Bernie Muir 
* Mr John O'Reilly 
* Mr Stephen Spence 
* Mrs Lesley Steeds 
* Mr Richard Walsh 
  Mr Richard Wilson 
 

In attendance 
Mike Goodman, Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 
Colin Kemp, Cabinet Member for Highways 
  

 
 

31 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 
 
Apologies were received from Mary Angell and Richard Wilson. There were 
no substitutions. 
 

32 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 5 OCTOBER 2017 AND 11 
OCTOBER 2017  [Item 2] 
 

1. A Member noted that item 2 of the minutes from 5 October 2017 
should be amended to say £4 million, instead of £4,000. 

 
2. The Committee agreed these minutes as an accurate record of the 

meeting. 
 

33 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
Under item 7, Paul Deach asked that it be noted that the company he worked 
for had provided social media content for the Surrey Wildlife Trust. 
 
Stephen Spence and Bernie Muir asked that it be noted that they are 
members of the Rambler’s Association. 
 

34 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  [Item 4] 
 

Page 5

Item 2/18



Page 2 of 4 

1. The Committee had received two Member questions from Eber 
Kington. The response to these was tabled at the meeting and 
attached as an annex to these minutes. The Cabinet Member was 
asked to clarify whether there had been any recent change in his 
position in respect to LED light installation. In response, he 
commented that the business case was still under consideration, and 
that he wanted assurance that it represented best value for the 
Council. It was also commented that the option for overnight street 
lighting for New Year’s Eve required some alteration of the program 
that operated the lights, the Cabinet Member was exploring the 
possibilities with the provider and hoped to make an announcement in 
due course.  

 
35 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE 

SELECT COMMITTEE  [Item 5] 
 
The Committee noted the responses from Cabinet which were tabled on the 
day, and included as an annex to the minutes. One Member commented that 
there had not be sufficient consideration given to how the financial 
arrangements would incentivise recycling. The Cabinet Member commented 
that the new arrangement would see district and boroughs sharing in the 
benefits if recycling rates increased. It was also highlighted that recycling 
rates had stalled around 40% when recycling credits were in place and it was 
intended that the new arrangement would improve this. 
 

36 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
[Item 6] 
 

1. The Chairman informed the Committee that he and the Vice-Chairman 
had met with Cabinet Members to discuss the forward plan for 2018. 
Several additions had been included. The Cabinet Member for 
Environment and Transport commented that he would welcome a 
Member Reference Group to support the development of new 
guidance on speed restrictions.  
 

2. The Committee also proposed to add some additional items.  
 

Resolved: 
 

 That the Forward Plan include additional items on Project Horizon; 
income generation; and aviation 

 
37 PAY AND CONSERVE - CAR PARK CHARGING ON THE COUNTRYSIDE 

ESTATE  [Item 7] 
 
Declarations of interest: 
 
None. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
Samantha Cunningham, Senior Change Consultant, E&I Directorate 
Programme Group 
Lisa Creaye-Griffin, Countryside Group Manager 
Lesley Harding, Head of Place Development 

Page 6



Page 3 of 4 

 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Additional financial information and a presentation were circulated to 
the Committee, these are included as an annex to these minutes. The 
Committee reviewed the options, with the majority of Members 
expressing support for option five in the papers. It was noted that there 
was some reluctance in introducing charges, but it was recognised 
that the Council’s financial position meant sustainable solutions were 
required. 
 

2. Members commented that they would like to take a broader 
consideration of the different business plans under consideration in 
relation to the Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) and its long term plans to 
generate income. It was commented that the Committee and the 
Countryside Management Member Reference Group would be invited 
to review different proposals as they came forward. The Committee 
queried whether disposal of the car parks had been considered, and it 
was confirmed that this had been reviewed and considered not in the 
best interest of the SWT and its future sustainability. 
 

3. Members highlighted that there were options to bring in additional 
revenue through the provision of kiosks, and other amenities. Officers 
commented that there were kiosks on some of the sites and options 
were being considered for future development. It was also noted that 
kiosk staff would be able to assist people using the car park if needed.  
 

4. Member suggested that additional consideration should be given to 
enabling online payments, and looking to best practice from the 
congestion charges. It was noted that payment on exit was not a 
feasible solution as the cost of technology to enforce this would 
exceed the benefits. 
 

5. The Committee discussed the need to make payment options easy to 
use, and that blue badge holders should not be charged for parking. 
Exemption for blue badge holders was confirmed by the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Transport. The Committee was informed 
that barriers would not be removed to allow horseboxes to enter, as 
this also increased the risk of traveller incursion.  It was suggested that 
payment options could be phased, with some sites only offering phone 
payment. The Cabinet Member was supportive of a phased approach. 
 

6. The Committee discussed enforcement, and the risk of displacement. 
It was acknowledged that there needed to be a flexible solution, and 
one that did not seek to create issues for residents and local 
businesses. The Cabinet Member highlighted that there was work 
being undertaken to look at the specific local options, and that a 
blanket approach using double yellow lines were not considered to be 
a popular solution. The Cabinet Member highlighted that there was a 
lump sum in the budget for the changes for displacement solutions, 
though it was intended that not all of this would be required. 
 

7. The Committee queried the level of charges, following some 
correspondence that had been received from the Surrey Local Access 
Forum. It was confirmed that a review of parking charges at different 

Page 7



Page 4 of 4 

sites across Surrey had informed the proposed tariffs, and that they 
were in line with other car parks across the county. 
 

8. The Committee discussed enforcement, and it was confirmed that cost 
for contracting companies to carry this out would be met through 
collected fines, meaning a zero cost to the Council.   
 

9. Members commented that there should be improved facilities to 
encourage cycling, and to identify where public transport could support 
a reduction in parking displacement. The Cabinet Member also 
confirmed that the changes would take account of the improvements 
to Junction 10 of the M25 as far as was feasible. 
 

10. The Committee reviewed the proposed recommendations, and a vote 
was taken. Nine Members voted for the proposed recommendations, 
three Members voted against, and one abstained. 
 

Recommendations: 
 
That the Cabinet agree option 5 with further consideration given to 

 Options for people to pay online, or in advance or after parking 24 
hours 

 How machines and phone payment are options made accessible and 
easy to use 

 How enforcement is implemented with minimum of disruption 

 A review of the scheme, displacement and lessons learnt within six 
months 

 What additional resources are provided to promote cycling and cycle 
parking 

 
38 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  [Item 8] 

 
It was noted that the date of the next meeting was 28 February 2018 at 
10.30am in County Hall. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 11.55 am 
______________________________________________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 8



Member questions to Environment and Infrastructure Select Committee - 29 
November 2017 
 

1. In the light of the recent statement by the Cabinet Member for Highways in 
which he refers to “considering using LED lights because with technology 
advances and falling prices the savings they offer could outweigh the cost 
of installing them”, would he clarify (a) the timescale for this work and (b) 
the intended outcome for the streetlight switch-off policy should the LED 
lighting savings outweigh the cost of installing them. 
 

2. In the absence of any immediate change of policy will SCC agree to keep 
the streetlights on all night across Surrey on New Year’s Eve into New 
Year’s Day to enable residents to enjoy their New Year’s celebrations and 
ensure that people feel safe when travelling home late at night or early 
morning? 

 
Submitted by Eber Kington 

 
1. When the PFI contract was let and awarded in 2009, LED technology in 

street lighting was in its infancy and not suitable for SCC although the 
Council was able to take advantage of a Central Management System (the 
largest installation by far at the outset in 2010) to enable dynamic control 
including the ability to dim lights and change profiles with minimal costs.  
  
LED lighting has made significant advances across all sectors including 
domestic, office, automotive lighting and of course Street Lighting in the 
intervening years.  With a need to reduce our energy consumption and 
CO2 emissions we are investigating options to upgrade the street lighting 
to this technology.   
 
These investigations are at an early stage and will require more detailed 
analysis on the type of lighting and options for funding the replacement.  
An outline report was recently submitted to the county council Investment 
Panel for consideration.  Subject to Panel and Cabinet approval, a 
detailed programme will be developed and shared with Members in due 
course. 
 
Any changes to the part night lighting policy will be considered if the LED 
project moves forward. 

 
2. This is something that the Council is already considering, we are working 

with our technology suppliers to see whether it is practicable. 
 
Colin Kemp, Cabinet Member for Highways 

Page 1

Minute Item 34

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 4 

CABINET RESPONSE TO ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
Proposals to Change Financial Arrangements for Waste Management in 2018/19 [Item 
7] 
(Considered by the Environment and Infrastructure Select Committee on 5 October 
2017) 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Environment and Infrastructure Select Committee recommended: 
 

a) That the Cabinet ensures clarity in regard to strategy aims, including achieving 
recycling targets, and variable payments and, in particular, the thresholds included 
within those aims, how progress against them is measured and agreed and the level 
of payment and loss of payments associated with delivery and non-delivery. 
 

b) That the Cabinet makes a clear statement in regard to its position on a single co-
owned approach. 
 

c) That the Committee receives an update once the financial arrangements are in place. 
 
 

RESPONSE: 

Clarity with regard to strategy aims and financial mechanisms: 

The joint waste strategy aims are to reduce household waste, increase recycling, reduce 

waste sent to landfill, and to maintain the cost of waste management. The indicators and 

targets are summarised below.  

Indicator 2019/20 target 

Total waste and recycling per person Quartile 1 (when compared to other waste 
disposal authorities in England) 

Recycling and recovery rate 70% 

Percentage of municipal waste sent to 
landfill 

0% 

Cost of waste management per household No increase from 2013/14 

 

As explained in the Cabinet report, a number of factors should ensure that performance 

continues to improve: 

 The SWP will continue to be funded at current levels which means that its 
comprehensive and well established improvement programme will remain in place.  

 The agreement between SCC and districts and boroughs with regard to the fixed 
payment will be designed to ensure that authorities do not reduce their level of 
service and continue to work towards the aims of the joint strategy. A reduction in 
service is defined as stopping collecting a key recyclable material or reducing the 
frequency of recycling collections. The Surrey Waste Partnership will be consulted 
when drawing up the agreements and it is proposed that the Partnership would be 
the body that decides if an authority is not acting in the spirit of the agreement.   

 The variable payment mechanism has been designed to incentivise future 
performance improvements. Any cost saving as a result of improved performance (an 

Page 3

Minute Item 35

Page 11



Appendix 4 

increase in recycling or reduction in residual waste) would be shared with partners. 
There is no threshold to trigger payment. Any saving as a result of performance 
improvement would be shared. For example, if one tonne of residual waste was 
removed from the system, this would save the £110 per tonne disposal cost, 
therefore this saving would be shared between SCC, the district or borough in 
question, and the SWP in the agreed proportions (40:40:20).  

 All authorities have to report their waste performance on a national reporting system 
on a quarterly basis and the Surrey Waste Partnership monitors this data regularly. 
SCC will also closely monitor performance and will review arrangements if they do 
not deliver the expected outcomes. 

In order for SCC to meet its savings targets, the proposals for the new financial 

arrangements do represent a reduction in funding for district and borough councils. As 

explained in the Cabinet report, there are significant opportunities for all authorities to make 

savings through working better together to improve performance, increase efficiencies and 

generate income.  

Single co-owned approach: 

In May 2016, Cabinet agreed that combining the function of the Waste Disposal Authority 

with that of Surrey’s Waste Collection Authorities to deliver waste services via a new co-

ownership partnership is essential to deliver public value for Surrey’s residents. In December 

2016, Cabinet asked officers to continue to work through the Surrey Waste Partnership to 

engage with district and borough councils on how all authorities can adopt a single waste 

approach that is mutually beneficial, whilst delivering savings and improved services for 

Surrey residents.  

A co-ownership approach would involve the creation of a single entity that is co-owned by 

SCC and the 11 district and borough councils. It would manage the collection, recycling and 

disposal of all of Surrey’s waste and would mean the integration of all waste services 

currently delivered individually by the 12 authorities. The barriers to unlocking savings would 

be removed and the greater benefits gained by working together would then be shared 

across all authorities. 

The precise nature of the ‘final state’ co-owned entity and the legal form and governance 

arrangements are to be determined, but the creation of a joint waste collection contract, and 

the transfer of some of SCC’s waste functions to Joint Waste Solutions, are important steps 

towards this approach. The next phase is the work that the Surrey Waste Partnership is 

currently undertaking on how to enhance the governance of the partnership and align it with 

the governance of Joint Waste Solutions.  

Providing an update: 

The new financial arrangements will start on 1 April 2018. We are happy to provide an 

update to the Select Committee and would suggest that this is in the autumn of 2018, or 

later, in order to allow time for a reasonable amount of waste performance data to become 

available.  

 

Mr Mike Goodman 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 
(28 November 2017) 
 

Page 4Page 12



Pay and Conserve 
Car Park Charging on 

the Countryside Estatethe Countryside Estate
E&I Select Committee 29th November 

2017

Lisa Creaye-Griffin - Group Manager

P
age 5

M
inute Item

 37

P
age 13



Countryside Vision – Protect 

Enhance and Improve 

Giving access to our countryside to 

support recreation, health and 

wellbeing now and in the future in a wellbeing now and in the future in a 

way that will enhance biodiversity, our 

landscape and is financially self-

sufficient

P
age 6

P
age 14



Countryside Function
Overall the County Councils funding for Countryside has 

reduced from £2.6m in 2014/15 to £1.6m net budget in 

2017/18 due to reduce to £1.0m net budget in 2020/21

• Maintain and improve 3,400 KM of Public Rights of 

Way 

• Manage the Basingstoke Canal in partnership with 

HCC

• Manage the agreement with SWT to manage the 

Countryside Estate, 6,500 acres owned by SCC and 

3,500 acres manage under access agreements.

• Work with the SWT to identify other income streams 

• Host the AONB unit and the Surrey Countryside 

Partnerships

• Support the local economy by promoting the rural 

economy, training and skills development

P
age 7

P
age 15



Pay and Conserve Consultation 

• The Pay and Conserve consultation ran for a six-

week period between September and November 

2017 with a total of 1,257 respondents

• The survey aimed to understand more about • The survey aimed to understand more about 

how people currently use sites and their views 

on how car park charging could be implemented 

on the Estate.

P
age 8

P
age 16



Pay and Conserve Consultation 

• Car park charging was generally not supported but if charging is 

introduced, cash payment was the most popular, with 59% of 

respondents, followed by card payment with 46% prepared to 

pay via this method.  Only 33% of respondents were supportive 

of payment by phone.   

• Some of the key concerns identified included the impact on:

• Volunteers • Volunteers 

• People on a low income 

• Health and wellbeing 

• Clubs using the car parks 

• Displacement parking 

• Respondents were more accepting of the introduction of charging 

if the income was ring-fenced to Countryside 

• How do SCC enforce car park charging

P
age 9

P
age 17



Pay and Conserve Consultation 

• The consultation focused on the most visited sites within the 

Countryside Estate that are owned by SCC and managed by 

SWT under a lease agreement.  The five sites are:

• Chobham Common (6 car parks)

• Whitmoor Common (2 car parks)

• Norbury Park (3 car parks)

• Ockham Common (3 car parks)• Ockham Common (3 car parks)

• Rodborough Common (1 car park)
(Habitat Regulations Assessments are currently being carried out at the sites 

included in the consultation)

• 446,000 cars visit the sites annually. 

• Largest car park accommodates 20,000 vehicles per month 

• Smallest accommodating less than 1,000 a month.

• Based on usage data and assumed parking charges, a number 

of options have been explored which seek to balance value for 

money with public acceptability.  

P
age 10

P
age 18



P
age 11

P
age 19



Options Considered 

In order to develop the business case, five options were 

modelled as follows:

Option 1: Do nothing – no charges are introduced at any of the 

sites

Option 2: Voluntary Donation – a voluntary donation scheme is 

introduced at the sites introduced at the sites 

Option 3: Cash payment – charging is introduced with the option 

to pay by cash, card or phone.  Annual permit also available.  

Option 4: Phone payment – charging is introduced with the 

option to pay by phone only.  Annual permit also available.  

Option 5: Card payment – charging is introduced with the option 

to pay by card or phone.  Annual permit also available. 

P
age 12

P
age 20



Investment and Return 

Option 3: 
cash, card & 

phone

Option 4: 
phone only

Option 5: 
card & phone

£000s £000s £000s

Capital investment required in 

year 12
382 229 362

Total revenue3 6,816 6,830 6,816

Expenditure (including debt 5,633 3,074 3,675Expenditure (including debt 

repayments)
5,633 3,074 3,675

Net revenue 1,183 3,756 3,141

Average per annum net revenue 79 250 209

Project NPV at 5.5% 546 2,057 1,693

Project IRR 19% 80% 48%

Project payback period 6 years 2 years 3 years

P
age 13

P
age 21



Tariffs
In developing the options, comparable sites were considered.  The table 

below sets out details of a number of local sites that charge for parking 

and the current tariffs in place:

Length of 
stay 

Box Hill 
(National 
Trust) 

Frensham 
Little Pond 
(National 
Trust) 

Alice Holt 
Forest 
(Forestry 

Commission) 

The 
Lookout 
(Bracknell 
Forest 
Council) 

Queen 
Elizabeth 
CP (Hants 
CC) 

Up to 1 hr £1.50 £1.50 £1.80 £2 £1.80 

Up to 2 hrs £1.50 £1.50 £3 £2 £1.80 

Up to 3 hrs £4 £4 £4.50 £2 £3.50 

Up to 4 hrs £4 £4 £6 £2 £3.50 

For the Surrey Countryside Estate, we are proposing a tariff as set out 

below, with an annual permit available at a proposed cost of £60 which 

would be valid at all car parks at the five sites:

Up to 1 hour - £1.30

Up to 2 hours - £2.60 

Up to 3 hours - £3.90

Over 3 hours - £5.00

Up to 4 hrs £4 £4 £6 £2 £3.50 

Up to 5 hrs £4 £4 £8 £4 £3.50 

>5 hours £6 £6 £8 £4 £3.50 

 

P
age 14

P
age 22



Options Appraisal 

In order to asses the options to develop a preferred 

option the following criteria were considered: 

• The Contribution to the financial sustainability of the 

countryside – the extent to which the option could countryside – the extent to which the option could 

support the vision to protect and enhance the 

countryside for current and future generations

• Public acceptability – the extent to which the option 

was likely to be acceptable to the public, based on 

the feedback from the consultation and experience 

from elsewhere 

P
age 15

P
age 23



Preferred Option 

• Option 5 (card & phone payment plus annual 

permit) offers a system that balances financial 

return and public acceptability.  

• Whilst in purely financial terms, option 4 would be 

preferable, the consultation made clear that many preferable, the consultation made clear that many 

people would not be happy with a scheme where 

payment by phone or permit were the only options.

• Option 5 offers the additional option to pay using a 

card (around 95% of adults in the UK have a debit 

or credit card), but removes the very significant 

risks and costs associated with a scheme that 

includes cash payments.  

P
age 16

P
age 24



Recommendations 

The Select Committee are asked to: 

• consider the output from the consultation 

• comment on the proposed options • comment on the proposed options 

• provide a view on the preferred option 

P
age 17

P
age 25



Next Steps 

• Cabinet 14th December 17

• Develop:

- Implementation communication plan- Implementation communication plan

- Displacement parking and enforcement 

measures 

• Approval of the SWT Business Plan for 

Income Generation – Early 2018

P
age 18

P
age 26



P
age 19

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



Vehicle Charging on 5 Countryside Estate Sites Over 15 Years

Financial summary Option 3 Option 4 Option 5

"Cash" "Phone" "Card"

£000 £000 £000

Project NPV at 5.5% 546                 2,057              1,693              

Project IRR 19% 80% 48%

Project payback period 6 years 2 years 3 years

Option 3 Option 4 Option 5

"Cash" "Phone" "Card"

£000 £000 £000

Capital investment required in Year 1 382                 229                 362                 

Net revenue position Option 3 Option 4 Option 5

"Cash" "Phone" "Card"

£000 £000 £000

Total Revenue 6,816-              6,830-              6,816-              

Expenditure (including debt repayments) 5,633              3,074              3,675              

Net Revenue 1,183-              3,756-              3,141-              

Average per annum (Net revenue /15) 79-                   250-                 209-                 

Comments:

Option 3: Cash Collection, as per Newlands: Based on the CSS Quote for cash collection.

Option 4: No requirement for cash collection

Option 5: No requirement for cash collection

Replacement cash machines: Build to order - replacement period 10 weeks.

Note:

Numbers to be validated by finance

Vandalism costs (Opt 3): If 5 machines are vandalised per year this will result in a net lost 

income of £31k pa (incl. replacement cost of machines of £24k).

Page 21Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



 

Environment and Infrastructure Select 

Committee 

10 May 2018 

 

Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme 
 

1. The Board is asked to review its Recommendation Tracker and provide 

comment as necessary. 

  

2. The draft Forward Work Plan is attached for the Board’s reference.  

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Report contact:  
Richard Plummer, Democratic Service Officer 
Contact details:  
Tel:     020 8213 2782 

Email: richard.plummer@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

Annexes 

 

None 

Page 31

Item 6/18

mailto:richard.plummer@surreycc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

www.surreycc.gov.uk 

Environment and Infrastructure Select 
Committee 

Forward Work Programme 
2017/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Environment and Infrastructure Select Committee (Chairman: Bob Gardner) 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Scrutiny Topic Description Outcome  Method 

10 May 
2018 

Surrey Waste Local 
Plan 
 

To scrutinise the proposals for 
the refreshed Surrey Waste 
Local Plan following the work 
undertaken with the Member 
Reference Group, and prior to 
Cabinet decision. 

To have assessed the work being 
undertaken in response to the 
consultation of the local plan. 
 

Formal Report 

10 May 
2018 

Rights of Way To consider what capital 
investment may be required, and 
the role of volunteering assets 
and parish councils in 
maintaining public rights of way. 

To have assessed the added 
value of any capital investment 
required and test the roles that 
the Voluntary Sector and Parish 
Councils can have. 

Formal Report 

10 May 
2018 *NEW* 

Tackling Single Use 
Plastics 
 

To consider how the Members 
should engage in developing 
Surrey’s Single Use Plastic 
policy and strategy. 

To have assessed potential 
options for the future 
development of a Single Use 
Plastic policy and strategy and 

Formal Report 

P
age 33



Page 2 of 4 

suggest potential ideas for 
implementation. 

6 
September 
2018 

Basingstoke Canal To review options regarding 
sustainable management of the 
Basingstoke Canal. 

To have made a recommendation 
to Cabinet on the sustainable 
future management solution for 
the Basingstoke Canal and made 
recommendations regarding the 
long term strategy and business 
objectives for the Canal. 

Formal Report 

6 
September 
2018 

Converting Street 
Lighting To LED – 
Follow Up Report 
*NEW* 

To review the impact of 
proposed changes to street 
lighting 

To have assessed how savings 
have been realised through the 
proposals and consider any 
effects of changes. 

Formal Report 

6 
September 
2018 

Surrey Wildlife Trust 
3 Year Business 
Plan *NEW* 
 

To review the proposals for the 
Surrey Wildlife Trust 3 Year 
Business plan. 

To have assured itself that the 
proposals for the 3 Year Business 
Plan were in line with best 
practice and offered the best 
value for money. 

Formal Report 

6 
September 
2018 

Electric Vehicle and 
Low Emission 
Strategy *NEW* 

In development In development Formal Report 

6 December 
2018 

Performance Review 
of key E&I services.  
 

To review the corporate strategy 
performance data and Surrey 
Waste Partnership data on 
recycling rates. 

In Development Formal Report 

6 December 
2018 

Air Quality To evaluate the progress the 
council is making to improve air 
quality.  

To have reviewed mechanisms 
available to support better air 
quality in the future. 

Formal Report 

6 December 
2018 

Code of practice on 
road 
maintenance/safety 

To review the UK Roads Board 
have revision of the code of 
practice for road maintenance 
and safety. 

Local authorities have two years 
to decide whether they will adopt 
the new code or a risk based 
approach. The committee will 
assess what the proposals will 
mean for the Council and Surrey 
residents. 

Formal Report 

6 December Surrey Waste To assess the overall waste In Development Formal Report 

P
age 34



Page 3 of 4 

2018 Strategy *NEW* 
 
 

strategy and identify the 
implications of fly tipping on 
public and private land. 

TBC Transport for the 
South East (TfSE) 
Strategy  
 

To review the Strategy for 
Transport for the South East and 
ascertain the effects that this will 
have upon Surrey. 

In Development Formal Report 

Task Groups 

Topic Scrutiny Topic Description Outcome  Membership 

 Basingstoke Canal 
Task Group 

To consider the most effective 
governance option for Surrey 
County Council in relation to the 
Basingstoke Canal of which the 
council is a joint owner.   
 

Recommendations of this Task 
Group will enable the county 
council to decide whether they 
continue their involvement with 
the Basingstoke Canal or make 
changes to the current joint 
ownership model. 

Bob Gardner, Richard Wilson, 
Stephen Cooksey 

 Countryside 
Management 
Member Reference 
Group 

To report to the Select 
Committee with 
recommendations to advise the 
Cabinet Member on the changes 
required to the Surrey Wildlife 
Trust (SWT)/Surrey County 
Council (SCC) Agreement and 
its governance,  (The MRG 
meets on an ad hoc basis as 
and when the service requires 
support.) 
 

To have ensured that the Surrey 
Wildlife Trust is fit for purpose for 
the remainder of its term 

Bob Gardner, Matt Furniss, 
Richard Wilson, Stephen Cooksey 

 Surrey Waste Local 
Plan Member 
Reference Group 

To Act as champions for the new 
Surrey Waste Local Plan with 
Member colleagues and community 
organisations on draft proposals 
developed as part of the emerging 
SWLP 

 
 

To have given officers the 
perspective of members and other 
stakeholders, including communities 
and to have provided feedback on 
the approach taken for engagement 
with the public and stakeholders 

 

Wyatt Ramsdale, Jonathan Essex, 
Richard Wilson, Matthew Furniss 
 
 

P
age 35



Page 4 of 4 

 

P
age 36



 ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SELECT COMMITTEE 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER – UPDATED APRIL 2018 

 
The recommendations tracker allows Board Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Board.  Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded out to 
indicate that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.  The next progress check will highlight to members where actions 
have not been dealt with. 
 

KEY 
   

No Progress Reported Action In Progress Action Completed 

 
Date of 
meeting 

Item Recommendations/ 
Actions 

Responsible 
Officer/Mem

ber 

Response Progress check on 

11 October 
2017 

Call In: 
Consultation On 
Proposed 
Changes To 
Surrey's 
Community 
Recycling 
Centres (Cost 
Reductions)  

 That the Cabinet decision 

regarding community recycling 

centres on 26 September is 

implemented (Complete) 

 That the Committee receives a 

report on the actions taken to 

improve data capture of fly-

tipping on private land (in three 

months) 

 That the Surrey Waste 

Partnership consider the options 

presented to the Committee and 

report back at a future date. 

 That services share an update 

detailing plans to communicate 

changes to residents with the 

committee (Complete) 

Waste 
Operations 
Group 
Manager 

4 Dec 2017 - Removal of the free bag of construction 
waste and restrictions on Bracknell and Woking residents 
use of the Camberley CRC 
 
8 January 2018 - Changes to the opening days of a 
number of CRCs and restrictions on the use of vans and 
trailers at six smaller CRCs. 
The services have been delivering the changes through a 
project plan and the communications element of the plan 
was launched at the end of October/ Start of November. 
The key elements of the communications plan are set out 
below. 
 
E-mail to key stakeholders to advise of the changes. 
Recipients included district and borough councillors, 
parish councils and interest groups, Surrey Waste 
Partnership members and officers, neighbouring local 
council officers. ( sent end of October 2017) 
 
Banners advertising the changes placed at all CRCs at 
end of October 2017 
 
Leaflets advertising the changes handed out at all CRCs 
at the end of October 2017 
 
SCC website updated with changes from end of October 
2017. Posters and leaflets distributed to council offices 
and libraries from end of October 2017 
 
Various electronic media communications starting in 
November, for example, articles in Surrey matters. 
 
An item on the implications of fly tipping has been added 
to the forward plan for 2018. 

  

February 2018 

P
age 37



28 
February 
2018 

Converting Street 
Lighting To LED   

That the Highways & Transport 
Service considers the 
implementation of new technologies 
such as LED lighting and charging 
points on lamp posts. 
 

Business 
Improvement 
and 
Consultancy 
Manager 
 

This will be considered as part of the 
follow-up report to Select Committee 
in September 2018. 

September 2018 

28 
February 
2018 

Converting Street 
Lighting To LED   

The service presents a business 
case for use of such new 
technologies as outlined in the IoT 
(Internet of Things) UK research 
report for use in Surrey in 2018/19 
as this presents an income 
opportunity. 

Business 
Improvement 
and 
Consultancy 
Manager 
 

This will be considered as part of the 
follow-up report to Select Committee 
in September 2018. 

September 2018 

28 
February 
2018 

Converting Street 
Lighting To LED   

That the service and Cabinet 
Member for Highways considers 
using savings generated from the 
implementation of new technologies 
(as part of the proposals to convert 
to LED) and, In addition, to include 
restoration of all night street lighting 
across the county, as part of any 
business case proposal. 
 

Cabinet 
member for 
Highways/Bu
siness 
Improvement 
and 
Consultancy 
Manager 
 

This will be considered as part of the 
follow-up report to Select Committee 
in September 2018. 

September 2018 

28 
February 
2018 

Recommendation
s Tracker And 
Forward Work 
Programme   

That a wider item is brought to the 
Select Committee regarding waste 
strategy, including implications of fly 
tipping. 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

An item on the implications of fly 
tipping has been added to the 
forward plan for 2018. 
 

December 2018 

28 
February 
2018 

Recommendation
s Tracker And 
Forward Work 
Programme   

That the Committee consider how it 
can feed into work relating to the 
Highways Extension Contract. 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer/Chair
man 

  

P
age 38



28 
February 
2018 

Recommendation
s Tracker And 
Forward Work 
Programme   

That a Task Group update is 

brought to the Committee at its next 

meeting to monitor progress and 

work undertaken by these groups 

over the last six months. 

 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

An update on the work of the task 
groups will be provided at this 
meeting. Some of the work of the 
task groups will also be included in 
upcoming items in the agenda. 

May 2018 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  

ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 
SELECT COMMITTEE 
10 May 2018 
Updates from Members Reference Groups and 
Task Group 

 
Purpose of report:  
 
To receive a verbal update from Chairmen of the Committee Member 
Reference Groups and Task Groups.  
 

Introduction: 

 
 

1. That the Board receives a verbal update from the Chairman of each Member 

Reference Group and Task Group, making comments as necessary.   

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact:  
 
Richard Plummer, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Contact details: 020 8213 2782, richard.plummer@surreycc.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 41

Item 7/18



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Infrastructure 

Select Committee  
10 May 2018 

Tackling Single Use Plastics 
 

Purpose of report: To agree how the Select Committee should be engaged 

in developing Surreys Single Use Plastic Policy and Strategy.  

 

Introduction: 

 

1. DEFRA in their ‘A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the 
Environment have a target of achieving zero avoidable plastic waste by the 
end of 2042.  
 

2. The council strongly welcomes the government’s commitment to tackle this 
issue and on 20 March 2018, a motion was passed to continue to develop its 
plastic use strategy to make Surrey a single-use-plastic-free authority. The 
strategy is to be developed by working with the Environment Agency, 
Districts and Boroughs, businesses, E&I Select Committee and other 
partners. 
 

3. The motion also stated that the council should: 
 

3.1 Immediately start the process to reduce the sale and provision 
of single-use plastic products such as bottles, cups, cutlery and 
drinking straws in Council buildings where it is reasonable to do so.  
 

3.2 Investigate the feasibility of requiring pop-up food and drink vendors 
at large council events to avoid single use plastic as a condition of 
their contract and work with tenants in commercial properties owned 
by Surrey County Council to encourage the phasing out of single use 
plastic cups, bottles, cutlery and straws where it is reasonable to do 
so. 
 

3.3 Include the reduction of single use plastic items in the list of 
Corporate priorities for Surrey County Council. 
 

3.4 Write to the Secretary of State for the Environment asking for more 
information on how the Government is to eliminate single-use plastic 
by 2042 and how this could be brought forward 

 
4. The issue of single use plastics is high in the public consciousness and the 

council has a significant opportunity to reduce usage in Surrey - through its 
roles as service provider and employer and as an advocate. The purpose of 
this paper is to set out the high level approach to implement the motion 
passed by Council and to establish the role the committee wished to play. 
 
 
 

Page 43

Item 8/18

../../../JRussell/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/JQFYRUS7/(https:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf%20)
../../../JRussell/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/JQFYRUS7/(https:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf%20)
../../../JRussell/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/JQFYRUS7/(https:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf%20)


Approach  

 

1. The motion agreed by Council is ambitious, and has implications for a number 
of Council services and will require extensive engagement with partners. It is 
therefore anticipated that it will take at least 12 months to develop a strategy 
that will deliver the full commitments of the agreed motion. 
 

2. A project manager will be appointed to lead the development of the strategy, 
and they will develop a project plan, including timescales. If possible, we will 
aim to develop the strategy sooner so that we are able to start implementing 
actions to reduce our use of single use plastics as soon as possible. 

 
3. Whilst implementing the full motion will take longer, in the shorter term (Phase 

1) we propose to: 
 

3.1 Develop a policy that drives us internally and informs the more 
immediate steps we can take to reduce our single use plastics usage, for 
example a campaign to raise awareness amongst our own staff, and the 
operations of Commercial Services. 

3.2 Revise our procurement strategy in line with this policy. 
3.3 Develop the project plan for the full strategy (Phase 2). 

 
 

4. The proposed key milestones for Phase1 are: 
 

 
 

This timetable may be subject to change as it is based on our current assessment 

and the project has yet to be fully scoped.  

 

5. We have already written to the Secretary of State (Appendix A) setting out our 

position as required by the motion. 

 

6. Appendix B also contains some possible ideas and suggestions for 

implementation and phasing, although these do require further development. 

Any changes need to be based on best practice to avoid causing any 

unintended environmental issues and also to understand any financial impact.  

 

 

 

Page 44



 

 

Policy and strategy development  

 

7. There are a number of ways the committee could engage in the development 
of both the policy in the short term and strategy in the longer term.  
 
The four ways in which the committee could support this work are: 
7.1 Providing scrutiny of the policy and the strategy. 
7.2 Supporting the development of the policy and strategy, for example by 

forming a member reference group or a task group to work with officers 
7.3 Receiving reports on progress on a six monthly basis  
7.4 The committee and its members acting as advocates and raising 

awareness of the issue.  
 

Recommendations: 

 

8. That the committee indicates how it wishes to be involved in the development 
of the policy and strategy to tackle single use plastics  
 
The four ways in which the committee could support this work are: 
8.1 Providing scrutiny of the policy and the strategy.  
8.2 Supporting the development of the policy and strategy, for example by 

forming a member reference group or a task group to work with officers 
8.3 Receiving reports on progress on a six monthly basis  
8.4 The committee and its members acting as advocates and raising 

awareness of the issue.  
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

Report contact: Sarah Kershaw, Directorate Alignment Manager  

 

Contact details: Tel: 020 854 17102 

Mob: 07581 363261 

Email: sarah.kershaw@surreycc.gov.uk 

Sources/background papers:  

Council Motion 20 March 2018  

DEFRA in their ‘A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45

mailto:sarah.kershaw@surreycc.gov.uk
../../../JRussell/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/JQFYRUS7/(https:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf%20)
../../../JRussell/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.IE5/JQFYRUS7/(https:/www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/673203/25-year-environment-plan.pdf%20)


Cllr Mike Goodman 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Rt.Hon. Michael Gove MP 

House of Commons 

London  

SW1A 0AA 

9th April 2018 

Dear Michael, 

Re: Tackling Single Use Plastics 

I strongly welcome the Government’s commitment to tackling the problem of single 

use plastics, and in particular the recent announcement introducing a deposit 

scheme for single use drinks containers. This is an issue that is high in public 

consciousness and I believe there is a real opportunity to make significant changes 

to address this. I believe that by working together, central and local government can 

play a key role in creating the right policy environment and demonstrating 

leadership.  

Last month, Surrey County Council supported a motion to progress its work to 

eliminate the use of single use plastic by the county council and to encourage others 

in Surrey to follow suit. We have started work on a strategy for Surrey which we will 

bring back to Council to review and endorse. This reflects our commitment to 

tackling this issue and the concern amongst our members and residents about the 

increasing evidence of the damage that single use plastics do, in particular to our 

marine environment.  We know that this is very challenging, and in some cases will 

not be possible without changes to national policy.   

As part of that motion, I committed to write to you to ask for more information about 

the Government’s plans to eliminate single use plastic and encourage you to 

consider what could be done to achieve that in the shortest possible time, as every 

year of delay causes further damage to the environment.  

Clearly we are not the only local authority seeking to demonstrate leadership in this 

area and I would welcome your thoughts on how we could collectively ensure a 

Page 46



consistent approach, working with central government. The County Council is keen 

to understand in more detail what Defra is planning to do and to work with you to 

ensure that all tiers of government play their role in eliminating all unnecessary 

single use plastic.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

Mike Goodman 

Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

 

Appendix B 

 

Ideas and Suggestions for Tackling Single Use Plastics  

 

Definition and impact: 
 

 According to the Institute for European Environmental Policy, single use plastics 
can include any disposable plastic item which is designed to be used only once. 
Single use items are often used in packaging, consumer products, cosmetics 
and healthcare. Examples include: light-weight plastic bags, disposable utensils, 
beverage containers, coffee capsules, wet wipes, and razor blades. 
 

 International Beach Clean-up data from Ocean Conservancy shows that plastic 
drinks bottles, food wrappers, plastic drink bottle caps, straws and stirrers, 
plastic bags and plastic lids are amongst the top ten most common items 
collected.   

 
Phase 1        Delivery   0 - 12 months  

 

 Internal communication plan to: 
o Encourage behaviour changes needed to support Surrey become a 

single use plastics free workplace starting by May 2018. 

o Make colleagues aware of what we are doing as an organisation to be a 

single use plastics free workplace and when things are happening at a 

corporate level. 

o Raise awareness / remind colleagues about the global issues around 

single use plastics so they can see why it’s important. 

o Demonstrate how colleagues can do things differently to support us to be 

a single use plastic free workplace 

 Carry out an audit to find out all SUP items used and purchased by SCC in order 
to make decisions regarding what to replace/recycle.  

 Stop providing plastic cups – such as those used at water coolers at all SCC 
premises where reasonable to do so. 

 Provide glass jugs of water and glasses instead of plastic bottled water and 
plastic cups at meetings, including council meetings. 

 Stop the use of small SUP milk/cream pots for coffee and tea, instead have milk 
supplied in a thermos flask. 

 Stop providing disposable cups for hot drinks.  
o Ask staff to take their own reusable cup with lid (travel cup) when 

purchasing coffee and tea from coffee shops at SCC premises. 
o Provide ceramic mugs. 

 Ask the coffee shops at SCC premises to stop supplying wooden stirrers and 
offer spoons to be used at the premises.  (Although these are not made of SUP 
this move will reduce waste.)   

 Stop providing disposable food containers at canteens.  

Page 48



o Encourage staff to take their own reusable containers with lids to take 
away food such as breakfast porridge, lunch etc.  

 Review provision of single use plastics in vending machines and place 
communications next to them asking staff to recycle any plastic in the meantime. 

 Ensure where contractually possible that no SUP cups, bottles, straws, plates, 
cutlery etc. are used by contractors at SCC run events.   

 
Phase 2        Delivery   0 - 18 
months  
 

 Work with contractors that provide food and drink to SCC premises to minimise 
SUPs in their supply chain.  
 
Such as: 
 

o Review provision of milk and size of plastic containers used, combined 
with information/communications to ensure they are recycled by staff.  

o Work with the canteens to ensure that instead of sachets sauces such as 
ketchup and mayonnaise are provided in glass bottles and jars.  

o Stop the use of coffee capsules where applicable.   
 

 Cascade approach:   
 

o Work with partners, businesses, charities and other institutions to 

encourage and possibly enable them to become ‘Single Use Plastic 

Free’ on their premises and in the things they sell to Surrey residents 

using Surrey as model of best practice and blueprint.  

 
 

 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 1 of 14 
 

 

Environment and Infrastructure 
Select Committee 
10 May 2018 
 

 
Review of the Surrey Waste Plan: Consultation on Draft Plan 
 
Purpose of the report:  Policy Development and Review  
 
Surrey County Council is the Waste Planning Authority and so is responsible 
for setting policy concerning the development of suitable waste management 
facilities in Surrey. The policy informs decision making for related planning 
applications. The current Surrey Waste Plan includes such policies and was 
adopted in 2008 and is now being reviewed. The new Plan, known as the 
‘Surrey Waste Local Plan’ is required to go through several stages of public 
consultation.  
 
A Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan was published for public consultation 
between November 2017 and February 2018 and this report sets out the 
results of this consultation. 322 comments were received and these are being 
taken into account in the preparation of the text of a ‘Submission’ Plan. 
Further technical assessments are also being undertaken to verify the 
suitability of specific sites proposed in the Plan for waste management. 
 
Cabinet will be asked to agree the text at its meeting in September. If agreed, 
the Submission Plan would then be published for six weeks to allow 
representations on its soundness and legality. 
 
The Committee is asked to note and comment on the nature of the response 
to the Draft Plan and the work being undertaken to complete the Submission 
Plan.  
 

 

Introduction: 

 
1. Surrey County Council is the Waste Planning Authority (WPA). This is 

distinct from its role as the Waste Disposal Authority (WDA). The WPA 
decides on planning applications for development related to the 
management of waste and does this by considering policies in its waste 
local plan. The waste local plan plans for the development of facilities 
capable of managing waste in Surrey in the most sustainable way. 
 

2. The current waste local plan is the Surrey Waste Plan that was adopted 
by the Council in 2008. The new Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWLP) will 
cover the period up to 2033. The new SWLP will consider all major waste 
streams including: commercial and industrial (C&I) waste, construction, 
demolition and excavation waste (C,D&E), as well as waste produced by 
households.  

 

Page 51

Item 9/18



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 2 of 14 
 

 

3. The stages in preparing the SWLP are outlined in Figure 1. Key stages 
of consultation include the Issues and Options consultation, the Draft 
Plan consultation and a Submission Plan consultation prior to the plan 
being submitted to the Secretary of State (SoS). The timetable shown in 
Figure 1 has been updated to reflect the need for additional time required 
to properly assess the responses to the consultation on the draft SWLP 
that includes the need for detailed technical assessment. 

  

Page 52



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 3 of 14 
 

 

 
Figure 1 Key stages of plan preparation and broad types of 

engagement that may occur 

 
 

 

 

Member Reference Group 

 
4. A Member Reference Group (MRG) exists to act as a ‘critical friend’ to  

the process of preparing the SWLP and has engaged at various stages 
of the Plan’s preparation. 

 

Jan - Jun 2016 

•Evidence Gathering 

Sep - Nov 2016 

•Preferred Options Consultation 

•Leader approval for consultation 

•Consult on vision and objectives, Duty to Cooperate and Call for Sites 

Nov 2017 to 
Feb 2018 

•Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan Consultation 

•Consult on draft policies and proposals and proposed sites for inclusion in 
the Surrey Waste Local Plan 

Autumn 2018 

•Submission Plan Consultation 

•Cabinet approval for consultation and to submit plan to SoS 

•Plan that LPA intends to submit to SoS 

•Consult on relevant legal requirements and tests of 'soundness' 

Winter 2018/19 

•  Submit plan to SoS and examination 

•Plan submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government 

Spring - 
Summer 2019 

•Examination and Inspectors Report 

• Inspector publishes their report along with any recommendations for 
modifications 

•Consultation on any main modifications 

Autumn/Winter 
2019 

•Adopt new Local Plan 

•Revised Local Plan is adopted formally by cabinet and full council 

Page 53



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 4 of 14 
 

 

5.  During the preparation of the plan, the MRG has highlighted key areas 
where further information would be beneficial. This has included: 

 The need to identify which types of waste management facility could 
be appropriate at each allocated site; 

 Clarification of recycling targets and how the need for waste 
management facilities has been calculated;  

 The need to ensure that the plan is aligned with the Waste Disposal 
Authority’s strategy for managing municipal waste and with recent 
government policy announcements on the environment; and, 

 The need for assessment of potential development (including on the 
transport network, habitats, air quality and the landscape) as part of 
the plan, in addition to at application stage. 

 Confirmattion that the county council, as the WDA, does not currently 
have any plans for further energy from waste plants in Surrey. This is 
confirmed. If in future the WDA were to develop plans for an energy 
from waste plant, in addition to the Eco Park, then these plans would 
need to be approved by Cabinet. 

 
6. The MRG has also requested that the Environment & Infrastructure 

Select Committee has the opportunity to consider the wording of the 
submission plan at its meeting on 8 September prior to consideration by 
Cabinet on 25 September. 

 

 

Consultation on the Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan 

 
7. A draft plan was prepared and published for comments for a 12 week 

period (including additional time for Christmas bank holidays) between 1 
November 2017 to 7 February 2018, in accordance with Surrey County 
Council’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement.  
 

8. This was the first opportunity that stakeholders had to consider a 
complete plan including draft policies and proposed sites. The contents 
of the draft plan, which also included a vision, strategic objectives and 
spatial strategy, are summarised below.  

 
Draft SWLP – Vision, Strategic Objectives, Spatial Strategy and Policies 
 
9. The Draft SWLP included a revised vision and strategic objectives and a 

spatial strategy based on the preferred options identified through the 
previous issues and options consultation in late 2016. The spatial 
strategy seeks to direct additional waste management capacity to land 
that has been previously developed and on sites that are well connected 
to producers of waste e.g. homes and businesses.   
 

10. The policies guide how waste development in Surrey should take place 
and the issues that development needs to consider.  

 
Draft SWLP – Proposed Sites 

 
11. By estimating future waste arisings and calculating current waste 

management capacity it has been established that there is a clear need 

Page 54



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 5 of 14 
 

 

for additional waste management capacity in the county – particularly 
energy recovery and composting. 

 
12. The draft SWLP proposed strategic sites1 considered suitable for waste 

management to meet the ‘capacity gap’. Following an assessment of 
over 200 sites, nine were short listed as having the potential to help 
deliver waste management capacity by accommodating a range of 
treatments. 

 
13. The sites proposed in the SWLP are set out below. Eight of these sites 

are already identified in the current Surrey Waste Plan 2008. Details of 
the sites and how they were identified were set out in separate 
documents published alongside the Draft SWLP. 

 

Site 
Site in current 
adopted plan 2008 

Former Weylands STW, Hersham Yes 

Land NE of Slyfield Industrial Estate, Guildford Yes 

Randalls Road, Leatherhead Yes 

Land adj Earlswood STW, Redhill Yes 

Land adj Trumps Farm, Longcross Yes 

Land adj Lyne Lane STW, Chertsey Yes 

Oakleaf Farm, Stanwell Moor Yes 

Land at Lambs Business Park, South Godstone No 

Land at Martyrs Lane, Woking Yes 

 
14. As suitable land for waste management in urban areas is difficult to find, 

particularly in a county such as Surrey, most of the sites are located in 
the Green Belt. In accordance with national policy any proposal on a 
Green Belt site would have to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’. 
 

15. During the consultation on the Draft SWLP, further nominations for 
alternatives sites were invited to ensure no opportunities are being 
overlooked.  
 

Consultation Activity 
16. Awareness of the consultation was achieved as follows: 

 Approximately 1,800 individuals and organisations were notified about 
the consultation either by email or letter; 

 Hard copy documentation and notices were made available for 
inspection at council offices; 

 Media coverage by press (newspaper article);  

 Presentation at a meeting of the Surrey Planning Working Group with 
Planning Policy Officers present from Surrey district and borough 
councils; and, 

 Responses to emails and letters concerning the consultation. 
 

17. In order to help respondents comment easily on the areas of the plan 
which concerned them, a survey split into different questions was 

                                                 
1
 To be strategic these sites need to be capable of processing at least an additional 20,000 

tonnes of waste per annum 

Page 55



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 6 of 14 
 

 

included on the consultation portal ‘Surrey Says’. Specific consultation 
questions were asked on the policy wording in the draft SWLP and on 
the individual sites being proposed. In addition various background 
papers were made available including a non-technical summary of the 
draft Plan. 

 

Results of the consultation on the Draft SWLP 

 
Consultation Responses 
18. A total of 322 responses were received during the consultation: 

 266 responses submitted by individuals (See Appendix 1 for a map 
showing responses per borough and district). 

 56 by organisations (waste industry, county, district & borough and 
parish councils, government bodies, community and environmental 
organisations).  

 
Note that nearly all of the respondents to the consultation made multiple 
comments. 

 
19. Appendix 2 includes a list of the organisations that responded to the 

consultation. 
 
20. An overview of the comments made during the consultation is included 

below and a detailed report that summarises the results of the 
consultation has been prepared (Interim Regulation 18 Summary 
Report). This report sets out how the comments made are being 
considered, including where changes to the text of the SWLP are likely to 
be necessary. The Interim Regulation 18 Summary Report is included in 
Appendix 3. 

 
21. The Interim Regulation 18 Summary Report will be updated following 

technical assessment work, and this final report will accompany the 
report to Cabinet concerning the text of the Submission Plan.  
 

Vision, Strategic Objectives, Spatial Strategy and Policies 
 
22. There was support from respondents for the draft vision and the 

principles set out in the draft objectives. There was a recognition of the 
importance of waste management in supporting a healthy economy in 
Surrey and there was support for the aim of net self sufficiency. There 
was particular support for the aspiration to increase prevention, re-use, 
recycling, and recovery of waste to minimise the amount of waste sent to 
landfill.  

 
23. Support was expressed for policies in the Plan. Minor amendments to 

the wording of policies, mainly to improve their effectiveness, were 
suggested by some respondents, including some Surrey Districts and 
Boroughs. 
 

24. A number of respondents commented that a greater emphasis was 
needed on environmental protection.  

 

Page 56



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 7 of 14 
 

 

25. Several respondents questioned whether the recycling targets set are 
ambitious enough, though there was an acknowledgement that these 
targets should remain achievable. 

 
Proposed Sites 

 
26. Many of the comments that were received were from members of the 

public opposed to waste site provision in their area. Comments were 
made relating to all of the proposed sites, with the sites at Lambs 
Business Park and Oakleaf Farm receiving the most comments. 
 

27. Comments that were made on the proposed sites in the plan mostly 
related to concerns on the potential impact of waste related development 
on residents, their quality of life and the environment. These included 
impacts on transport (in particular increased HGVs, noise, congestion, 
vehicle and pedestrian safety), visual intrusion, flood risk and air quality, 
as well as impacts on habitats and biodiversity.  
 

28. Some respondents’ concerns related to potential impacts on sensitive 
receptors (such as schools and hospitals) as well as areas designated as 
being of landscape, historic, scientific or environmental importance.  

 
29. Concerns were raised that sites are situated within the Green Belt and  

highlighted the importance of adhering to national policy and the need for 
any development to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’. In 
addition, the deliverability of some of the sites was questioned. 

 
30. There was a strong desire for the county council to identify which facility 

types might be suitable at specific allocated sites. There was also a 
desire that the county council  considers the potential impact of any 
development at allocated sites in-combination with other types of 
proposed development nearby. 

 
31. Ten additional sites were nominated for inclusion in the plan and are 

listed in Appendix 3.. All but one of these sites has previously been 
considered and rejected in the site identification and evaluation process.  
 

32. Following further consideration, none of the sites nominated are being 
carried forward for inclusion in the plan. Further detail relating to this will 
be contained in the Regulation 18 Consultation Summary Report. 

 
General Comments 
 
33. There was strong support for partnership working, including between 

Surrey County Council, district and borough councils and other 
authorities. 
 

34. Several respondants noted the Plan appeared thorough and sound, 
though there were also concerns that the documents were complex and 
that there was a large volume of content. 
 

 

Further work 

Page 57



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 8 of 14 
 

 

 
35. In light of the comments received during the consultation, further work is 

underway to confirm the content of the SWLP. This further work includes 
the following: 

 Additional evidence gathering, including detailed technical 
assessment of the sites we are proposing to allocate; and, 

 further engagement with specific stakeholders. 
 

36. Detailed technical assessment of the suitability of the proposed sites is 
being undertaken. This work is taking account of comments received 
during the consultation and includes assessments of the impact of waste 
related development on the following: 

 Habitats, including those designated under the EU Habitats 
Directive; 

 landscape and visual amenity; 

 the highway network; 

 risks of flooding; and, 

 air quality. 
 

37. This work will help define the suitability of each of the proposed sites for 
different types of waste management technology. For example, checking 
that the emissions from certain forms of waste management will not have 
an adverse impact on sensitive habitats.  
 

38. This technical assessment work will also help to inform the site 
development criteria, which will guide the type and scale of development 
which is considered appropriate at each site.  

 
39. In addition the ‘Waste Needs Assessment’ will be refreshed to ensure 

that the calculation of the requirement for additional waste capacity is 
based on the most recent data.  

 
40. The Submission Plan must be accompanied by a Sustainability Appraisal 

(SA), and the SA of the Draft Plan will be refreshed to take account of 
any significant changes to the text. 

 
41. It is expected that the following aspects of national policy which affect 

waste planning will be updated before the SWLP is adopted2 : 
 

 National Planning Policy Framework (and related guidance) 

 National policy on waste management3 
 
42. For the SWLP to be found sound at examination it has to be shown to be 

consistent with national policy and so any changes will be reviewed to 
assess the need for amendments to the SWLP. 

 
43. The Council will continue to work with its partners in particular through 

the duty to cooperate around specific sites or areas identified as suitable 
for waste use. 

                                                 
2
 Dates for realease are not yet known, but are expected later in 2018 

3
 Currently set out in the Waste Management Plan for England, 2013 

Page 58



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 9 of 14 
 

 

 
44. During the preparation of the Submission Plan, if it is considered that 

significant changes are required, then it is possible that a further round of 
consultation will be undertaken to obtain stakeholder comments on these 
changes before the text is presented to Cabinet. Any proposed changes 
to the Plan which require such consultation will be discussed with MRG 
beforehand.  

 

Conclusions: 

 
45. Consultation on a Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan, that proposed nine site 

allocations for waste management has been completed, resulted in 322 
responses.  
 

46. Taking account of the comments received, work is underway to confirm 
the content of the Submission Draft of the Surrey Waste Local Plan for 
consideration by Council in the Autumn. 

 
47. Subject to agreement by Cabinet, the Submission Plan will be published 

for a period of representations on soundness and legality prior to 
submitting the Plan for examination by the Secretary of State.    

 

Recommendations: 

 
48. It is recommended that the Environment & Infrastructure Select 

Committee: 
a. Note the level and nature of response to the consultation on the Draft 

Surrey Waste Local Plan; 
b. support the work being undertaken to prepare a Submission Draft 

Surrey Waste Local Plan in light of the responses received; 
c. note the slight change to the timetable; and, 
d. note that the Member Reference Group will continue to scrutinise the 

wording of the Submission Plan prior to further consideration by the 
Environment & Infrastructure Select Committee on 8 September. 

 
 

Next steps 

 
A ‘Submission’ version of the SWLP will be produced for consideration by 
Cabinet on 25 September. Subject to agreement by Cabinet the Submission 
Plan will be published for a six week period of representations on soundness 
and legality prior to submitting the Plan for examination by the Secretary of 
State in 2019.  
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Report contact: Paul Sanderson, Minerals & Waste Policy Team Manager 
 
Contact details: Tel: 020 8541 9949; Email: 
Paul.Sanderson@surreycc.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 59

mailto:%20Paul.Sanderson@surreycc.gov.uk
mailto:%20Paul.Sanderson@surreycc.gov.uk


[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 10 of 14 
 

 

Sources/background papers:  
 
Appendix 1 Map Showing Location of Consultation Responses 
Appendix 2 Details of Stakeholders commenting on the Draft Plan 
Appendix 3 Reg 18 Consultation Interim Summary Report 
 
All background reports are available on the Planning Policy website 
(http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/environment-housing-and-planning/minerals-and-
waste-policies-and-plans) 
 

a. Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan 
b. Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan Annexe 1 – Shortlisted Sites 
c. Draft Plan Non Technical Summary 
d. Types of Waste Management Facilities - Non-technical Explanation  
e. Background Policy Paper No 5: Waste Needs Assessment  
f. Background Policy Paper No 6: Site Identification and Evaluation 

Report 
g. Background Policy Paper No 7: Delivery of Waste Management 

Capacity in Surrey 2008 - 2017 
h. Background Policy Paper No 8: Duty to Cooperate Evidence of 

Engagement 
i. Preferred Options Report – Vision and Objectives 
j. Preferred Options Report – Spatial Strategy 
k. Preferred Options Report – Policy Development 
l. Issues & Options Summary of Responses Report  
m. Environmental Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal Scoping 

Report 
n. Draft Environmental and Sustainability Report 
o. Draft Minerals and Waste Development Scheme 

 

Page 60

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/environment-housing-and-planning/minerals-and-waste-policies-and-plans
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/environment-housing-and-planning/minerals-and-waste-policies-and-plans
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0005/147335/2017-11-14-Non-technical-Summary-with-alt-text.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/147367/2017-10-27-Types-of-waste-mgt-facilties-explanation-note.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0009/147357/2017-10-27-Draft-Plan,-Waste-Needs-Assessment.compressed.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/147376/2017-11-30-Site-Identification-and-Evaluation-Report-Final-Draft-v2-Nov2017.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/147376/2017-11-30-Site-Identification-and-Evaluation-Report-Final-Draft-v2-Nov2017.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/147368/2017-10-27-Delivery-of-Waste-Management-Capacity-in-Surrey.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/147368/2017-10-27-Delivery-of-Waste-Management-Capacity-in-Surrey.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0005/150881/2017-10-27-DtC-Evidence-of-Engagement-Final.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0005/150881/2017-10-27-DtC-Evidence-of-Engagement-Final.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0006/126267/I-and-O-Summary-of-Responses-Report.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0010/150013/SWLP-E-and-SR-Preliminary-Draft-12-17.pdf
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0004/147586/2017-10-31-Item-4-Minerals-and-Waste-Development-Scheme-Draft-for-Consultation.pdf


[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 11 of 14 
 

 

Appendix 1 Map Showing Location of Consultation Responses 

P
age 61



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 12 of 14 
 

 

 
Appendix 2 Details of stakeholders commenting on the Draft Plan 
 
Transport body/company 
Gatwick Airport Limited 
Transport for London 
 
Other NGO 
Surrey Nature Partnership  
Surrey Hills AONB Board 
CPRE Surrey 
RSPB  
 
Parish Council 
Bisley Parish Council 
Ewhurst & Ellens Green Parish Council 
Chiddingfold Parish Council 
Claygate Parish Council 
Godstone Parish Council  
Worplesdon Parish Council  
Salfords and Sidlow Parish Council 
Cranleigh Parish Council 
Effingham Parish Council 
 
District/Borough Council 
Surrey Heath Borough Council 
Mole Valley District Council 
Guildford Borough Council 
Woking Borough Council 
Runnymede Borough Council 
Elmbridge Borough Council  
Spelthorne Borough Council 
Reigate and Banstead Borough Council 
Tandridge District Council 
London Borough of Richmond upon Thames 
South London Waste Plan (LBs of Croydon, Kingston, Merton, Sutton) 
 
Waste Management Company 
Collier Environmental Services Ltd 
Charles Morris Management Limited 
Grundon Waste Management Limited 
Biffa Waste Services 
Brett Aggregates Ltd 
W T Lamb Holdings Limited 
EGAP Recycling LtdCappagh Group Ltd 
Chambers Runfold plc 
County Council 
East Sussex County Council 
Hampshire County Council 
Kent County Council 
 
Local Business 
New Zealand Golf Club 

Page 62



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 13 of 14 
 

 

 
Residents Group 
Stanwell Moor Residents Association 
The Chertsey Society 
Oxsted and Limpsfield Residents Group 
South Godstone Residents' Association 
Tandridge Lane Action Group  
Guildford Residents Association 
 
Statutory Environmental/Heritage Body 
Natural England 
Historic England 
 
Other Organsations 
Coast to Capital LEP 
Thames Water 
 
Wonham Place RTM Limited 
Wisley Property Investments 
SMECH Management Company Ltd 
Bridge Court Holdings Ltd 
 
Over 17 responses were received from Duty to Cooperate (DtC) bodies and 
other agencies including: Historic England, Natural England, Transport for 
London (TfL) Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 
Management Board, four Waste Planning Authorities (WPAs) and nine Surrey 
district and borough councils. 
 
Thirteen responses were received from waste site operators, landowners 
and/or their representatives. 
  

Page 63



[RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED] [RESTRICTED]  

 

Page 14 of 14 
 

 

Appendix 3 Reg 18 Consultation Interim Summary Report 
 
See separate document 

Page 64



 

Surrey County Council Waste planning 

Surrey Waste Local plan 

2018–2033 

Regulation 18 

Consultation: 

Interim Summary Report 
Version 0.1 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Page 65



 R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  
 

T h i s  p a g e  h a s  i n t e n t i o n a l l y  b e e n  l e f t  b l a n k  
 
 

 
Page 66



T a b l e  o f  C o n t e n t s  | 3 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  

I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................. 3 

Abbreviations and Acronyms ........................................................................................... 4 

Executive Summary ......................................................................................................... 6 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................ 9 

1.1 Preparing a new surrey waste local plan............................................................. 9 

1.1 Issues and Options Consultation ...................................................................... 10 

1.2 Draft Surrey Waste Plan Consultation .............................................................. 10 

2 Summary of consultation undertaken (Draft SWLP) ................................................ 11 

3 Consultation Results ................................................................................................ 12 

3.1 Overview ........................................................................................................... 12 

3.2 Vision, Objectives and Spatial Strategy ............................................................ 12 

3.3 Sites proposed for allocation ............................................................................. 13 

3.4 New sites .......................................................................................................... 13 

3.5 Policies.............................................................................................................. 14 

3.6 Site Identification and Evaluation document ..................................................... 14 

3.7 Views on the duty to cooperate ......................................................................... 14 

3.8 Other background documents ........................................................................... 15 

4 Consultation equality and diversity .......................................................................... 15 

4.1 Operators and landowners ................................................................................ 15 

4.2 Residents .......................................................................................................... 15 

4.3 Overview of consultation equality and diversity ................................................. 16 

5 Actions arising ......................................................................................................... 17 

Appendix 1 – Types of Consultees ................................................................................. 18 

Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other Organisations ................................. 20 

Appendix 3 – Map of Resident Responses .................................................................... 22 

Appendix 4 – General Comments on the SWLP ............................................................ 23 

Appendix 5 - Vision, Objectives and Spatial Strategy .................................................... 25 

Appendix 6 – Sites proposed for allocation .................................................................... 35 

Appendix 7 - Nominated Sites ........................................................................................ 88 

Appendix 8 – Comments on Policies .............................................................................. 93 

Appendix 9 – Comments on Site Identification and Evaluation .................................... 120 

Appendix 10 – Comments on Duty to Cooperate ......................................................... 130 

Appendix 11 – Comments on other Background documents ..................................... 1378 

  

Page 67



A b b r e v i a t i o n s  a n d  A c r o n y m s  | 4 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  

I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Abbreviations and Acronyms 

AMR Annual Monitoring Report 

AD Anaerobic Digestion 

AGLV Area of Great Landscape Value 

AHAP Areas of High Archaeological Potential 

ALC Agricultural Land Classification 

AONBs  Areas Of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

AQ  Air Quality 

AQIA  Air Quality Impact Assessment 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area 

C,D & E Construction, Demolition and Excavation 

CRC Community Recycling Centre 

CSAI County Sites of Archaeological Importance 

DtC Duty to Cooperate 

DPD Development Plan Document 

EA  Environment Agency 

EfW  Energy from Waste 

EU European Union 

GIS Geographic Information System 

HRA  Habitats Regulation Assessment 

LAA  Local Aggregates Assessment 

LACW Local Authority Collected Waste 

LNR Local Nature Reserve 

MBF Materials Bulking Facility 

MGB Metropolitan Green Belt 

MRF Materials Recovery Facility 

MSW Municipal Solid Waste 

Page 68



A b b r e v i a t i o n s  a n d  A c r o n y m s  | 5 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  

I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

mtpa millions tonnes per annum 

NNR National Nature Reserve 

NPPF National planning Policy Framework 

NPPW National planning Policy for Waste 

RBF Recyclables Bulking Facility 

SAC Special Area of Conservation 

SFRA Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 

SPA Special Protection Area 

SPZ Special Protection Zone 

SSSI Site of Specific Scientific Interest 

STW Sewage Treatment Works 

SWLP Surrey Waste Local Plan 

tpa tonnes per annum 

WCA Waste Collection Authority 

WDA Waste Disposal Authority 

WFD Waste Framework Directive 

WPA Waste planning Authority 

WTS Waste Transfer Station 

WWTW  Waste Water Treatment Works 

 
 

 

Page 69



E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y  | 6 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Executive Summary 

 Between 1 November 2017 and 7 February 2018 Surrey County Council consulted on a 

draft Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWLP) and a number of supporting documents in 

accordance with Regulation 18 of the Town and County planning Regulations 2012. 

 The Regulation 18 consultation on the draft SWLP was the main opportunity for 

stakeholders to influence the content of the new SWLP 2018. The draft SWLP sets out the 

strategic (spatial and policy) context for waste management and outlines the overall scale of 

need for additional waste management facilities in Surrey over the plan period.     

 A wide range of media (newsletters, website, and twitter), correspondence and meetings 

was used to inform individuals and organisations about the new SWLP and seek their 

comments.  

  Approximately 1,800 individuals and organisations were notified about the consultation by 

either letter or email.  

 The responses were received as a mix of on-line responses, letters and emails. 

Consultation results 

 A total of 322 responses were received during the consultation: 266 responses submitted by 

individuals and 56 by organisations (waste industry, county, district & borough and parish 

councils, government bodies, community and environmental organisations).  

 Generally, respondents supported the draft vision and the principles set out in the draft 

objectives. There was a recognition of the importance of waste management in supporting a 

healthy economy in Surrey and there was support for the aim of net self-sufficiency. There 

was particular support for the aspiration to increase prevention, re-use, recycling, and 

recovery of waste to minimise the amount of waste sent to landfill, though some felt the plan 

did not go far enough and there were concerns about management of waste by incineration. 

 Support was expressed for policies in the plan. Amendments to the wording of policies were 

suggested by some respondents, including some Surrey districts and borough councils. 

Such amendments are sought to ensure the policies are effective and consistent with 

national policy. 

 Comments that were made on the proposed sites in the plan mostly related to concerns on 

the potential impact of waste related development on residents, their quality of life and the 

environment. These included impacts on transport (in particular increased HGVs, noise, 

congestion, vehicle and pedestrian safety), visual intrusion, flood risk and air quality, as well 

as impacts on habitats and biodiversity.   

 Concerns were raised that sites are situated within the Green Belt and highlighted the 

importance of adhering to national policy and the need for any development to demonstrate 

‘very special circumstances’. In addition, the deliverability of some of the sites was 

questioned.  

 There was a strong desire for the county council to identify which facility types might be 

suitable at specific allocated sites. There was also a desire that the county council considers 

Page 70



E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y  | 7 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

the potential impact of any development at allocated sites in-combination with other types of 

proposed development nearby.  

 Ten additional sites were nominated for inclusion in the plan and are listed in Appendix 3. All 

but one of these sites had previously been considered and rejected in the site identification 

and evaluation process. Following further consideration it is likely that none of the sites 

nominated will be carried forward for inclusion in the plan. 

 There was strong support for partnership working including between Surrey County Council, 

district and borough councils and other authorities. 

 Several Respondents noted that the plan seemed thorough and sound, though there were 

concerns that the documents were complex and that there was a large volume of content. 

Next steps 

 All the comments made have been considered and the plan will be refined in the light of 

these where appropriate. The next iteration of the SWLP, called the Submission Plan, will be 

produced for submission to the secretary of state in autumn 2018. A further round of 

consultation will be undertaken in autumn 2018 on the content of the Submission Plan 

accordance with Regulation 19 of the Town and Country planning Regulations 2012. An 

updated final version of this report will be published at that time. 

  

Page 71



E x e c u t i v e  S u m m a r y  | 8 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

If you have any questions about the consultation or you are having difficulty in accessing 

the documents please contact Surrey County Council: 

 

Contact Us 

 Phone: 03456 009 009 

 Email: wasteplan@surreycc.gov.uk  

 Letter: planning and Development Service,  

Room 385 County Hall, Penrhyn Road,  

Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2DW 

  

Page 72

mailto:wasteplan@surreycc.gov.uk


I n t r o d u c t i o n  | 9 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

1 Introduction 

1.1 Preparing a new surrey waste local plan 

1.1.1 Waste management infrastructure is essential to support a modern economy. It is 

crucial that we plan for waste related development to ensure there are sufficient 

facilities to manage waste sustainably.  

1.1.2 Waste local plans set out the planning framework for the development of waste 

management facilities and are used in determining planning applications for waste 

facilities. The current Surrey Waste Plan was adopted in 2008. Since it was adopted 

in 2008 a number of new challenges have arisen, including: 

 Changes in the policy landscape and approaches to plan-making. 

 Evolution of waste management technologies and approaches. 

 Current and emerging local conditions including pressure to release allocated 

waste sites to alternative development. 

 Changes in patterns of waste production. 

1.1.3 It is essential that the waste local plan is kept up to date to provide a robust policy 

framework to support the sustainable management of waste. The new Surrey Waste 

Local Plan (SWLP) will cover the period from 2018 to 2033 and will help to ensure 

that Surrey is able to provide sufficient waste management capacity and ensure 

waste is managed in the most sustainable way. 

 
Figure 1 Key stages in delivering the Surrey Waste Local plan 2018 – 2033 

  

1 

Evidence 
gathering  

2 
Issues and 

Options 
Consultation 

3 
Draft plan 

Consultation 

4 
Pre-

submission 
Consultation 

5 
Submit to 
Central 

Government 
and 

Examination 

6 
Inspectors 

Report 

7 
Adoption 

Page 73



I n t r o d u c t i o n  | 10 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

1.1 Issues and Options Consultation 

1.1.1 Between 2 September and 25 November 2016 Surrey County Council consulted on 

an ‘Issues and Options Paper’ as part of the preparation of the new Surrey Waste 

Local Plan.  

1.1.2 The Issues and Options Paper sought views on the strategic context, the vision and 

the objectives for sustainable waste management in Surrey. These views were 

incorporated into the plan making process, and a Draft SWLP was produced. 

1.2 Draft Surrey Waste Plan Consultation 

1.2.1 Between 1 November 2017 and 7 February 2018 Surrey County Council consulted 

on a ‘Draft Surrey Waste Local Plan’. The consultation sought views on the vision 

and objectives, spatial strategy, policies, sites and site identification process, 

environmental and sustainability report and on the WPAs Duty to Cooperate update 

statement. The Draft SWLP was comprised of the following main documents: 

 Surrey Waste Local Plan: Draft Plan 

 Draft Waste Local Plan Annexe 1 - Shortlisted Sites 

 Draft Plan Non-Technical Summary 

1.2.2 The main documents were supported by a number of background documents which 

were also made available on the council’s website. These included: 

 Types of Waste Management Facilities - Non Technical Explanation 

 Background Policy Paper No 5: Waste Needs Assessment 

 Background Policy Paper No 6: Site Identification and Evaluation Report 

 Background Policy Paper No 7: Delivery of Waste Management Capacity in 

Surrey 2008 - 2017 

 Background Policy Paper No 8: Duty to Cooperate Evidence of Engagement 

 Preferred Options - Vision and Objectives 

 Preferred Options - Spatial Strategy 

 Preferred Options – Policies 

 Issues and Options Summary of Responses Report 

1.2.3 A second ‘Search for suitable land’ was carried out during the same period as the on 

the Draft SWLP consultation, which gave landowners and operators the opportunity 

to propose land that might be suitable for waste management, for allocation in the 

SWLP. 

1.2.4 This document provides a summary of the responses received to the Regulation 18 

consultation on the Draft SWLP. This is in accordance with the council’s Statement 

of Community Involvement (adopted in 2015) (see Section 4.3). 

1.2.5 This document sets out officers’ initial views on the responses submitted and how 

the plan will be amended in the light of these. Fuller responses will be prepared in 

Page 74



S u m m a r y  o f  c o n s u l t a t i o n  u n d e r t a k e n  ( D r a f t  S W L P )  | 11 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

light of further evidence gathering currently being undertaken and these will 

published in an updated version of this document alongside the submission version 

of the new SWLP. 

 

2 Summary of consultation undertaken (Draft 

SWLP) 

2.1.1 Surrey County Council used a wide range of media (newsletters, website, and 

twitter), correspondence and meetings to inform individuals and organisations about 

the Draft SWLP and to seek their comments.  

2.1.2 The council’s website supported the consultation through a dedicated webpage, 

including links to PDF copies of documents and a link to the online survey. 

2.1.3 Notification was made at the start of the consultation to a wide range of individuals 

and organisation by either email or letter. Printed copies of the documents, along 

with flyers, were provided in the district and borough council offices and libraries.  

2.1.4 Presentations were given at meetings with planning policy officers from Surrey’s 

districts and boroughs. 

  

Page 75



C o n s u l t a t i o n  R e s u l t s  | 12 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

3  Consultation Results 

3.1 Overview 

3.1.1 A total of 322 responses were received during the consultation; of which 266 were 

from the public (see Appendix 3 for a Map showing responses per borough and 

district).  

3.1.2 Fifty six of these responses were received from organisations. This included 19 Duty 

to Cooperate (DtC) bodies and other agencies include; Historic England, Natural 

England, Transport for London (TfL), Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty (AONB) Management Board, Thames Water, four Waste planning 

Authorities (WPAs) and nine Surrey district and borough councils. The list of those 

DtC bodies (and other Agencies) who responded is included in Appendix 2. 

3.1.3 Ten responses were received from waste site operators and/or landowners. 

Fourteen parish councils and/or residents associations responded. The full 

breakdown of responses received by type of respondent is shown in Figure 2 below. 

 
Figure 2 Number of Responses received by type of Respondent 

 
 

3.1.4 The responses received during the consultation are set out in Appendices 4 to 11, 

alongside the response to each comment and any actions arising from these. 

3.2 Vision, Objectives and Spatial Strategy 

3.2.1 Comments made on the Vision, Objectives and Spatial Strategy of the SWLP 

related to: 

- Support for the county council’s collaboration with relevant authorities, 

organisations and the local communities but some concern that it could do more. 

- Support for pushing management of waste up the waste hierarchy, including 

setting ambitious but realistic targets for recycling. 

Page 76



C o n s u l t a t i o n  R e s u l t s  | 13 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

- Support for zero waste to landfill, where this does not increase waste managed 

by energy from waste (EfW) sites unnecessarily. 

3.2.2 Further detail on the comments made on the vision, objectives and spatial strategy 

and the response to them are set out in Appendix 5. 

3.3 Sites proposed for allocation 

3.3.1 The SWLP proposes sites for allocation that are considered suitable for some form 

of waste related development. The comments made on these sites included 

concerns regarding: 

- Potential detrimental impacts on the areas surrounding the sites resulting from 

waste related development. This included impacts on areas designated as being 

of environmental importance, schools and other sensitive receptors. 

- Impacts on air quality, the transport network, visual amenity, flood risk, noise 

pollution, public health and general amenity in the area of the sites. 

3.3.2 Comments supporting sites were also received. 

3.3.3 Further detail on the comments submitted for the sites that are proposed for 

allocation in the SWLP and the response to these comments are set out in Appendix 

6. 

3.4 New sites 

3.4.1 A second call for sites was undertaken concurrently with the Regulation 18 

consultation on the Draft SWLP, where any respondent could nominate an area of 

land that they considered might be suitable for some form of waste management 

related development. 

3.4.2 Ten sites were nominated during this second call for sites by landowners, operators 

and members of the public as land that should be considered for allocation in the 

SWLP. These are set out below. 

1. Kitsmead Recycling Centre, Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross, 
Chertsey 

2. Homefield Recycling and Recovery Facility 
3. Land at Addlestone Quarry, Byfleet Road, New Haw, Addlestone 
4. Hirthermoor, Stanwell Moor, Stanwell, near Staines, Middlesex 
5. Hays Bridge Farm, Brickhouse Lane, South Godstone 
6. Britaniacrest/Little Orchard Farm - 26 Reigate Road, Hookwood, 
7. Land adjacent to the A25 and A22 next to Streets Court 
8. Dunsfold Park, Stovolds Hill, Cranleigh 
9. Old Brick Works Capel 
10. Land at the former airfield, Wisley 

3.4.3 Each of these sites have been considered for allocation in the SWLP but at this 

stage are not proposed to be carried forward for inclusion in the plan. Further detail 

on each of the sites and the response to these nominations are set out in Appendix 

7. 

Page 77



C o n s u l t a t i o n  R e s u l t s  | 14 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

3.5 Policies 

3.5.1 Comments made on the policies contained in the SWLP relate to: 

- The specific wording of policies, including their effectiveness, with suggested 

amendments, additions and/or requests for greater clarity; 

- The preamble text for policies, specifically suggesting further detail be added; 

- Support or opposition for specific policies 

3.5.2 Further detail on comments made on the Policies in the draft SWLP and the 

response to these comments are set out in Appendix 8. 

3.6 Site Identification and Evaluation document 

3.6.1 The Draft SWLP allocates sites that are considered suitable for some form of waste 

related development. The Site Identification and Evaluation document sets out the 

process that was used to identify and evaluate sites for inclusion in the Draft SWLP.  

3.6.2 The comments made on the Site Identification and Evaluation document relate to: 

- Specific sieves that were used to filter out unsuitable sites, particularly Sieve B – 

Established Industrial Estates and Business Parks and Sieve E – Former & 

Operational Mineral Workings and Land Allocated for Mineral Working Sites. 

- Specific issues that it was felt were left unconsidered during the Site 

Identification and Evaluation process.  

3.6.3 Further detail on comments made on the Site Identification and Evaluation 

document and the response to these comments are set out in Appendix 9. 

3.7 Views on the duty to cooperate 

3.7.1 Section 33A of the planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

places a duty on local planning authorities (LPAs), in preparing local plans, to 

“engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis” with other relevant 

organisations to maximise the effectiveness with which plan preparation is 

undertaken. 

3.7.2 Methods of implementing the duty to cooperate (DtC) are set out in both the 

National planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) and the national planning 

Practice Guidance (nPPG) (2014). Under the DtC, local planning authorities are 

expected to work ‘collaboratively with other bodies to ensure that strategic priorities 

across local authority boundaries are properly coordinated and clearly reflected in 

local plans’ (paragraph 179 of the NPPF). 

3.7.3 The DtC applies to specific bodies as set out in the relevant legislation and 

guidance. Section 110 of the Localism Act 2011, places a legal duty on local 

planning authorities to cooperate with one another; county councils and other 

prescribed bodies. Those prescribed bodies are identified in identified in Regulation 

4 of The Town and Country planning (Local planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

(as amended). 

Page 78



C o n s u l t a t i o n  e q u a l i t y  a n d  d i v e r s i t y  | 15 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

3.7.4 As part of preparing the new SWLP, the county council is seeking to take account 

of, and as appropriate align with, other planning policy (including emerging and 

updated). This includes minerals and waste plans from adjoining authorities, 

changes to national planning policy and other local (district or borough council and 

neighbourhood) plans. 

3.7.5 In order to demonstrate how the council is discharging its duty, a ‘Duty to Cooperate 

Evidence of Engagement’ document was published for consultation alongside the 

Draft SWLP. This built upon the ‘Duty to Cooperate Scoping Statement’, which was 

consulted upon during the Issues and options Consultation between September and 

November 2016. The ‘Duty to Cooperate Evidence of Engagement’ document sets 

out the strategic matters on which Surrey County Council has identified during the 

preparation of the draft SWLP, how it has engaged with who, and when this took 

place. This document is being continuously updated and will be submitted to the 

Secretary of State alongside the submission version of the SWLP. 

3.7.6 Further detail on comments made on the DtC and the response to these comments 

are in Appendix 4. 

3.8 Other background documents 

3.8.1 Comments were made on the following background documents which support the 

SWLP: 

- Draft Plan Non-Technical Summary 

- Types of Waste Management Facility – A Non-Technical Explanation 

- Waste Needs Assessment 

- Preliminary Environmental and Sustainability Report 

3.8.2 Further detail on comments made on the background document and the Waste 

Needs Assessment and the response to these comments are set out in Appendix 

11.  

3.8.3 Note that the comments made on the Preliminary Environmental and Sustainability 

Report are being analysed and will be published alongside the revised version of the 

document that will form part of the Submission Plan.  

4 Consultation equality and diversity 

4.1 Operators and landowners 

4.1.1 Ten responses were received from site operators and/or landowners on the Draft 

SWLP.  

4.2 Residents  

Statement of Community Involvement 

Page 79



C o n s u l t a t i o n  e q u a l i t y  a n d  d i v e r s i t y  | 16 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

4.2.1 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how and when 

stakeholders can influence the content of new planning policy documents. The SCI 

sets out guiding principles for public engagement, including: 

 Trying to involve everyone who may be affected by planning decisions 

 Using a range of methods to make it easy for people to respond 

 Having an open and transparent process  

 Managing expectations and providing feedback to respondents 

4.2.2 The council identified a range of organisations and people who may be affected by 

planning decisions in Surrey in the SCI. These groups were contacted by email or 

letter, to all statutory organisations and other organisations or groups on our 

minerals and waste database.  

4.2.3 The details of the consultation were widely distributed by a range of print and digital 

media to make sure that any organisations who did not receive a letter would be 

aware of the consultation. Any new organisations or individuals identified through 

the Draft SWLP Consultation will be added to the database where they have 

indicated they wish to be contacted in future.  

4.2.4 The Draft SWLP Consultation was held between1 November 2017 and 7 February 

2018, a period of 12 weeks (including additional time for Christmas bank holidays). 

This is in line with the published SCI. 

4.2.5 The SCI requires that consultation documents are published on the council’s 

website with details of where and when paper copies of consultation documents can 

be viewed. The documents were published on a webpage for the new SWLP and 

made documents available at district and borough council offices.  

4.2.6 Finally, the SCI requires the council to publish a summary of the results of 

consultations on our website. This document provides this summary and outlines the 

key issues and how the council has, or is, addressing them.  Fuller responses will be 

prepared in light of further evidence gathering currently being undertaken and these 

will published in an updated version of this document alongside the submission 

version of the new SWLP. 

4.3 Overview of consultation equality and diversity 

4.3.1 Over 300 representations were received in response to the public consultation.  

4.3.2 The responses received were a mix of on-line responses, letters and emails. The 

majority of responses (96%) were submitted via the online consultation portal or by 

email, with only 4% of responses submitted in paper form.  

4.3.3 There was a relatively even split between respondents in the age categories 35-49, 

50-64 and >64. Fewer responses were received from the age groups <35.  

4.3.4 The majority of respondents preferred not disclose their gender (66%), however of 

those that did, 55% identified as male and 45% as female.  

Page 80



A c t i o n s  a r i s i n g  | 17 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

4.3.5 The ethnicity of the majority of respondents was White or White British (36%), 

followed by Asian or Asian British (2%). The remainder of respondents preferred not 

to indicate their ethnicity. 

4.3.6 Disabled respondents made up 3% of the total responses. 37% responded indicated 

they did not have a disability and the remainder preferred not to say. 

4.3.7 The majority of respondents indicated that they lived in Tandridge District, followed 

by Spelthorne Borough, then Reigate and Banstead Borough and Woking Borough. 

For a geographical distribution by borough/district see Appendix 3. 

4.3.8 The next stage of the plan will update the equalities impact assessment to better 

understand the implications of the plan for different groups of the population. 

 

5 Actions arising 

5.1.1 Following close consideration of each of the comments received during the 

consultation on the Draft SWLP, appropriate changes that should be made to the 

SWLP and the need for further action has been identified. Appendices 4 to 11 

document both the comments made and the resulting actions. 

5.1.2 The SWLP will be revised in the light of these comments; the Waste Needs 

Assessment and Environmental and Sustainability Report will also be refreshed. 

This will result in a ‘submission’ version of the plan which will be taken to Cabinet for 

approval, and then submitted to the Secretary of State.  

5.1.3 Technical assessment work is being undertaken to better understand the likely 

impacts of different types of waste related development at each of the sites 

allocated in the SWLP. This document will be updated to a final version once the 

assessment work is complete. 

5.1.4 The consultation process, including the communications and publicity strategy, will 

be reviewed and the process of publishing the submission SWLP will take this into 

account. 

  

Page 81



A p p e n d i x  1  –  T y p e s  o f  C o n s u l t e e s  | 18 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

 

Appendix 1 – Types of Consultees 
Table 1 Types of consultees 

Stakeholder type Examples of who this included 

Duty to Cooperate Bodies  Surrey District and Borough Councils  

 Adjoining Local Authorities  

 Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 Other Waste planning Authorities  

 National Bodies and the Mayor of London  

 Transport bodies 

 Historic England  

 Natural England  

 The Environment Agency 

  Local Enterprise Partnerships  

 Surrey Local Nature Partnership  

  

Other organisations  Other Government Organisations  

 Surrey Wildlife Trust  

 National Trust  

 The Canal & River Trust 

 AONB Management Boards 

 Airports 

 Water Companies 

Operators and Landowners  Operators at existing sites 

 Any landowners who are interested in waste 

sites 

Businesses  Surrey Businesses 

Residents  Residents Associations 

 Neighbourhood planning groups 

 Voluntary organisations 

 Action Groups 

 Residents who previously responded to the 

Page 82



A p p e n d i x  1  –  T y p e s  o f  C o n s u l t e e s  | 19 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Issues and Options Consultation 

 Residents who live within close proximity of a 

proposed site 

 Sussex and Surrey Associations of Local 

Councils (SSALC) 

Page 83



A p p e n d i x  2  –  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  B o d i e s  a n d  o t h e r  
O r g a n i s a t i o n s  | 20 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 2 – Duty to Cooperate Bodies and other 

Organisations 
Table 2 Duty to Cooperate Bodies who responded to the Regulation 18 Consultation 

Organisation/Authority 

Coast to Capital LEP 

East Sussex County Council 

Elmbridge Borough Council  

Gatwick Airport Limited 

Guildford Borough Council 

Hampshire County Council 

Historic England 

Kent County Council 

London Borough of Richmond upon Thames 

Mole Valley District Council 

Natural England 

On behalf of the Surrey Hills AONB Board 

Reigate and Banstead District Council 

Runnymede Borough Council 

South London Waste Plan (LBs of Croydon, Kingston, Merton, 
Sutton) 

Page 84



A p p e n d i x  2  –  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  B o d i e s  a n d  o t h e r  
O r g a n i s a t i o n s  | 21 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  

S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Spelthorne Borough Council 

Surrey Heath Borough Council 

Surrey Nature Partnership  

Tandridge District Council 

Thames Water 

Transport for London 

Woking Borough Council 

 
Table 3 Other organisations who responded to the Regulation 18 consultation 

Surrey Hills AONB Board 

Page 85



A p p e n d i x  3  –  M a p  o f  R e s i d e n t  R e s p o n s e s  | 22 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

 Appendix 3 – Map of Resident Responses 

 

P
age 86



A p p e n d i x  4  –  G e n e r a l  C o m m e n t s  o n  t h e  S W L P  | 23 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 4 – General Comments on the SWLP  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Whole plan - 

General Comments 

 

Concern that the plan should cover Surrey's 

waste, not imports from other areas  

Residents and 

Lambs Holdings 

Ltd 

As part of the Spatial Strategy, Surrey is aiming for net self-sufficiency in terms of 

waste treatment and disposal and as a result flows of waste will need to flow in and out 

of the county. Net self-sufficiency accepts that it is not practical to deal only with waste 

produced in Surrey and that cross-boundary waste movements, including those from 

London, will be necessary to support the viability and efficient operation of waste 

management facilities. (7.1.1) 

No action arising 

Concern that the plan should make more 

reference to "sustainable economy" 

Resident and 

Coast to Capital 

LEP 

This suggestion is acknowledged. The vision incorporates sustainable waste 

management and sustainable development (5.2.2.) Under 8.2 Sustainable Waste 

Management, 8.2.2. describes a resource efficient economy as one where fewer 

resources are used to produce more, making the most of those resources by keeping 

them in use for as long as possible, extracting the maximum value from them whilst in 

use, then recovering and regenerating products and materials at the end of each 

service life. 

Amend text in vision: "To enable 

sufficient sustainable waste 

management capacity to 

support Surrey's nationally 

important economy." 

Concern that the plan gives no indication of 

cost - so cannot be fully considered  

Claygate Parish 

Council 

To be found sound the plan must be 'deliverable' - amongst other things this means 

that its policies and proposals cannot impose such a financial burden that they would 

make it too expensive for development to come forward. This element of deliverability 

(as well as others) is tested through consultation with the waste industry.  

No action arising 

Argue that the plan lacks 

consultation/transparency 

Residents This concern is acknowledged and would reassure residents that it is the council’s 

priority to ensure local communities and members of the public are kept informed and 

are fully engaged throughout the preparation of the plan. We are reviewing how we 

engage with residents over consultations and will consider these comments in that 

process. 

Review how we engage with 

residents over consultations. 

Argue for driving waste management up the 

waste hierarchy 

WT Lamb 

Holding and 

EGAP Recycling 

The plan's strategy is one of encouraging waste management further up the waste 

hierarchy (4.4.6). The SWLP provides updated targets for sustainable management of 

waste for the period up to 2033 which reflect the plan's vision and strategic objectives. 

These targets determine what type of waste management will be needed in the future. 

The targets encourage the management of waste further up the waste hierarchy 

(4.2.3).  

No action arising. 

Development should follow a plan led system W T Lambs 

Holding Ltd 

This comment is acknowledged. Preparation of this plan will help enable development 

to follow a plan led system 

No action arising. 

P
age 87



A p p e n d i x  4  –  G e n e r a l  C o m m e n t s  o n  t h e  S W L P  | 24 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Concern that this plan has been prepared out 

of sync with district plans that are still being 

prepared and government policy e.g. NPPF 

Cappagh Group 

Ltd and 

Residents  

This plan has been prepared with cooperation of the district and borough councils who 

have clarified their expectations with regard to development in their areas - this 

collaborative working has been undertaken with the express intention of ensuring that 

there is no conflict between this plan and the district and borough local plan. At all 

stages of the plan we make sure we are following government policy.  

Ongoing discussions with 

district and borough councils 

Concern that the plan is unsustainable and 

environmentally unsound 

Resident The plan has been drafted to be consistent with national policy concerning 

sustainability and protection of the environment. The plan is subject to sustainability 

appraisal (see draft Environmental and Sustainability Report) and takes account of any 

recommendations from this process. 

No action arising 

Concern that the plan is unsound, is lacking in 

vision and will be ineffective in delivering its 

objectives 

Cappagh Group 

Ltd and resident 

This comment is acknowledged. It is considered that the policies of the plan (as 

amended) will be effective in ensuring the objectives are delivered. 

The plan is being reviewed in 

the light of comments made in 

the consultation (Reg 18).  

Support for the plan - believe it is thorough Surrey Nature 

Partners 

The support for the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising 

There is a lack of consideration for the 

impacts that the plans will have on the local 

communities. 

Residents This concern is acknowledged and takes the impacts on local communities as a great 

importance. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc.  

The plan has been subject to SEA/Sustainability Appraisal. The site selection process 

considers a wide range of factors including community impact. Further assessment is 

being carried to establish the types of waste management facility that might be suitable 

for development at any of the sites proposed for allocation. 

Assessment work and 

SEA/Sustainability Appraisal is 

being carried out to highlight 

any potential impacts on local 

communities. This work will 

highlight any negative impacts 

on local communities, which can 

then be addressed/mitigated.  

It was stated that some respondents could not 

find the documents. 

 

Resident It is s acknowledged that some respondents had difficulty locating the documents on 

our webpages. The council will look into this and try to improve the layout of our 

documents online to make it easier to identify each document. Surrey County Council 

will also remind respondents how they can contact the county council if they have any 

questions or difficulty accessing the documents. 

Re-visit the webpages and try to 

put the documents into a clear 

layout to make the documents 

more accessible. Reiterate how 

respondents can contact Surrey 

County Council if struggling to 

open or locate the report. 

Concern that the plan does not comply with 

the NPPF 

Resident This concern is noted. The NPPF and National planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) is 

adhered to through the preparation of this plan. It provides guidance on how strategic 

planning matters should be addressed in local plans. Throughout the plan documents, 

the NPPF is referred to showing Surrey County Council has complied with the 

document.  he plan will be publicly examined independently in due course to test 

compliance with national policy, and this must be demonstrated by the Council. 

Evidence throughout all of the 

documents to show the NPPF 

has been referred to. 

  

P
age 88



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 25 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 5 - Vision, Objectives and Spatial Strategy 

 

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

Section 9 Engagement 

/ Strategic Objective 8 

/ 9.4 Community 

Engagement 

Concern that there is not enough mention 

of engagement with the corporate 

community  

Resident This suggestion is acknowledged. The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 

sets out how Surrey County Council will involve local residents, local businesses and 

other key organisations and stakeholders in the plan-making process and in the 

determination of planning applications. Also see Policy 16. (9.4.1)  

 

Section 9 Engagement 

/ Strategic Objective 8 

/ 9.4 Community 

Engagement 

Supports the need for collaboration 

between authorities - there is a need for 

The council to work with its partners, 

borough and parish councils to consult with 

local communities 

WT Lamb 

Holding Ltd, 

Hampshire 

County Council, 

Bisley Parish 

Council, London 

Borough of 

Richmond and 

South London 

Waste Plan 

It is agreed and acknowledged that the support for this element of the draft plan No action arising 

Strategic Objective 2 Concern that no provision is made for 

further allocations in respect of 

construction, demolition & excavation (C,D 

& E) waste recycling facilities 

EGAP Recycling 

Ltd 

 The plan states "the SWLP is generally supportive of C, D & E recycling in 

conjunction with operational mineral workings (4.5.3)... No allocations are proposed 

for C, D & E recycling facilities. This is because historically those facilities have come 

forward as temporary facilities in line with operational mineral workings. The council 

believes that this is likely to continue (4.6.3). Policy 3 addresses proposals for C&DE 

recycling and is appropriately supportive of such facilities. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective  2 / 

Strategic Objective 3 

Oppose any additional incineration 

capacity, especially if the energy (heat) is 

not utilised 

Residents and 

WT Lambs 

Holding Ltd 

This comment is acknowledged. Incineration (with energy recovery) is an effective 

and widely used method of waste management. The plan states…policy is not 

technology specific so that the SWLP is able to react to new technologies that be 

developed in the future (8.2.5)…Generally the county council is supportive of 

recycling and recovery operations where it can be demonstrated that facilities will not 

have adverse effects of amenity or environment. The types of waste technology that 

will be suitable will depend on the nature and scale of the proposed scheme and the 

characteristics of the site and its surroundings (8.2.6). 

Amend policy 1 to make it clear 

that proposals for recovery will 

need to include heat recovery 

unless there are special 

circumstances 

Strategic Objective  2 / 

Strategic Objective 3 

Disposal of non-inert waste to landfill 

should be explored further  

Resident The Disposal of non-inert waste has been adequately considered and is specifically 

addressed in the Waste Needs Assessment and covered by Policy 6. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective  2 / Supports moving towards zero waste - but 

do not agree that additional incineration 

Residents This concern is noted. However, energy from waste is one of the waste management 

methods that the council have to plan for.  Once full assessment work and modelling 

Sites allocated in the plan are 

undergoing assessment work to 

P
age 89



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 26 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

Strategic Objective 3 capacity has a part to play in this/ should 

not be based on incineration 

has been carried out, the council will have a better picture of what the likely impacts 

would be of a worst case scenario waste facility at each site. This will enable us to 

see what types of waste facility will be suitable at each site. Once this stage has been 

reached, further information will be available about what waste facility could feasibly 

go at each site. The plan states…policy is not technology specific so that the SWLP is 

able to react to new technologies that be developed in the future (8.2.5)…Generally 

the county council is supportive of recycling and recovery operations where it can be 

demonstrated that facilities will not have adverse effects of amenity or environment. 

The types of waste technology that will be suitable will depend on the nature and 

scale of the proposed scheme and the characteristics of the site and its surroundings 

(8.2.6). 

understand the impact of 

locating waste management 

facility types at each allocated 

site and whether EfW would or 

would not be suitable. 

Strategic Objective  2 / 

Strategic Objective 3 

Argues that there is an unnecessary 

emphasis on "zero waste to landfill" - risks 

pushing us towards incineration and that 

more consideration should be awarded to 

the biodegradable fractions of waste 

streams 

Resident and 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The council acknowledge this concern. Zero waste to landfill is a target to ensure that 

waste to landfill is a last resort, once all other options have been exhausted. 

Incineration is an effective widely used type of waste management that must be 

considered. The plan states…policy is not technology specific so that the SWLP is 

able to react to new technologies that may be developed in the future 

(8.2.5)…Generally the county council is supportive of recycling and recovery 

operations where it can be demonstrated that facilities will not have adverse effects of 

amenity or environment. The types of waste technology that will be suitable will 

depend on the nature and scale of the proposed scheme and the characteristics of 

the site and its surroundings (8.2.6). Biodegradable waste is a component of 

household waste and commercial and industrial waste and is considered as part of 

the strategy for managing these waste streams. Proposals for separate management 

of food waste by composting and/or anaerobic digestion would be encouraged by 

Policy 1 of the plan. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 1 Supports the goal of net self sufficiency Resident, South 

London Waste 

Plan, East 

Sussex Council 

and Hampshire 

County Council 

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 2 / 

Strategic Objective 8 

Argue that targets for recycling should be 

higher and the council should be issuing 

more encouragement. 

 

Concern over whether EU targets will still 

be in place post Brexit/ will we still be 

Residents, CPRE 

Surrey, Capel 

Parish Council 

and Residents  

This concern is acknowledged. However, recycling targets must be achievable and 

consider that current targets are also ambitious. The plan states:  

"Targets for recycling, recovery and composting are set out at EU level in the WFD 

(2008/98/EC), the European Commission Circular Economy Package. At the national 

level targets are referred to in the Waste Management Plan for England. Local targets 

include those in the JMWMS (Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy). The 

draft version of the SWLP has calculated the need for waste infrastructure using 

No action arising 

P
age 90



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 27 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

interested in following their directives targets which are the same or more ambitious than those above" (6.2.2). 

The policies (specifically Policies 2, 3, 4, 5) "contribute to sustainable development by 

helping minimise waste pollution by encouraging sustainable waste management in 

line with the waste hierarchy" (6.2.5). 

"To implement the SWLP the county council will work with its partners to support 

initiatives that help meet local targets for prevention and re-use, recycling and 

recovery and prioritise development of facilities which allow management of waste 

further up the waste hierarchy" (6.7.2). 

It is acknowledgded that Brexit creates a degree of uncertainty with regard to targets 

and directives. However, until more information is available we are unable to 

incorporate potential changes to targets and directives in our plan. 

Strategic Objective 4 Concern at the prospect of sites being 

extended or expanded  

Resident Where appropriate the extension and expansion of existing sites is generally more 

efficient than developing new facilities. All relevant policies of the plan apply equally 

to proposals for extended sites to ensure that unacceptable impacts will not occur. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 4 Concern over strategic objective 6.3 and 

Policy 7 - is there a need to consider 

encroaching (non waste related 

development) 

Hampshire 

County Council 

Agree encroaching (non waste related development) should be considered. Changes to text to be made to 

ensure that proposals (and 

decisions on them) for 

development proximate to a 

safeguarded facility take account 

of the existence of the facility.  

Strategic Objective 4 Supports the safeguarding of existing waste 

sites against non waste development 

EGAP Recycling 

Ltd and WT 

Lambs Holding 

Ltd 

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 5 Concern that inadequate consideration has 

been given to the Green Belt 

Residents and 

Wonham Place 

RTM Ltd 

The issue of development in the Green Belt is addressed by Policy 9, which states 

that proposals for new or improved waste management facilities will be considered 

inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does 

not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that 

very special circumstances exist. The plan also states that: "It is not considered 

possible to meet the anticipated waste management needs of the county without 

developing waste management facilities on Green Belt land. The overarching need 

for waste management in Surrey combined with a lack of suitable alternative sites 

outside the Green Belt and the need to locate facilities close to sources of waste are 

reasons why it is considered that very special circumstances may exist allowing 

development within the Green Belt (8.7.4). Mineral development is not inappropriate 

development in the Green Belt, provided that it preserves the openness of the Green 

Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. Waste 

No action arising. 

P
age 91



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 28 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

development which is related to the restoration of mineral sites can play a positive 

role in the objectives of the Green Belt. For example, restoration can result in a 

suitable after use of a site with opportunities for access to restored open countryside 

(8.7.5)." 

Strategic Objective 5 Concern over strategic objective 6.4 - It will 

be useful to have sites/areas identified - 

Perhaps reference Appendix 1 at this point 

Hampshire 

County Council 

Agree this objective needs to be reconsidered as it will be preferable to develop 

capacity on brownfield land outside the Green Belt than at the sites allocated in the 

Green Belt. 

Amend Objective 5 and 

associated text. 

Strategic Objective 5 Concern that not enough information has 

been provided on what will be going where 

and that existing sites are not necessarily 

suitable for new processes, thus it is 

important to determine what uses are 

proposed 

Residents and 

CPRE Surrey 

Once full assessment work and modelling has been carried out, the council will have 

a better picture of the types of facility that might be suitable for the sites proposed for 

allocation. This will enable us to see what types of waste facility will be suitable at 

each site. Once this stage has been reached, further information will be available 

about what waste facility could feasibly go at each site.    

Carry out  assessment work and 

updated Annex 1 to specify what 

types of facility would be suitable 

at each locations 

Strategic Objective 5 

 

Argues that objective 5 should be reworded 
to add "best and suitable" sites 

 

Resident 

 

The text of Strategic Objective 5 needs to be reconsidered in light of the fact that the 
majority of the allocated sites are within the Green Belt and it will be necessary for 
proposals for development in such locations to demonstrate that other non Green Belt 
sites, which would be more suitable, are not available. 

Update text of Strategic 
Objective 5 and associated text 

 

Strategic Objective 6 Concern that there is inadequate reference 

to landscape and environmental protection 

Resident and 

Surrey Hills 

AONB Board 

It is accepted that environmental protection is a key consideration. This is covered by 
Policy 14, which seeks to ensure that planning permission for waste development will 
be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 
impact on the environment and specifically references the appearance, quality and 
character of development in the landscape. Detailed technical assessment is being 
undertaken to better understand the likely impact of waste development at each of the 
sites and the potential implications upon the environment. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 6 Concern that the plan is not workable when 

you consider issues surrounding the sites 

e.g. flooding, traffic, road disruption and 

proximity to houses 

Residents This matter is specifically covered by Policy 14, which seeks to ensure that planning 

permission for waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, 

including the general amenity. Policy 14 covers, flooding and proximity to houses. 

Further to this, Policy 15 covers traffic and road disruption. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 6 Concern that air quality has not been given 

enough consideration 

Residents Air Quality considerations are covered by Strategic Objective 6 and addressed by 

Policy 14, which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact 

on communities and the environment, with specific reference to air quality. 

No action arising. 

Strategic Objective 6 Support the intention of objective 6 to 

achieve sustainable development of new 

waste management facilities and the 

specific reference to the historic 

Historic England The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

P
age 92



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 29 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

environment in 8.9.4. 

Strategic Objective 6 Argue that more reference is needed to the 

Thames Basin SPA - particularly relevant 

due to their sensitivity to air quality  

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

Habitats Regulation Assessment is being prepared that will take account of potential 

impacts on the Thames Basin Heath due to air quality.  SPAs are covered by Policy 

14, which states that planning permission for waste development will be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment and specifically highlights areas with biodiversity 

conservation interests, which SPAs would come under. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

outcomes of the Habitats 

Regulation Assessment 

Strategic Objective 7 Concern that there are already too many 

HGV movement, any new development 

should have separate M25 access 

Resident This concern is acknowledged. Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements 

associated with the development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not 

have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Detailed Transport 

Assessment is being carried out, which will highlight specific issues regarding 

transport associated with development at any of the sites proposed for allocation. 

Assessment work being carried 

out will highlight the potential 

impacts to traffic caused by 

development at the sites 

proposed for allocation. 

Strategic Objective 7 Supports the use of rail networks over 

highways 

W T Lamb 

Holding Ltd 

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Vision Argue that the vision needs supplementing 
with a fourth theme that treats waste as a 
range of resources 
 

Guildford 
Residents 
Association 
 

This is addressed in section 8.2 Sustainable Waste Management that states: "A 
resource efficient economy is one where fewer resources are used to produce more, 
making the most of those resources by keeping them in use for as long as possible, 
extracting the maximum value from them whilst in use, then recovering and 
regenerating products and materials at the end of each service life. This includes by 
preventing waste being generated in the first place (8.2.2)." 
 

The authority will consider 
adding to the vision and make 
specific reference to waste being 
seen as a resource 
 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General  

Argue that the scenario chosen is the worst 

for climate change and CO2 emissions 

Residents and 

CPRE Surrey 

However, this issue is addressed through Policies 13 and 15. Policy 13 states that 

planning permission for waste development will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that development follows best practice for built design. And clearly sets 

out that all waste development should demonstrate that the development includes 

measures to minimise greenhouse gas emissions, including through energy efficiency 

and maximising the use of lower-carbon energy generation such as heat recovery 

and the recovery of energy from gas produced from the waste activity. Further to this, 

Policy 15 sets out that rail or water transportation should be considered and if 

unsuitable, vehicle movements associated with the development should be 

minimised, minimising emissions. 

No action arising. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Support the aims of the SWP Ewhurst and 

Ellens Green 

Parish Council 

and Coast to 

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising 

P
age 93



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 30 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

Capital LEP 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Concern that more regard needs to be 

given to the protection of AONB locations 

Surrey Hills 

AONB Board 

It is accepted that the protection of the AONB is a key consideration. This is covered 

by Policy 14, which seeks to ensure that planning permission for waste development 

will be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment and specifically references the appearance, quality and 

character of development in the landscape, with regard to the AONB.  

Surrey County Council will 

consider adding more reference 

to the AONB, specifically 

references to the appearance, 

quality and character of 

development in the landscape. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Supports the goal to encourage residents 

and businesses to produce less waste, 

reuse, recycle and recover more waste 

Woking Borough 

Council and 

Coast to Capital 

LEP 

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Argue that there has been little or no 

provision of how the vision/strategy will be 

maintained and not abused by other 

pressures 

Resident The vision and objectives are realised through implementation of the policies of the 

plan when decisions on planning applications for the development of waste 

management facilities are made.  

No action arising. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Argue that zero waste to landfill is 

unrealistic - vision should be reworded as a 

longer term strategy 

Resident and WT 

Lambs Holding 

Ltd 

This is deliberately aspirational. A component of the vision is 'to encourage residents 

and businesses to produce less waste and re-use, recycle and recover more waste'. 

The targets for diversion away from landfill shown in table 4, indicate 6%-0% by 2033 

which is a longer term strategy. Para 8.5.1 recognises that Ddisposal of waste is "the 

least preferred option for waste management in the waste hierarchy, however it is an 

option Surrey County Council still need to plan for." 

No action arising 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Argues that waste facilities are a vital 

provision for economic growth and the 

inclusion of them/plan for them is supported 

WT Lamb 

Holding Ltd   

The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Concern that one of the vision statements 

should be about environmental protection 

Resident This is covered by the third statement: To recognise the value of Surrey's 

environment and maintain the high standards of wellbeing enjoyed by our residents 

when permitting waste facilities.  

No action arising. 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Concern over the third element of the vision 

- recognising the environment and 

maintaining the high level of wellbeing 

standards - how does increased pollution, 

fumes, HGVs, smell etc. lead to this?  

Residents This is addressed by Strategic Objective 6 and Policy 14 states that planning 

permission for waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the environment 

including the general amenity (covers fumes, smell etc.). This issue is also addressed 

by Policy 15, which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that vehicle movements associated with the 

No action arising. 

P
age 94



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 31 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

development are minimised.  

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Argue that the revised vision is poorly 

structured  

Resident The council note this comment. The Vision is intended to set out the intended 

overarching outcomes arising from implementation of the plan. 

 No action arising 

Vision and Strategic 

Objectives - General 

Argue that the plan in its current state will 

not be able to "maintain the high standards 

of wellbeing enjoyed by its residents" 

Resident  Unplanned development of waste management facilities would likely impact 

negatively on the high standards of wellbeing enjoyed by residents. The policies of 

the plan are drafted to ensure that communities are adversely impacted by waste 

development. Policy 14 states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact 

on communities and the environment including the general amenity (covers fumes, 

smell etc.). This issue is also addressed by Policy 15, which states that planning 

permission for waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

vehicle movements associated with the development are minimised.  

No action arising. 

Spatial Strategy Concern over the spatial approach 

outlined in the SWLP and its inability to 

address Surrey's waste arisings, which 

are clearly not being met  

Bridge Court 

Holding Ltd 

It is noted that the spatial strategy reflects the geography of Surrey and of planning 

for waste on the basis of net self-sufficiency. The plan is intended to ensure that 

there will be sufficient capacity to manage an amount of waste that is equivalent to 

that arising in Surrey. 

No action arising 

Concern that the plans are not consistent 

with government policies relating to the 

greenbelt 

Residents The approach to Green Belt is intended to be consistent with national policy.  Check that the policy is 

consistent with national policy 

on Green Belt. 

Concern that more should be being done 

to discourage single-use products and 

encourage reuse and recycling 

Resident, 

CPRE Surrey 

and Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

This comment is acknowledged and would like to provide assurances that it 

encourages reuse and recycling through its function as the Waste Disposal 

Authority for Surrey. 

No action arising 

Supports the long term aims of the plan 

and suggests that they appear 

sustainable  

Resident The support for this element of the draft plan is acknowledged. No action arising. 

Concern that there has not been enough 

mention or consideration of the AONB 

Surrey Hills 

AONB Board 

The protection of the AONB is a key consideration and this is covered by Policy 14, 

that seeks to ensure that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment and specifically references the appearance, quality and 

character of development in the landscape, with regard to the AONB. [check 

consistent with proposed response to AONB board comments on policies] 

Surrey County Council will 

consider adding more 

reference to the AONB, 

specifically references to the 

appearance, quality and 

character of development in 

P
age 95



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 32 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

the landscape. 

Concern that the report needs a well-

structured summary 

Residents A separate non-technical Summary was provided. Update non-technical 

summary 

Argues that existing sites should all be 

reviewed based on the consultation 

representations - in some cases there 

has been a change in circumstances 

(Sites Martyrs Lane) 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

Each site is being reviewed with respect to consultation representations.  No action arising 

Concern that there has been no joined 

up thinking between the plans for 

housing and incinerators - Multiple sites 

where they could have been integrated 

within housing developments 

Resident Any proposals for waste management that would result in the utilisation of heat and 

energy in new housing development would be encouraged by policies of the plan. 

Amend policy 1 to make it 

clear that proposals for 

recovery will need to include 

heat recovery unless there are 

special circumstances.  

Concern that there has been no specific 

allocation of sites for C,D and E recycling  

Cappagh 

Group Ltd 

Policy 3 addresses proposals for C, D & E recycling and states that planning 

permission will be granted where it meets certain criteria, and that development of 

new or improved C,D&E waste recycling operations located with other types of 

development will be supported where it can be demonstrated that there are 

benefits from the co-location.  The SWLP is generally supportive of C, D & E 

recycling in conjunction with operational mineral workings (4.5.3)... No allocations 

are proposed for C, D & E recycling facilities. This is because historically those 

facilities have come forward as temporary facilities in line with operational mineral 

workings and the issue is also addressed in the council’s adopted Aggregates 

Recycling Joint Development Plan Document. The WPA believes that this is likely 

to continue (4.6.3). 

Provide a supporting 

document setting out the 

council’s position on C,D & E 

waste 

Concern that relying solely on temporary 

facilities coming forward on mineral 

working sites is not considered a sound 

approach 

Cappagh 

Group Ltd 

No allocations are proposed for C, D & E recycling facilities because historically 

those facilities have come forward as temporary facilities in line with operational 

mineral workings and the issue is also addressed in the council’s adopted 

Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan Document. The council believes 

that this is likely to continue. 

No action arising 

Concern that there is no spatial strategy 

devised to take account of food waste  

Resident Food waste is a component of household waste and commercial and industrial 

waste and is considered as part of the strategy for managing these waste streams. 

Proposals for separate management of food waste by composting and/or 

anaerobic digestion would be encouraged by Policy 1 of the plan. 

No action arising 

P
age 96



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 33 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

Concern that there is no discussion of 

moving towards a circular economy 

Resident The plan recognises the EU Circular Economy Action Plan at paragraph 3.18. The 

plan is consistent with the Circular Economy principles. 

Add text to show how the plan 

has a role in achieving a 

circular economy 

Argue that this document should be 

renamed and reformatted to become a 

'County Resource Management Strategy' 

- less focused on disposal, more focused 

on recycling, reuse and prevention  

Resident The term 'resource' includes elements that the plan does not have a remit to plan 

for - for example minerals, water and energy - use of this term may therefore cause 

uncertainty regarding the scope of the plan. 

No action arising 

Concern that there are significant flaws 

with the population projections for 

Guildford - there is a failure to include 

recordings of students returning home 

after their studies  

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The Waste Needs Assessment will be refreshed prior to the next stage of the plan 

to ensure that the data is as current as possible, a review of the methodology to 

ensure it is as robust as possible will also be undertaken.  

Review population 

projections. 

Argue that waste streams need to be 

broken down by composition rather than 

simply origin 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The approach of planning for waste based on its origin is consistent with planning 

Practice Guidance. 

No action arising 

Concern that the plan is too focused on 

energy recovery rather than material 

recovery - Lack of attention/concern has 

been given to ensuring biodegradable 

material is directed to biological 

treatment  

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

This is addressed by Policy 1 that is intended to ensure that waste is managed as 

far up the waste hierarchy as possible. 

No action arising 

Concern that they would like to see a 

target of 100% biodegradable 

material/waste being reused or subject to 

biological treatment 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

This is addressed by Policy 1 that is intended to ensure that waste is managed as 

far up the waste hierarchy as possible. 

No action arising 

Suggest that table 7 (4.4.2) should 

distinguish between thermal and 

biological recovery 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The term 'other recovery' in this table encompasses biological treatment - this is 

explained in the text below the table. 

No action arising 

Argue that they cannot accept that no 

sites are required for recycling 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The Waste Needs Assessment established that sufficient recycling capacity exists. 

This takes account of the fact that some existing recycling facilities are not 

operating at full capacity. The development of new recycling capacity is supported 

by the plan. 

No action arising 

P
age 97



A p p e n d i x  5  -  V i s i o n ,  O b j e c t i v e s  a n d  S p a t i a l  S t r a t e g y  | 34 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments  Raised by Response Any action arising 

Argues that 6.2.7. should include an 

expectation that waste will be treated 

prior to landfill to ensure it is stable 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

This is addressed by paragraph 8.5.2 that states: "Sites for the disposal of non-

inert waste to land are becoming more specialised. Waste sent to landfill should be 

the residue following other types of treatment such as recycling and recovery that 

cannot be dealt with in any other way" and Policy 6 that states: "planning 

permission for development involving disposal of waste to land operations will be 

granted where: 

i) The waste to be disposed of is the residue of a treatment process and cannot 

practicably and reasonably be re-used, recycled or recovered;" 

No action arising 

Argue that the plan was not easy to 

understand  

Residents The council acknowledge this concern. We will review how we format and publish 

document, to avoid confusion in future consultations. 

Review how we format and 

publish documents. 

Spatial Context Argue that figure 2 in the plan should show 

the Surrey Hills AONB 

Surrey Hills 

AONB Board, 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

The council welcomes this suggestion. Add a layer to the map (Figure 2) 

to show the extent of the AONB 

in Surrey. 

   

P
age 98



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 35 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 6 – Sites proposed for allocation 

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

 Argues that the reuse or extension of an existing 

site (Martyrs Lane) is less likely to inconvenience 

nearby residents/businesses 

Residents and 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the draft 

plan 

No action arising 

  Argues that Martyrs Lane is close to a town but 

away from most residential areas (out of the 

way) 

Residents  The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the draft  No action arising 

  Concern that the Martyrs Lane site is within a 

rural setting and hence is inappropriate  

Residents and 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

A desktop assessment of the site suggests that there are no features, 

that could be associated with the site's rural setting, that would be 

especially sensitive to development in this location however further 

assessment work is being undertaken to verify this position and to 

ensure that any development is of a scale, form and character 

appropriate to its location. Policy 14 of the plan states that planning 

permission would only be granted if it could be demonstrated that there 

would be no unacceptable impact on communities and the environment 

including on the landscape and any features that contribute to its 

distinctiveness; and on the natural environment, biodiversity and 

geological conservation interests including green infrastructure. 

Update Annex 1 to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that the Martyrs Lane site is within 

greenbelt  and so is inappropriate  

Residents, New 

Zealand Golf 

Course and The 

Chertsey 

Society 

The Martyrs Lane site is located within the Green Belt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Green Belt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 99



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 36 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

  Concern that development at Martyrs Lane 

would create more traffic and move the existing 

road network even further over capacity and is 

too far from Junction 11 of the M25 

Residents, 

Runnymede 

Borough 

Council, The 

Chertsey 

Society and 

Surrey Heath 

Borough Council 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Before the draft 

plan goes any further, a detailed Transport Assessment will be carried 

out, which will assess the acceptability of the site, in terms of impacts on 

the highway network. This assessment will also highlight any concerns, 

which can then be addressed/mitigated against. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that development at Martyrs Lane 

would result in a decrease in the quality of life of 

local residents 

Residents Any proposal for development of this site would need to be consistent 

with Policy 14 that seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, 

vibration, illumination etc. Any emissions from the site would be 

regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure they do not cause harm 

to human health. Further assessment is being undertaken to assess 

potential for health impacts arising from development at this site. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that noise pollution would occur if site 

were developed 

Resident and 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

The relatively rural location of this site does mean that there are fewer 

receptors sensitive to noise which are proximate to this site. The 

potential for development at the site to cause nuisance due to noise 

would be considered and likely conditioned at the planning application 

stage. The potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, 

which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

P
age 100



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 37 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

impact on communities and the environment in terms of noise. assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that any development at Martyrs Lane 

will increase undesirable smells in the area 

Resident Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour. District and Borough Council 

environmental health controls will also help ensure that nuisance caused 

by odour does not occur. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure odour does not cause a 

nuisance to local sensitive receptors. 

  The Martyrs Lane site is located within close 

proximity to Horsell Common 

Residents, the 

RSPB and 

Surrey Heath 

Borough Council 

Protection of Horsell Common is in part provided for by Policy 14, which 

only allows development where it can be demonstrated that there will be 

no unacceptable impact on the natural environment, biodiversity and 

geological conservation interests including green infrastructure. Horsell 

Common as a SSSI, will of course be protected and impacts will, once 

identified, be minimised, if development is deemed appropriate and 

permission is granted. 

Assessment work is being carried out which 

considers the potential impact on the surrounding 

area, in terms of landscape and visual impact, 

impact of air quality and impact on flood risk.  The 

need to ensure protection of Horsell Common SSSI 

has been included in the key development 

requirements associated with the site in the 

updated Annex 1. 

  Development at Martyrs Lane will have a 

detrimental effect upon air quality/pollution in the 

local area 

Residents, 

Surrey Heath 

Borough 

Council, The 

Chertsey 

Society and the 

RSPB 

Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

 Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concern that the site is not deliverable because 

of its inclusion in the 2008 plan and that it has 

not been developed. 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan 

though this is subject to further detailed technical assessment currently 

being undertaken. The plan includes a range of deliverable sites to 

provide certainty and flexibility in ensuring that waste management 

capacity requirements can be achieved. 

Further detailed technical assessment will help 

assist in establishing whether proposed sites will be 

deliverable over the plan period. 

P
age 101



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 38 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

  Concern that development should not be 

encouraged at Martyrs Lane because it is not an 

established industrial area 

Resident This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). The site identification process did 

not identify any suitable industrial areas where there was certainty that 

new strategic waste management capacity could be delivered. However 

it is noted that it is generally preferable to develop existing industrial 

sites and the plan will be updated to make this clear. Indeed, for a 

proposal to be acceptable in this location it would be necessary to 

demonstrate that alternative suitable industrial sites are not available.  

Text of plan to be amended to confirm that, if 

possible and practicable, suitable industrial land 

should be developed in preference to greenfield 

sites. 

  Concern that the Martyrs Lane site is unsuitable 

due to the width of Martyrs Lane and other roads 

in the surrounding area (Holloway Hill), making it 

unsuitable for HGVs and the potential for the 

road to be used as a cut through 

Residents, New 

Zealand Golf 

Course, The 

Chertsey 

Society and 

Cappagh Group 

The waste planning authority note that the increase in HGVs as a result 

of the development of a waste facility is a key concern for residents, 

businesses and people who frequently use the local road network. This 

has been implemented via Transport Assessment is being carried out to 

assess the potential impacts on the highway network of traffic (including 

HGVs) resulting from waste management development in this location. 

The results of this assessment will be taken into account in the 

preparation of this plan including in the assessment of the suitability of 

this site. In accordance with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for 

development at this site will have to demonstrate that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the safety and capacity of the highway network, 

that there could be a safe and adequate means of access to the highway 

network and waste is able to be transported using the Lorry Route 

Network with minimal vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any 

planning permission that is granted would likely be subject to conditions 

on opening times and/or vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption 

to the surrounding road network. 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment, which will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that the proximity to residential 

properties of the Martyrs Lane site might mean it 

will be inadequately screened and cause visual 

intrusion 

Residents and 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

Detailed landscape and visual impact assessment is being carried out to 

assess the potential impacts on visual amenity resulting from waste 

management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment including general amenity. The policy 

specifically references how the appearance of any development needs 

to be taken into account in any proposal, however an amendment is 

proposed to make it clear that impacts on 'general amenity' include those 

associated with visual amenity. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements 

concerning mitigation of impacts on visual amenity, 

identified by the assessment, which will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. Protection of visual 

amenity to be strengthened by amendments to 

Policy 14. 

P
age 102



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 39 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

  Concerns over the proximity of Martyrs Lane to 

Longcross Garden Village 

Runnymede 

borough Council 

and The 

Chertsey 

Society 

It is accepted that this a concern for many. Policy 14 addresses this 

where it states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development (The Garden village Proposal). And, in 

Policy 15, that states, planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that vehicle movements are 

minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an unacceptable 

impact on the highway network, therefore other users of the network, 

which would take into account the cumulative impact of traffic from both 

the waste development and the Garden village proposal. 

Assessment work is being undertaken to enable us 

to better understand the potential impact upon the 

local road network of the cumulative impacts of both 

the developments. The results of this work will 

inform the next stage of the plan and will give the 

council a better understanding of the likely impacts 

on the surrounding transport network. This will 

enable us to identify issues and attempt to resolve, 

limit and/or mitigate their presence. Furthermore, 

the implications of development for transport are 

required to be assessed at the application stage. 

Development that is permitted could be subject to 

conditions on opening times and/or vehicle 

movements, thus minimising the disruption to the 

surrounding road network. 

  Concern that any development at Martyrs Lane 

would lead to increased vibrations 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

The waste planning authority accept that increased vibrations will be a 

concern of residents and businesses. Policy 14 of the plan is intended to 

ensure that planning permission for waste development will only be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, and this 

includes impacts caused by vibration. Policy 15, concerning the transport 

of waste, is intended to ensure that the use of HGVs is minimised and 

does not cause unacceptable impacts. 

No arising actions. 

  Concern that development at Martyrs Lane 

would adversely impact users of the New 

Zealand Golf Course 

New Zealand 

Golf Course 

The waste planning authority note that many local residents and 

businesses are concerned about how their home/business will be 

affected. This is implemented through Policy 14, which states that 

planning permission for waste development will be granted where it can 

be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment. Further detailed assessment work is 

being undertaken, to ensure that Surrey CC is able to fully appreciate 

the impacts a waste development will have and to conclude what is and 

isn't suitable at each site. Following this, when a better picture of the 

likely impacts can be identified, the council will be able to attempt to 

resolve any impacts/mitigate against them. Annex 1 will be updated to 

require that any proposals for waste development in this location take 

account of the need to ensure that this would not result in unacceptable 

impacts on the golf course and its users. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that development at Martyrs Lane Residents, It is accepted that impact to birds and wildlife is a key concern of many  Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

P
age 103



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 40 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

would adversely impact bird and wildlife species 

and habitats 

Natural 

England, New 

Zealand Golf 

Course, Surrey 

Heath Borough 

Council and the 

RSPB 

residents and public bodies. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission 

will only be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be 

an unacceptable impact on the environment, including the natural 

environment, biodiversity and geological conservation interests. Detailed 

technical assessment is being undertaken to better understand the likely 

impact of a waste development at Martyrs Lane and the potential 

implications it will have on bird and wildlife species and habitats. This 

work should enable the council to better understand what the likely 

impact upon the bird and wildlife species and habitats will be. This work 

may include Habitats Regulation Assessment to assess the impact of 

development on any European designated sites, thus the potential 

impacts will be closely studied to ensure any issues will be 

addressed/mitigated. 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Land east of Martyrs Lane is being considered 

by Woking BC for safeguarding in its Site 

Allocations DPD for development. 

Woking Borough 

Council 

This matter has been subject to DtC discussions between officers of the 

two councils. The landowner has made it clear that, in the event of the 

land to the east of Martyrs Lane being safeguarded by the borough 

council to meet long term housing needs, then this would in effect 

supersede the waste allocation such that they would no longer wish the 

site to be progressed as a waste site. 

Continue to liaise with Woking BC regarding 

allocation of this site for housing in the Woking Site 

Allocations DPD.  

  Concern over the Martyrs Lane sites' proximity 

to ancient woodland 

Natural England The waste planning authority accept that some are concerned with 

Martyrs Lane and the sites proximity to ancient woodland. The 

avoidance of unacceptable impacts on Ancient Woodland is dealt with 

through Policy 14, which sets out that planning permission for waste 

development will only be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on the environment and this 

specifically includes Ancient Woodland. 

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the Ancient Woodland as a key development 

management matter to which any proposal for 

development will need to have particular regard.  

  Concerns over the proximity of the Martyrs Lane 

site to Chobham Common SPA 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society 

It is accepted that impact to birds and wildlife is a key concern of many 

residents and public bodies. This is implemented via Policy 14, which 

sets out that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment, including the natural environment, biodiversity and 

geological conservation interests. 

Assessment work will need to be undertaken to 

better understand the likely impact of a waste 

development at Martyrs Lane, this will to some 

extent include potential implications it will have on 

bird and wildlife species and habitats. Assessment 

work is being undertaken, including Sustainability 

Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment, 

which together will form the Environment and 

Sustainability report. This work should enable the 

council to better understand what the likely impact 

will be. Further to this, a Habitats Regulation 

Assessment will be required to assess the impact of 

P
age 104



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 41 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Martyrs Lane 

development on a European designated site, thus 

the potential impacts will be studied.  Annex 1 to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment, which 

will need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concern that any development at Martyrs Lane 

might reduce Surrey's recycling capacity 

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising 

  Concern that the Martyrs Lane site is within a 

proposed biodiversity opportunity area 

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14, which sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Assessment work being carried out will enable the 

council to better understand likely impacts at each 

site.  Annex 1 will be updated to make specific 

reference to the proposed biodiversity opportunity 

area as this is a key development management 

matter to which any proposal for development will 

need to have particular regard.  

P
age 105



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 42 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land to the north east of Slyfield Industrial Estate, Guildford 

 Concern over the resultant smell of any 

development at the Slyfield site 

Residents This concern is noted. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment and lists 

odour as a key consideration. 

No action arising  

  Concern over the resultant noise from any 

development at the Slyfield site 

Residents The relatively rural location of this site does mean that there are fewer 

receptors sensitive to noise which are proximate to this site. The 

potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, which states 

that planning permission for waste development will be granted where it 

can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment in terms of noise. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Argues that the site description needs to be 

amended - currently claims that Slyfield is 

undeveloped land - Incorrect, it is zone 3b 

floodplain 

Resident The council note that the site is mostly undeveloped, but includes two 

areas previously used for the landfilling of a range of waste materials (as 

in Annexe 1). It is noted that the majority of the site is classified as Zone 

1 for fluvial flood risk and the southern part of the site is underlain by a 

Zone 3 SPZ designation (as in the Environmental and Sustainability 

Report). 

Update Annexe 1 to reflect that the majority of the 

site is located in Zone 1 for fluvial flood risk and the 

southern part of the site is underlain by a Zone 3 

SPZ designation (to reflect the Environmental and 

Sustainability Report Annex C4.E.2.4) 

  Concern over the Slyfield site being located in 

the greenbelt 

Residents and 

Guildford 

Borough Council 

As set out in Annexe 1, the majority of the site is urban land. A small 

area of the allocated site is within land designated as Green Belt. Any 

application for land within the Green Belt will need to demonstrate very 

special circumstances. Any application should demonstrate how it 

complies with Policy 9 and the NPPF. 

No action arising 

  Concern over the Slyfield site being located on a 

floodplain 

Residents This concern is noted. We have already considered the flood risk and do 

not consider it is sufficient at this site to discount the Slyfield site as 

unsuitable. The issue of flood risk is covered by Policy 14, which states 

that planning permission will be granted where it can be demonstrated 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the 

environment, specifically in terms of flood risk. 

 Annexe 1 will be updated with the outcomes of a 

Sttrategic Flood Risk Assessment.  

  Concern over the Slyfield site having limited 

access 

Resident Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment, which will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 106



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 43 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land to the north east of Slyfield Industrial Estate, Guildford 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

  Concern that any development at the Slyfield 

site might reduce Surrey's recycling capacity  

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  Concern that the Slyfield site is being proposed 

on already contaminated land  

Residents As set out in Annexe 1, the majority of the site is undeveloped, but does 

include two areas of previously used for the landfilling of a range of 

waste materials. Any development would have to consider contamination 

as part of their proposal and application. Policy 14 sets out that planning 

permission will be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will 

not be an unacceptable impact relating to contamination of land or 

groundwater. 

No action arising. 

  Concern over the Slyfields sites' proximity to 

ancient woodland 

Natural England It is accepted that some are concerned with the Slyfield site and the sites 

proximity to ancient woodland. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts 

on Ancient Woodland is dealt with through Policy 14, which sets out that 

planning permission for waste development will only be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

the environment and this specifically includes Ancient Woodland. 

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the Ancient Woodland as a key development 

management matter to which any proposal for 

development will need to have particular regard.  

  Argue that existing roads and junction 

surrounding the sites should be improved 

Residents The council acknowledges these comments and highlight that in some 

cases the road network around sites is improved to mitigate impacts of 

the development or s106 money is provided that can support the local 

road infrastructure. Policy 15 states that development must ensure: there 

is safe and adequate means of access to the highway network and 

vehicle movements associated with the development will not have an 

adverse impact on the safety of the highway network; 

No action arising. 

  Concern that with regards to the Slyfield site, no 

new roads should be built, especially not across 

greenbelt or on a floodplain  

Resident The plan is allocating Slyfield as suitable for waste development and 

does not propose any new access. 

No action arising. 

  Concern that any proposed development at the Resident Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

P
age 107



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 44 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land to the north east of Slyfield Industrial Estate, Guildford 

Slyfield site will increase congestion in the area unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Transport 

Assessment will be carried out, which will assess the acceptability of the 

site, in terms of impacts on the highway network. This assessment will 

also highlight any concerns, which can then be addressed/mitigated 

against. 

assessment, which will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concerns over the limited space around the 

Slyfield site 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

It is noted  this concern but notes that the site has been included for 

allocation as it is considered capable of delivering adequate capacity to 

be seen as a potential strategic site. 

No arising action 

  Concern over the Slyfield site being located 

within a biodiversity opportunity area 

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

The council note that the location of the Slyfield site within a proposed 

biodiversity opportunity area will be a concern for some. The avoidance 

of unacceptable impacts on biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14, 

which sets out that planning permission for waste development will only 

be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the environment and this specifically includes 

biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Assessment work being carried out will enable the 

council to better understand the issues and adjust 

the plan accordingly.  Annex 1 will be updated to 

make reference to the proposed biodiversity 

opportunity area.  

P
age 108



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 45 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

 Concern that the Earlswood site is not 

deliverable, as it was included in the 2008 plan 

and it is not yet in use 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan. The 

plan includes a range of deliverable sites to provide certainty and 

flexibility in ensuring that waste management capacity requirements can 

be achieved. 

No arising action 

  Concern that the Earlswood site is too close to 

schools 

Resident Policy 14 that states that planning permission will be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development (schools). Policy 15, states planning 

permission for waste development will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle 

movements will not have an unacceptable impact on the highway 

network, therefore other users of the network, which would include those 

crossing roads. 

Assessment work is being carried out to enable us 

to better understand the potential impact upon the 

local road network, which will inform the next stage 

of the plan. Annex 1 to be updated to include any 

specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken 

into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. Should any development 

be permitted it could be subject to conditions on 

opening times and/or vehicle movements, thus 

minimising the disruption to the surrounding road 

network.  

  Concern that the Earlswood site is too close to a 

major hospital 

Resident Policy 14 that states planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, this would include the hospital. It is also dealt with through 

Policy 15, which states that planning permission will be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that vehicle movements associated with the 

development will not have an unacceptable impact on the capacity of the 

highway network, minimising the impact of any development on the 

vehicle movements to and from the hospital, including emergency 

vehicles. 

No action arising 

  Concern that the Earlswood site is too small to 

make it feasible  

Resident and 

Salfords and 

Sidlow PC  

The Earlswood site has been subject to the same series of sieves as all 

other sites. The site is considered to be capable of delivering the 

capacity required of a strategic site. 

No action arising 

  Concern over the suitability of the Earlswood site 

because it is not close to a major source of 

waste  

Salfords and 

Sidlow PC 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. The Earlswood 

site is located within Reigate and Banstead district which is a key 

population area. The proximity principle, which this concern relates to, is 

Assessment work being carried out will highlight 

potential impacts to traffic in the area. Annex 1 to 

be updated to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment, which will need to be taken 

P
age 109



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 46 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

dealt with by our spatial strategy, which states that development should 

consider key areas and centres of growth and addresses the polycentric 

nature of Surrey's settlements by including a range of locations. The 

nature of these settlements means that there is no one major source of 

waste arising. Therefore, good transport links might be more important 

than being located within geographic proximity to key centres. Thus, 

creating a need for a network of connected sites, able to enable the 

efficient management of waste.  

into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that with reference to the Earlswood 

site, the plan should clearly state that the site is 

directly adjacent to a site of Nature Conservation 

Importance and a Local Nature Reserve - any 

development should be designed not to have a 

negative impact on these designations 

Reigate and 

Banstead 

District Council 

The council note that the impact of the development on the environment 

is a key concern for many. This is dealt with through Policy 14, that sets 

out that planning permission for waste development will be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment and specifically makes reference to 

minimising impact on the natural environment. 

Assessment work being carried out will enable the 

council to better understand the issues and adjust 

the plan accordingly.  Assessment work is being 

undertaken that should enable the council to fully 

understand the likely impact that a waste 

development will have on the surrounding area. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment, which will need to be taken 

into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that the plan should be more explicit 

that potential effects on nearby residents in 

terms of noise, air quality, odours etc.  should 

not reach unacceptable levels for residents of 

nearby properties   

Reigate and 

Banstead 

District Council  

Assessment work will be carried out to identify potential impacts to 

nearby residents. Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to 

assess the potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions 

resulting from waste management development in this location. In 

accordance with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at 

this site will have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment, including air quality. Any 

emissions from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency 

to ensure they do not cause harm to human health. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements to help 

ensure unacceptable impacts on air quality do not 

occur as a result of waste management 

development in this location. 

  Concern that the Earlswood site may have a 

negative impact on the surrounding area 

because of the visual intrusion it might cause 

Resident Work is being undertaken to assess the potential for impacts on visual 

amenity which will highlight any potential negative consequences, 

allowing them to be properly addressed/mitigated. Policy 14 seeks to 

ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment, and specifically references the appearance of any 

development, thus aiming to minimise the extent of visual intrusion. 

Policy 13 is intended to ensure that development Is of a scale, form and 

character appropriate to its location.  

Update Annex 1 to reflect the outcomes from the 

Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment. 

  Concern that any development at the Earlswood Residents It is accepted that impactupon the environment is a key concern of many  Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

P
age 110



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 47 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

site will have a negative impact on the 

Earlswood Lakes and the surrounding area 

residents. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment, including the natural environment, 

biodiversity and geological conservation interests. Technical assessment 

is being undertaken to better understand the likely impact of a waste 

development at the Earlswood site and the potential implications upon 

the environment.  

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment work. 

  Argue that the Earlswood site is a suitable 

location 

Residents The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the draft 

plan 

No action arising 

  Concern that the development of the Earlswood 

site will have a negative impact upon air pollution 

and exacerbate an existing problem 

Residents Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site for different types 

and scales of development. In accordance with Policy 14 of the plan, any 

proposals for development at this site will have to demonstrate that there 

will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, 

including air quality. Any emissions from the site would be regulated by 

the Environment Agency to ensure they do not cause harm to human 

health. 

 Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concerns over any development at the 

Earlswood site that might result in an increase in 

cars/HGVs along Wood Hatch Road and Maple 

Road 

Residents Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Transport 

Assessment is being undertaken, which will assess the acceptability of 

the site, in terms of impacts on the highway network. This assessment 

will also highlight any concerns, which can then be addressed/mitigated. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

transport assessment that will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern over development at the Earlswood site 

leading to an increase in the risk of an accident 

occurring/ a deterioration of safety 

Residents Policy 14 states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development. Policy 15 states planning permission for 

waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle movements will not 

have an unacceptable impact on the highway network, therefore other 

users of the network, which would include those crossing roads. 

A Transport Assessment is being undertaken, to 

enable us to better understand the potential impact 

upon the local road network. This work should 

enable the council to get a better understanding of 

what the likely impacts will be on the surrounding 

transport network. Update Annexe 1 with the 

outcomes of the TA. 

  Concern that development on the Earlswood site 

would be inappropriate because of the sites 

Resident and 

Salfords and 

The Earlswood site is located within the Green Beltt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

P
age 111



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 48 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

location within the Green Belt Sidlow PC - in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

assessment work that will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that development on the Earlswood site 

would be inappropriate due to the proximity of the 

site to residential areas 

Residents Any proposal for development of this site would need to be consistent 

with Policy 14 that seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, 

vibration, illumination etc. Any emissions from the site would be 

regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure they do not cause harm 

to human health. Further assessment is being undertaken to assess 

potential for health impacts arising from development at this site. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

P
age 112



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 49 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

  Concern that development at the Earlswood site 

will create increased smells (both at present and in 

the future), which would be undesirable for local 

residents 

Residents Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour. 

No action arising 

  Concern that the Earlswood site would be 

inappropriate due to poor access to the site 

Resident, 

Cappagh Group 

and Salfords 

and Sidlow PC 

Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site for different types 

and scales of waste related development. In accordance with Policy 15 

of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will have to 

demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the safety 

and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe and 

adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is able to 

be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal vehicle 

movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that is 

granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that any development of the Earlswood 

site would lead to increased noise pollution 

Residents The relatively rural location of this site does mean that there are fewer 

receptors sensitive to noise which are proximate to this site. The 

potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, which states 

that planning permission for waste development will be granted where it 

can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment in terms of noise. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application. 

  Concern that any development at the Earlswood 

site will lead to a detrimental decrease in house 

prices in the local area 

Resident Whilst the plan makes no provision to stop any house price decrease it 

does, through Policy 14, state that planning permission will only be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and environment, including a 

range of considerations, specifically the general amenity. 

No action arising. 

  Concern that the proposed development at 

Earlswood might reduce recycling capacity 

Residents The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

No action arising. 

P
age 113



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 50 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land to the west of Earlswood Sewage Treatment Works, Redhill  

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

  Concern that the proposed site at Earlswood is 

partly within a biodiversity opportunity area 

Resident This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Assessment work being carried out will enable the 

council to better understand the issues and adjust 

the plan accordingly. Annex 1 will be updated to 

make specific reference to the proposed 

biodiversity opportunity area as this is a key 

development management matter to which any 

proposal for development will need to have 

particular regard.  

P
age 114



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 51 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land adjoining Leatherhead Sewage Treatment Works, Randalls Road, Leatherhead 

 Concern over the deliverability of the 

Leatherhead site, as it was named in the 2008 

plan and is not in use yet. Further to this, Sita 

and Grundons already have sites in the vicinity, 

raise the argument that Addlestone Quarry is a 

more deliverable site 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan 

though this is subject to further detailed technical assessment currently 

being undertaken. The plan includes a range of deliverable sites to 

provide certainty and flexibility in ensuring that waste management 

capacity requirements can be achieved. 

Further detailed technical assessment will help 

assist in establishing whether proposed sites will be 

deliverable over the plan period. 

  Concern over what type of waste development is 

being proposed at the Leatherhead site 

Mole Valley 

District Council 

Once full assessment work and modelling has been carried out, the 

council will have a better picture of what the likely impacts of different 

types of development would be at each site. This will enable us to 

determine which facility types are likely to be suitable at each site and if 

appropriate, what development criteria should be set to help mitigate any 

impact. 

Update Annexe 1 with the outcomes of assessment 

work. 

  Concern that the proposed site at Leatherhead 

would be unsuitable because of its location 

within the Green Beltt 

Residents The Leatherhead site is located within the Green Belt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Green Belt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

No action arising P
age 115



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 52 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land adjoining Leatherhead Sewage Treatment Works, Randalls Road, Leatherhead 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

  Concern that the proposed site at Leatherhead 

would increase carbon emission and air pollution 

in the area 

Residents Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

potential waste management development in this location. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

 Annex 1 will be updated with the outcomes of the 

AQIA. 

  Concern that development at the Leatherhead 

site would lead to a deterioration in road surface 

quality due to an increase in HGV movements 

Resident This concern is noted. Transport Assessment is being carried out to 

assess the potential impacts on the highway network of traffic (including 

HGVs) resulting from waste management development in this location. 

The results of this assessment will be taken into account in the 

preparation of this plan including in the assessment of the suitability of 

this site. In accordance with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for 

development at this site will have to demonstrate that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the safety and capacity of the highway network, 

that there could be a safe and adequate means of access to the highway 

network and waste is able to be transported using the Lorry Route 

Network with minimal vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any 

planning permission that is granted would likely be subject to conditions 

on opening times and/or vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption 

to the surrounding road network. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that any development at the 

Leatherhead site might have the negative impact 

of reducing Surrey's recycling capacity 

Residents The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

 No action arising 

  Concern that any development at the 

Leatherhead site might be inappropriate due to 

the proximity of the site to residential areas 

Residents Any proposal for development of this site would need to be consistent 

with Policy 14 that seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, 

vibration, illumination etc. Any emissions from the site would be 

regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure they do not cause harm 

to human health. Further assessment is being undertaken to assess 

potential for health impacts arising from development at this site. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

P
age 116



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 53 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land adjoining Leatherhead Sewage Treatment Works, Randalls Road, Leatherhead 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Argues that development at the Leatherhead site 

would be favourable as it is an existing site and 

so should be less disruptive  

Resident The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the draft 

plan 

No action arising 

  Concern that any development at the 

Leatherhead site may lead to a decrease in the 

air quality in the surrounding area 

Residents Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the likely 

impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from potential 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concern that the development at the 

Leatherhead site would be inappropriate 

because of the site being adjacent to a 

biodiversity opportunity area 

Natural England This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the proposed biodiversity opportunity area as this 

is a key development management matter to which 

any proposal for development will need to have 

particular regard.  

  Argues that more recycling would be preferable 

to development at the Leatherhead site  

Residents The Waste Needs Assessment identifies the need for different types of 

waste management facility in the county up until 2033 and identifies that 

there is no net capacity gap for recycling facilities. Regarding the 

suitability of particular sites for specific waste management facility types, 

the county council are assessing the suitability of each site for different 

types of facility and the next iteration of the plan will identify facility types 

that may not be suitable at particular sites. Lastly, the development 

proposals that come forward at any site will be market led.  

No action arising 

P
age 117



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 54 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

 Concern that the Lambs site is too near to the 

proposed "New village" 

Residents and 

Godstone 

Parish Council 

This is dealt with through Policy 14 that states planning permission will 

be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities, this would include the new 

housing development and any cumulative impacts resulting from both 

the housing and waste development. It is also dealt with through Policy 

15, which states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that vehicle movements associated with the development 

will not have an unacceptable impact on the capacity of the highway 

network, minimising the impact of any development on the vehicle 

movements to and from the site and the cumulative amount of vehicles 

from both the housing and waste development. Any waste related 

development will be assessed in combination with other development, 

both as part of the Waste Local Plan and at the application stage. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

Continue to liaise with Tandridge District Council. 

  Concern that the Lambs site will lead to increased 

traffic, potentially pushing the local road network 

over capacity 

Residents, 

Wonham Place 

Ltd, South 

Godstone 

Residents 

Association, 

Godstone 

Parish Council, 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group, 

Tandridge Lane 

Action Group 

and Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Transport 

Assessment is being carried out, which will assess the acceptability of 

the site, in terms of impacts on the highway network. This assessment 

will also highlight any concerns, which can then be addressed/mitigated 

against. 

Transport Assessment of the site. Annex 1 to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concern that any proposed development at Lambs 

might lead to increased air pollution in the area 

Residents, 

South Godstone 

Residents 

Association, 

Godstone 

Parish Council, 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group and 

Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

P
age 118



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 55 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

Tandridge Lane 

Action Group 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

  Concern that development at Lambs might lead to 

increased noise pollution 

Residents and 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group 

The relatively rural location of this site does mean that there are fewer 

receptors sensitive to noise which are proximate to this site. The 

potential for development at the site to cause nuisance due to noise 

would be considered and likely conditioned at the planning application 

stage. The potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, 

which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment in terms of noise. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Argue that Godstone shouldn’t have to deal with 

waste from elsewhere at the Lambs site 

Residents This view is acknowledged, however, as part of the Spatial Strategy, 

Surrey is aiming for net self-sufficiency in terms of waste treatment and 

disposal and as a result flows of waste will need to flow in and out of the 

county. Net self-sufficiency accepts that it is not practical to deal only 

with waste produced in Surrey and that cross-boundary waste 

movements, including those from London, will be necessary to support 

the viability and efficient operation of waste management facilities. 

(7.1.1) 

 No action arising 

  Concern that any development at the Lambs site 

would be inappropriate because of the state of 

Tilburstow Hill Road  and the assumption that it will 

only get worse with increased HGV movements 

Residents, 

Wonham Place 

Ltd, South 

Godstone 

Residents 

Association, 

Godstone 

Parish Council, 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group and 

Tandridge Lane 

Action Group  

Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site for different types 

and scales of waste related development. In accordance with Policy 15 

of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will have to 

demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the safety 

and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe and 

adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is able to 

be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal vehicle 

movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that is 

granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern that the D395 (Lambs site) is an entirely Residents A transport assessment is being undertaken to assess the suitability of Update Annex 1 with outcomes of Transport 

P
age 119



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 56 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

unsuitable road accessing the site by road. The potential availability of rail access is an 

advantage and may need to be exploited to make any waste use 

acceptable in transport terms. 

Assessment. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lambs site 

because of its location within the Green Belt 

Residents, 

Wonham Place 

Ltd, South 

Godstone 

Residents 

Association, 

Godstone 

Parish Council 

and Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

The site is located within the Green Belt, however, the whole site is 

identified by the district council for employment use in the Local Plan 

Site Consultation and would thus be taken out of the Green Belt.  

 

If retained in the Green Belt development could be permitted here under 

'very special circumstances' - in particular the fact that a comprehensive 

search for sites has revealed very few alternative opportunities to meet 

strategic waste management requirements not located within the Green 

Belt. As explained in paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must 

be acceptable in its own right taking into account all material 

considerations including Green Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 

that states proposals in the Green Belt “will be considered inappropriate 

unless the proposal preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does 

not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt or it is 

shown that very special circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

 

Continue to liaise with the district council regarding 

the local plan site allocation for employment use. 

  Concern over the deterioration of safety/ risk of 

accident occurring 

Residents This concern is acknowledged. Policy 14 states that planning permission 

will be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

A Transport Assessment is being undertaken, to 

enable us to better understand the potential impact 

P
age 120



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 57 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

unacceptable impact on communities, including cumulative impacts 

arising from the interactions between waste developments and between 

waste development and other forms of development. Policy 15 states 

planning permission for waste development will be granted where it can 

be demonstrated that vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle 

movements will not have an unacceptable impact on the highway 

network, therefore other users of the network, which would include those 

crossing roads. 

of waste related development upon the local road 

network, which will inform the next stage of the 

plan.  

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lambs site 

because of the rail line being overstretched and at 

capacity 

Residents and 

South Godstone 

Residents 

Association 

This concern is noted. Any application would be assessed against Policy 

15, which states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that where practical and economically viable, the 

development makes use of rail or water for the transportation of 

materials to and from the site or links are adequate to serve the 

development or can be improved to an appropriate standard and where 

this cannot be achieved road transport is considered.  

The county council is undertaking Transport 

Assessment work for each of the allocated sites to 

better understand the impact of waste related 

development on the surrounding transport network. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

 Site Brief SPG (para. 4.2.13 Lambs Business 

Park) The site would depend on all waste being 

imported by rail, which means bulk delivery and 

links to railheads. This is not impossible, it is clear 

that access constraints would make this difficult 

and complicated to develop Lambs Business Park. 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

This comment is acknowledged. Transport Assessment is currently 

being undertaken to assess suitability of site for different types and 

scales of waste related development in transport terms. 

Update Annex 1 to take account of findings of 

transport assessment and confirm the accessibility 

of the site by road. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lambs site 

because of the risk of increased vibrations 

effecting local residents and businesses 

Residents Policy 14 of the plan is intended to ensure that planning permission for 

waste development will only be granted where it can be demonstrated 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the 

environment, and this includes impacts caused by vibration. Policy 15, 

concerning the transport of waste, is intended to ensure that the use of 

HGVs is minimised and does not cause unacceptable impacts. Any 

application would be required to demonstrate how they comply with 

these policies. 

No action arising. 

  Concern over the proposed development at Lambs 

because of the risk of undesirable smells being 

generated 

Residents Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour. District and Borough Council 

environmental health controls will also help ensure that nuisance caused 

by odour does not occur. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure odour does not cause a 

nuisance to local sensitive receptors. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lambs site Residents, The council note that impact upon the environment is a key concern of Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

P
age 121



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 58 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

because of the fear that any development might 

result in a negative impact to the surrounding 

environment 

Godstone 

Parish Council, 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group, 

Tandridge Lane 

Action Group 

and EGAP 

Recycling Ltd 

residents. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment, including the natural environment, 

biodiversity and geological conservation interests. Detailed technical 

assessment is being undertaken to better understand the likely impact of 

a waste development at the Earlswood site and the potential implications 

upon the environment.  

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concern over any further development at the 

Lambs site because of the risk of visibility of said 

development either from surrounding properties or 

viewpoints 

Residents and 

Oxsted and 

Limpsfield 

Residents 

Group 

Work is being undertaken to specifically assess the potential for impacts 

on visual amenity which will highlight any potential negative 

consequences. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, and 

specifically references the appearance of any development, thus aiming 

to minimise the extent of visual intrusion. Policy 13 is intended to ensure 

that development Is of a scale, form and character appropriate to its 

location.  

Assessment work being carried out will highlight the 

visual impact of any potential waste related 

development.  Annex 1 to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment that will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern over the lack of reference to the 

Tandridge emerging plan and our recent Garden 

Village consultation, with regards to the Lambs site 

Tandridge 

District Council 

and WT Lamb 

Holding Ltd 

This concern is noted. We would like to reassure districts and boroughs 

that their plans have been taken into account and will continue to be 

taken into account. 

Continue to liaise with Tandridge District Council 

and include appropriate wording in the new SWLP. 

Assessment work being carried out currently will 

enable the council to better understand the in 

combination impacts.  

  Concern that Lambs Business park should be 

trying to grow it's small business appeal 

Resident As the council does not own or run the site, it has no influence over the 

business intentions of the site, as it is market led. 

No action arising. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lambs site 

because it is supposed to be categorized for 

potential for further employment  

Residents and 

Tandridge 

District Council 

The site is identified as a Major Developed Site in the Green Belt in the 

adopted Tandridge District Core Strategy. It is further proposed to be 

allocated in the emerging local plan as a strategic employment site. In 

principal there is no conflict with a proposed waste use which is an 

employment use. 

Continue to liaise with the district council. 

  Concerns over the prospect of development at the 

Lambs site because of the impact development 

might have on horse riders using the bridleways 

that are within close proximity to the site 

Residents and 

Godstone 

Parish Council 

This concern is noted. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, 

fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc. Policy 14 also seeks to ensure 

that planning permission will be granted there it can be demonstrated 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact upon the natural 

environment, the appearance, quality and character of the landscape 

and on public open space, the rights of way network and outdoor 

Assessment work being carried out will highlight the 

worst case scenario of any visual impact of any of 

the developments, which will inform the next stage 

of the plan.  Assessment work will be carried out, 

specifically the Landscape and Visual Impact 

assessment, which will highlight any potential 

negative consequences, allowing them to be 

P
age 122



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 59 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

recreation facilities (horse riding and bridle paths). addressed/mitigated. 

  Argue that Bletchingley Railway tunnel, within 

360m of the site - should any waste material get 

into the tunnel, it will have serious implications on 

the railway 

Godstone 

Parish Council 

These comments are acknowledged. This issue would be addressed at 

the planning application stage but waste transported by rail generally 

occurs in sealed containers. 

 No action arising 

  Concern that the railway bridge immediately 

adjacent to Lambs is a restricted bridge - over 

height vehicles can block it 

Godstone 

Parish Council 

These comments are acknowledged. Transport Assessment work being 

undertaken will address this issue. The Transport Assessment will give 

an indication of likely vehicle routing and will take into account that some 

routes may not be suitable for HGVs. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

  Argue that proximity to houses and other activities 

should be considered further  

Godstone 

Parish Council 

The council acknowledges these comments and would suggest that 

policy 14 sufficiently covers the impact on residential and other activities.  

Update Annex 1 to include mention of site specific 

matters that would need to be addressed at the 

planning application stage. 

  Concern that before any further development, the 

council must reinforce conditions placed on 

Operating Licences using Lambs  

Godstone 

Parish Council 

These comments are acknowledged. This an issue for enforcement who 

are not aware of any current breaches. This is a operational matter that 

does not affect the in-principle allocation of this site in the plan as 

suitable for waste management development. 

 No action arising 

  Argue that flood defences need to be included in 

any evaluation of the area (assuming lambs)  

Godstone 

Parish Council 

The risk of flooding affecting development of the site is being assessed 

through a SFRA. This will identify what is acceptable on the site in terms 

of flood risk.  

Update Annex 1 to include mention of site specific 

matters concerning flood risk that would need to be 

addressed at the planning application stage. 

  Concern that planning permission for the rail siding 

at Lambs Brickworks was granted for the sole 

purpose of reclaiming the claypits - Rail siding 

should be removed as per the planning permission 

conditions once the reclamation is complete - the 

rail siding is not there for waste management 

purposes 

Resident These comments are acknowledged. The rail siding represents an 

opportunity to provide sustainable waste transport by rail, this is 

preferable to transport by road. 

No action arising 

  Concerns over the prospect of development at the 

Lambs site because of the impact development 

might have on community cohesion 

Residents and 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

This concern is noted. Policy 14 addresses this issue, which states that 

planning permission will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on the community. This issue 

might also be addressed by Policy 16, which states that planning 

permission for waste development will be granted where it is 

demonstrated that the applicant has undertaken suitable steps with the 

local community before submitting their application. 

 No action arising 

  Generic opposition to any development at Lambs Residents This concern is noted. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, 

No action arising. 

P
age 123



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 60 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Land at Lambs Business Park, Terra Cotta Road, South Godstone 

fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc.  

  Concerns over the prospect of further development 

at the Lambs site because of the fear that waste 

facilities might encourage gulls to come to the area 

and this would have a detrimental effect on local 

bird populations 

Residents This concern is noted. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that planning 

permission will be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will 

not be an unacceptable impact on the environment. Where appropriate 

this issue can be dealt with through planning conditions at the 

application stage, requiring that steps are taking to prevent this 

occurring. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Lambs site 

because of the proposed sites proximity to ancient 

woodland 

Natural England This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

Ancient Woodland is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that 

planning permission for waste development will only be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

the environment, and this specifically includes Ancient Woodland. 

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the Ancient Woodland as a key development 

management matter to which any proposal for 

development will need to have particular regard.  

  Concerns over further development of the Lambs 

site because of the risk it might limit Surrey's 

capacity for recycling 

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  The policy should make specific mention to the 

use of the rail head at Lambs Business Park 

Tandridge DC Proper consideration of the use of the railhead would be required by 

Policy 15. 

Consider change in policy to reflect use of rail head 

at Lambs Business Park. 

P
age 124



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 61 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Former Weylands sewage treatment works, Walton-on-Thames 

 Argues that no development should be considered 

at the Weylands site because it would be 

rewarding unlawful behaviour  

Residents This comment is noted. No action arising. 

  Concerns over suitability of the Weylands site 

because of its location within the greenbelt 

Resident, 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc and 

Elmbridge 

Borough Council  

The former Weylands sewage treatment works is located within the 

Green Belt, however, development could be permitted here under 'very 

special circumstances' - in particular the fact that a comprehensive 

search for sites has revealed very few alternative opportunities to meet 

strategic waste management requirements not located within the 

Greenbelt. As explained in paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development 

"must be acceptable in its own right taking into account all material 

considerations including Green Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 

that states proposals in the Green Belt “will be considered inappropriate 

unless the proposal preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does 

not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt or it is 

shown that very special circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

No action arising 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Weylands site 

because of the sites proximity to residential areas 

Residents and 

Elmbridge 

Borough Council 

In accordance with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development 

at this site will have to demonstrate that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, including air 

quality. Any emissions from the site would be regulated by the 

Environment Agency to ensure they do not cause harm to human health. 

Annexe 1 will be updated to include any specific 

key development management requirements that 

are needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts 

do not occur as a result of waste management 

development in this location. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Weylands site Residents and Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the Transport Assessment of the site. Annex 1 to 

P
age 125



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 62 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Former Weylands sewage treatment works, Walton-on-Thames 

because of the resultant volume of traffic, to a site 

that has limited access on a road network that is 

over capacity  

Elmbridge 

Borough Council 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Transport 

Assessment is being carried out, which will assess the acceptability of 

the site, in terms of impacts on the highway network. This assessment 

will also highlight any concerns, which can then be addressed/mitigated 

against. 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concern that previous planning objections for the 

Walton site have been ignored - concerns 

regarding traffic levels, pollution and safety  

Resident These concerns are acknowledged and respondents should be 

reassured that all representations to applications are considered during 

an application.  

 No action arising 

 After a successful campaign in 2015/16 thought 

Weylands had reached stage 3 of the site 

identification that - this site would be eliminated 

from further consideration. What does it take for 

this to be acknowledged? 

Resident The site Identiification and Evaluation process is set out in the "Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report". This process established that, 

subject to certain requirements for mitigation (as set out in Annexe 1 of 

the SWLP), that, in principle, the site was suitable for development and 

so could be allocated in the SWLP. 

No action arising 

  Concerns over the increased traffic emissions that 

would result from further development of the 

Weylands site 

Residents Poor air quality as a result of traffic emissions is addressed through 

Policy 14, which states planning permission for waste development will 

be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment, including air 

quality. 

Assessment work being carried out will highlight the 

potential issues surrounding air quality and 

pollution. Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of AQIA. 

  Concerns over the suitability the Weylands site 

because of the fear that an increase in HGV 

movements will result in a decrease in safety and 

increase the risk of an accident 

Residents and 

Elmbridge 

Borough Council 

This concern is acknowledged. Policy 14 states that planning permission 

will be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities, including cumulative impacts 

arising from the interactions between waste developments and between 

waste development and other forms of development. Policy 15 states, 

planning permission for waste development will be granted where it can 

be demonstrated that vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle 

movements will not have an unacceptable impact on the highway 

network, therefore other users of the network, which would include those 

crossing roads. 

A Transport Assessment is being undertaken, to 

enable us to better understand the potential impact 

of waste related development upon the local road 

network, including implications for road safety. 

Furthermore, a detailed Transport Assessment will 

be required at the application stage. If required, 

developments could be subject to conditions on 

opening times and/or vehicle movements, thus 

minimising the disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Weylands site 

because of the sites proximity to the proposed 

"Garden Village" 

Residents and 

Elmbridge 

Borough Council 

It is accepted thatthat this a concern for many. Policy 14 addresses this 

where it states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development (The Garden village Proposal). And, in 

Assessment work is being  undertaken to identify 

the cumulative impacts of both the developments, 

which will inform the next stage of the plan. 

Update Annexe 1 with results of assessment work. 

P
age 126



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 63 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Former Weylands sewage treatment works, Walton-on-Thames 

Policy 15, that states, planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that vehicle movements are 

minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an unacceptable 

impact on the highway network, therefore other users of the network, 

which would take into account the cumulative impact of traffic from both 

the waste development and the Garden village proposal. 

  Concerns that development at the Weylands site 

will result in increases in vibrations felt in the 

surrounding area 

Resident It is accepted thatthat increased vibrations will be a concern of residents 

and businesses. Policy 14 of the plan is intended to ensure that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, and this includes impacts caused by 

vibration. Policy 15, concerning the transport of waste, is intended to 

ensure that the use of HGVs is minimised and does not cause 

unacceptable impacts. 

No arising action 

  Concerns over the resultant smells that might arise 

as a result of further development at the Weylands 

site 

Residents and 

Elmbridge 

Borough Council 

Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour.  

No arising action 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Weylands site 

because of its proximity to Hersham Station 

Resident Policy 14 states planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, this would include commuters moving to and from the 

station. Policy 15 states that planning permission will be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that vehicle movements associated with the 

development will not have an unacceptable impact on the capacity of the 

highway network, minimising the impact of any development on the 

vehicle and pedestrian movements to and from the station. 

No arising action. 

  Concerns of the suitability of the Weylands site 

due to it being adjacent to a biodiversity 

opportunity area 

Natural England The council note that the location of the Weylands site adjacent a 

proposed biodiversity opportunity area will be a concern for some. The 

avoidance of unacceptable impacts on biodiversity is dealt with through 

Policy 14 that sets out that planning permission for waste development 

will only be granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be 

an unacceptable impact on the environment and this specifically includes 

biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the proposed biodiversity opportunity area as this 

is a key development management matter to which 

any proposal for development will need to have 

particular regard.  

  Concern over the deliverability of the site, argues it 

was named in the 2008 plan and is still not in use 

and that Addlestone Quarry is a more deliverable 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

No action arising 

P
age 127



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 64 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Former Weylands sewage treatment works, Walton-on-Thames 

site that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan 

though this is subject to further detailed technical assessment currently 

being undertaken. The plan includes a range of deliverable sites to 

provide certainty and flexibility in ensuring that waste management 

capacity requirements can be achieved. 

  Concerns over further development at the 

Weylands site limiting Surrey's recycling capacity  

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

 No action arising 

P
age 128



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 65 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

 Concerns over further development of the Oakleaf 

farm site, that might result in increased noise 

pollution for residents and businesses in the 

surrounding area  

Residents The potential for development at the site to cause nuisance due to noise 

would be considered and likely conditioned at the planning application 

stage. The potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, 

which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment in terms of noise. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over the risk of further development of 

the Oakleaf Farm site because of the resultant risk 

of the surrounding roads getting in a worse 

condition (mud) 

Residents and 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

The waste planning authority notes this concern. Policy 15 seeks to 

ensure that vehicle movements associated with the development are 

minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an unacceptable 

impact on the surrounding road network, specifically stating that where 

appropriate, wheel cleaning facilities will be provided. A Transport 

Assessment is being undertaken to identify the impact off waste related 

development on the transport network and determine which types and 

scale of development might be suitable at each site. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

  Concerns over the risk of increased vehicle 

movements, including HGVs, to and from Oakleaf 

Farm when the road network is already over 

capacity  

Residents and 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Annexe 1 

considers transport and accessibility and it is likely that a Transport 

Assessment would be required to accompany any application. 

Assessment is being undertaken of potential impacts due to vehicle 

movements and the outcomes will be used to update Annexe 1. Policy 

15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

proposed development are minimised and that vehicle movements will 

not have an unacceptable impact on the surrounding areas. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over any further development at Oakleaf 

Farm resulting in decreased safety risk/increased 

risk of an accident 

Residents Policy 14 that states that planning permission will be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development. Policy 15 states planning permission for 

waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle movements will not 

have an unacceptable impact on the highway network, therefore other 

A Transport Assessment is being undertaken, to 

enable us to better understand the potential impact 

upon the local transport network. This will help to 

identify issues, attempt to resolve them and 

understand whether mitigation is required. 

Transport issues will also be assessed at the 

application stage. Where appropriate, development 

could be subject to conditions on opening times 

and/or vehicle movements, thus minimising the 

P
age 129



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 66 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

users of the network, which would include those crossing roads. disruption to the surrounding road network. 

Update Annexe 1 with results of TA. 

  Concerns over the suitability of further 

development at Oakleaf Farm because of the 

proximity of the site to residential areas 

Residents Assessment work will be carried out to identify potential impacts to 

nearby residents. Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to 

assess the potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions 

resulting from waste management development in this location. The 

results of this assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of 

this plan including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In 

accordance with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at 

this site will have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment, including air quality. Any 

emissions from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency 

to ensure they do not cause harm to human health. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concerns that Oakleaf Farm would be an unfair 

location for a waste facility because the area is 

already blighted by Heathrow and the M25 and the 

prospect of further airport expansion and 

expansion of the motorway. 

Residents The Oakleaf Farm site has been subjected to the same sieving process 

as all other sites and has found to be suitable. Any development would 

have to demonstrate how it meets Policy 14 (planning permission will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and the environment). This impact 

would have to be considered in combination with other development in 

the area. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns that the Oakleaf Farm site would be an 

unsuitable location because of the potential 

increase in air pollution/poor quality of air  

Residents Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site for different types 

and scales of waste related development. In accordance with Policy 14 

of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will have to 

demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

 Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site because of the sites visibility to surrounding 

properties 

Residents Assessment work is being undertaken to specifically assess the potential 

for impacts on visual amenity which will highlight any potential negative 

consequences, allowing them to be properly addressed/mitigated. Policy 

14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, and specifically references the 

appearance of any development, thus aiming to minimise the extent of 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

P
age 130



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 67 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

visual intrusion. Policy 13 is intended to ensure that development Is of a 

scale, form and character appropriate to its location.  

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site because of the resultant smell that could arise 

Residents Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour.  

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site because of the existing and ongoing problems 

with taxis parking in the village and making the 

road network difficult to negotiate in HGVs 

Residents Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. A Transport 

Assessment is being carried out which will assess the suitability of the 

site for different types of waste related development in terms of impacts 

on the highway network. This assessment will also highlight any 

concerns. 

 Transport Assessment is being undertaken to 

understand the suitability of the site for different 

forms of waste related development. This work will 

feed into Annex 1 to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment that will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site due to an existing and ongoing problem in the 

village with litter 

Residents The county council note this but would question the relationship between 

litter problems in the village and allocating the Oakleaf Farm site as a 

potential site for waste relating development in the plan. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns that Oakleaf Farm would be an 

unsuitable location because of the risk of 

vibrations being felt in surrounding properties and 

businesses 

Resident and 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

It is accepted that increased vibrations will be a concern of residents and 

businesses. Policy 14 of the plan is intended to ensure that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, and this includes impacts caused by 

vibration. Policy 15, concerning the transport of waste, is intended to 

ensure that the use of HGVs is minimised and does not cause 

unacceptable impacts. These impacts are required to be assessed at the 

application stage. 

No action arising. 

  Argue that residents should have been offered 

compensation for any development at Oakleaf 

Farm 

Residents The county council seek to ensure that any development would not have 

an unacceptable impact on local communities and implement this 

through Policy 14 of the draft plan, which states that planning permission 

for waste development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the 

environment.  

No action arising. 

  Concerns over resultant development at Oakleaf 

Farm devaluing property in the local area 

Residents Whilst the plan makes no provision to stop any house price decrease it 

does, through Policy 14, state that planning permission will only be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities and environment, including a 

 No action arising. 

P
age 131



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 68 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

range of considerations, specifically the general amenity. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site due to its location within the greenbelt 

Residents The Oakleaf Farm site is located within the Green Belt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site because of the prospect of an Immigration Site 

also being established in the village 

Residents The county council seek to ensure that any development would not have 

an unacceptable impact on local communities and implement this 

through Policy 14 of the draft plan. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the prospect of development at 

Oakleaf Farm because of the disruption this could 

have on bridle paths in the surrounding area 

Residents The waste planning authority notes this concern. Policy 14 seeks to 

ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities 

including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc. 

Policy 14 also seeks to ensure that planning permission will be granted 

there it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

No action arising. 

P
age 132



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 69 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

impact upon the natural environment, the appearance, quality and 

character of the landscape and on public open space, the rights of way 

network and outdoor recreation facilities (including horse riding and 

bridle paths). 

  Concerns over the prospect of development at 

Oakleaf Farm because of the risk of  local 

streams becoming contaminated 

Residents Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact 

on the environment and includes that related to the contamination of 

land or groundwater. In addition the county council is undertaking a 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment to understand the risk of flooding and 

contamination at each of the sites. 

The SFRA will inform the development criteria, 

which guides the possible development at each 

site. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of SFRA. 

  Concerns over the prospect of further 

development at the Oakleaf Farm site as it might 

limit Surrey's recycling  

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site due to the site being located adjacent to 

Staines Moor site of Special Scientific Interest  

Resident and 

Natural England 

Protection Staines Moor is in part provided for by Policy 14, which only 

allows development where it can be demonstrated that there will be no 

unacceptable impact on the natural environment, biodiversity and 

geological conservation interests including green infrastructure. 

Note proximity of site to SSSI in Annexe 1 as a 

development management consideration. 

  Concerns over the suitability of Oakleaf Farm 

due to it being located within a biodiversity 

opportunity area 

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the proposed biodiversity opportunity area as this 

is a development management matter.  

  Argue that the Council needs more clarification 

on what is proposed on the Oakleaf Farm site 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

The county council is undertaking assessment work to better understand 

the types of waste related development that may be suitable at each 

allocated site. The results of the assessment work will feed into the site 

development criteria, which will guide the possible development at each 

site. 

The results of the assessment work will provide an 

indication of the types of waste management facility 

that might be suitable at each site. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of assessment 

work. 

  Concern over the potential impact of HGVs at 

the Oakleaf Farm site 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

 Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 133



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 70 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

  Concern that the site description and criteria for 

the Oakleaf Farm site makes no reference to the 

visual and sound barrier (earth bund) - Although 

it would be reasonable to expect that any 

additional waste facilities would be provided 

within the bund 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

The county council note this. Add detail regarding visual and sound bund to the 

site description. 

  Concern that the site is immediately north of the 

King George VI reservoir, which forms part of the 

South West London Waterbodies SPA for birds - 

this has not been referenced in the biodiversity 

section 

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

This concern is noted. This is implemented via Policy 14, which sets out 

that planning permission will be granted where it can be demonstrated 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the environment, 

including the natural environment, biodiversity and geological 

conservation interests. 

The plan is subject to Sustainability Appraisal and 

Strategic Environmental Assessment, which 

together will form the Environment and 

Sustainability report. This work will consider this 

issue. Further to this, a Habitats Regulation 

Assessment will be required to assess the impact of 

development on a European designated site, thus 

the potential impacts will be heavily studied and any 

issues will be addressed/mitigated where possible.  

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Point out that Spelthorne has conducted 

greenbelt assessment work and Local area 2, 

where the Oakleaf farm site is located, was 

assessed as performing moderately against the 

purposes of the greenbelt  

Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

The county council note this. No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Oakleaf Farm 

site because of its proximity to a SPA 

Natural England 

and Spelthorne 

Borough Council 

This concern is noted. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the environment, including the natural 

environment, biodiversity and geological conservation interests. 

The plan will be subject to Sustainability Appraisal 

and Strategic Environmental Assessment, which 

together will form the Environment and 

Sustainability report, which will consider this issue. 

Further to this, a Habitats Regulation Assessment 

will be required to assess the impact of 

development on a European designated site, thus 

P
age 134



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 71 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

 Oakleaf Farm, Horton Lane, Stanwell Moor 

the potential impacts will be heavily studied and any 

issues will be addressed.  Annex 1 to include any 

specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

P
age 135



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 72 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

 Concerns over the proximity of Virginia Water to 

the Trumps Farm site 

SMECH 

Management 

Company and 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

The waste planning authority notes this concern. Policy 14 seeks to 

ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities 

including air quality, noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc.  

No action arising 

  Concerns over the cumulative impact of traffic from 

the Trumps Farm proposal and the Garden Village 

proposal  

Residents, 

SMECH 

Management 

Company, 

Runneymede 

Borough Council 

and the 

Chertsey 

Society 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Before the draft 

plan goes any further, a detailed Transport Assessment will be carried 

out, which will assess the acceptability of the site, in terms of impacts on 

the highway network. This assessment will also highlight any concerns, 

which can then be addressed/mitigated against. 

Transport Assessment of the site. Annex 1 to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concerns over the level of noise any development 

at Trumps Farm would create  

SMECH 

Management 

Company  

The relatively rural location of this site does mean that there are fewer 

receptors sensitive to noise which are proximate to this site. The 

potential for development at the site to cause nuisance due to noise 

would be considered and likely conditioned at the planning application 

stage. The potential for nuisance from noise is dealt with in Policy 14, 

which states that planning permission for waste development will be 

granted where it can demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment in terms of noise. 

Health impact assessment to be completed. Add 

text to the plan (under sub-section headed "General 

Amenity" in section 8) confirming need for facilities 

to be regulated by an Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency and role of Borough 

and District Council environmental health officers. 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over the resultant smell that might arise 

if there were to be further development at Trumps 

Farm  

Residents and 

SMECH 

Management 

Company 

Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour. District and Borough Council 

environmental health controls will also help ensure that nuisance caused 

by odour does not occur. 

No arising action 

  Concern over the deliverability of the Trumps Farm 

site due to its inclusion in the 2008 plan and its 

current status as not in use 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan 

though this is subject to further detailed technical assessment currently 

No arising action 

P
age 136



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 73 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

being undertaken. The plan includes a range of deliverable sites to 

provide certainty and flexibility in ensuring that waste management 

capacity requirements can be achieved. 

  Concerns over the impact any development at 

Trumps Farm would have on air quality  

Residents, 

SMECH 

Management 

Company, The 

Chertsey 

Society, Surrey 

Heath Borough 

Council and the 

RSPB 

Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

Annex 1 will be updated to include outcomes of 

AQIA. 

  Concerns over the proximity of Trumps Farm to 

Longcross Garden Village 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

and The 

Chertsey 

Society 

Policy 14 addresses this where it states that planning permission will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities, including cumulative impacts 

arising from the interactions between waste developments and other 

forms of development (The Garden village Proposal). Policy 15 states 

that planning permission for waste development will be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that vehicle movements are minimised and that 

vehicle movements will not have an unacceptable impact on the highway 

network, which would take into account the cumulative impact of traffic 

from both the waste development and the Garden village proposal. 

Assessment work will assess the cumulative 

impacts of waste related development and other 

types of development. This work will identify the 

likely impacts of development. 

  Concerns over the proposed access to the Trumps 

Farm site on the B386 and Holloway Hill 

Resident and 

the Chertsey 

Society 

Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site for different types 

and scales of development. In accordance with Policy 15 of the plan, any 

proposals for development at this site will have to demonstrate that there 

will not be an unacceptable impact on the safety and capacity of the 

highway network, that there could be a safe and adequate means of 

access to the highway network and waste is able to be transported using 

the Lorry Route Network with minimal vehicle movements and use of 

local roads. Any planning permission that is granted would likely be 

subject to conditions on opening times and/or vehicle movements, to 

minimise any disruption to the surrounding road network. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 137



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 74 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

  Concerns over the possibility of groundwater 

pollution as a result of the proposed development 

of the Trumps Farm site  

Residents and 

SMECH 

Management 

Company 

The waste planning authority notes this concern. Policy 14 seeks to 

ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the environment 

and specifically mentions the issue of contamination. The county council 

is also undertaking a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment to understand 

each sites risk of flooding and contamination. 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the SFRA that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over the suitability of Trumps Farm as a 

location for development as it is within the 

greenbelt 

Resident, The 

Chertsey 

Society and 

SMECH 

Management 

Company 

The Trumps Farm site is located within the greenbelt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

No action arising. 

  Concerns over the suitability of Trumps Farm as a 

location for development because it is highly 

visible and is likely to be unsightly  

Residents Work is being undertaken to specifically assess the potential for impacts 

on visual amenity which will highlight any potential negative 

consequences, allowing them to be properly addressed/mitigated. Policy 

14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, and specifically references the 

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

P
age 138



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 75 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

appearance of any development, thus aiming to minimise the extent of 

visual intrusion. Policy 13 is intended to ensure that development Is of a 

scale, form and character appropriate to its location.  

site. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Trumps farm 

site because of its distance from the M25 

The Chertsey 

Society 

The waste planning authority note that the increase in HGVs as a result 

of the development of a waste facility is a key concern for residents, 

businesses and people who frequently use the local road network, 

especially if they are concerned about the suitability of a site because of 

its access to the M25. This has been implemented via Policy 15 which 

states, vehicle movement will be minimised, will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the capacity of the highway network and there is 

a safe and adequate means of access to the highway network and 

vehicle movements will not have an adverse impact on the safety of the 

highway network. 

A Transport Assessment will be undertaken, to 

enable us to better understand the potential impact 

upon the local road network, which will inform the 

next stage of the plan. Annex 1 to be updated to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the transport 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Trumps Farm 

site because of the sites distance from the 

Cobham Common Special Protection Area and 

any impact development might have on this 

The RSPB, The 

Chertsey 

Society and 

Surrey Heath 

Borough Council 

This concern is noted. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the environment, including the natural 

environment, biodiversity and geological conservation interests. 

The plan is subject to Sustainability Appraisal and 

Strategic Environmental Assessment, which 

together will form the Environment and 

Sustainability report. Further to this, Habitats 

Regulation Assessment will be undertaken to 

assess the impact of development on a European 

designated site, thus the potential impacts will be 

heavily studied and any issues will be 

addressed/mitigated where possible.   

Annex 1 to include any specific key development 

management requirements, identified by the 

assessment that will need to be taken into account 

in any planning application for development at the 

site. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Trumps Farm 

site because of the safety/risk increased HGV 

movements pose to the area, specifically on 

school children 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society 

This concern is acknowledged. This issue is dealt with in Policy 14 that 

states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, including cumulative impacts arising from the interactions 

between waste developments and between waste development and 

other forms of development (schools). And, in Policy 15, that states, 

planning permission for waste development will be granted where it can 

be demonstrated that vehicle movements are minimised and that vehicle 

movements will not have an unacceptable impact on the highway 

network, therefore other users of the network, which would include those 

Transport Assessment is being undertaken. Annex 

1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment that will need to be taken 

into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 139



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 76 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

crossing roads. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Trumps Farm 

site because of the resultant increase in 

congestion/intensification of the existing 

congestion problems in the area, with an increase 

in HGV movements 

Resident, the 

Chertsey 

Society, 

SMECH 

Management 

Company and 

Surrey Heath 

Borough Council 

Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle movements associated with the 

development are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the surrounding road network. Before the Draft 

plan goes any further, a detailed Transport Assessment will be carried 

out, which will assess the acceptability of the site, in terms of impacts on 

the highway network. This assessment will also highlight any concerns, 

which can then be addressed/mitigated against. 

 Transport Assessment of the site. Annex 1 to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concerns over whether the Trumps Farm site 

would be appropriate because of the site being an 

established employment site 

Runnymede and 

Surrey Heath 

Borough 

Councils 

The waste plan site is separate from, and not part of, the existing waste 

management uses in Kitsmead Lane. 

No action arising 

  Concerns over the allocation of the Trumps Farm 

site because of the risk it will limit Surrey's 

recycling capacity 

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Trumps Farm 

site because of the sites location within a 

biodiversity opportunity area 

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Assessment work being carried out will enable the 

council to better understand the issues and adjust 

the plan accordingly. Annex 1 will be updated to 

make specific reference to the proposed 

biodiversity opportunity area as this is also a 

development management matter. 

  Concern over the appropriateness of the Trumps 

Farm site because of the sites proximity to a 

SANG 

Natural England Land to the south is proposed to be allocated as a SANG as part of the 

Longcross Garden Village development. The SANG does not directly 

adjoin the site but any proposal would need to take account of impacts 

on the SANG as well as the garden village. 

It is accepted that impact upon the environment is a key concern of 

many. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will only be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on the environment, including the natural environment, 

biodiversity and geological conservation interests.  

 Ensure that the fact in combination impacts will 

need to be assessed is clear in Annexe 1 site 

description. 

  Concerns over the Trumps Farm site because of 

the likely negative impact it might have on 

emergency services vehicles going to nearby St 

Peters Hospital 

SMECH 

Management 

Company Ltd 

 Policy 14 states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, this would include the hospital. It is also dealt with through 

Policy 15, which states that planning permission will be granted where it 

No action arising. 

P
age 140



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 77 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Trumps Farm, Kitsmead Lane, Longcross 

can be demonstrated that vehicle movements associated with the 

development will not have an unacceptable impact on the capacity of the 

highway network, minimising the impact of any development on the 

vehicle movements to and from the hospital, including emergency 

vehicles. 

  Concern over the Trumps Farm site and if it is a 

fitting location due to there being ancient woodland 

present on site  

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

This concern is acknowledged. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts 

on Ancient Woodland is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that 

planning permission for waste development will only be granted where it 

can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

the environment and this specifically includes Ancient Woodland. 

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the Ancient Woodland as a key development 

management matter to which any proposal for 

development will need to have regard.  

P
age 141



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 78 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Lyne Lane Sewage Treatment Works, Chertsey 

 Concern over the Lyne Lane site because of the 

potential smell 

Resident Waste management facilities can be operated in a manner that ensures 

nuisance caused by odour does not occur. Policy 14 will ensure that any 

proposals for development at this site would demonstrate that the 

development would not result in an unacceptable impact on communities 

and the environment due to odour. District and Borough Council 

environmental health controls will also help ensure that nuisance caused 

by odour does not occur. 

No arising action 

  Concern over the Lyne Lane site because of the 

site potentially becoming unsightly  

Resident and 

Cappagh Group 

Detailed work is being undertaken to specifically assess the potential for 

impacts on visual amenity which will highlight any potential negative 

consequences, allowing them to be properly addressed/mitigated. Policy 

14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, and specifically references the 

appearance of any development, thus aiming to minimise the extent of 

visual intrusion. Policy 13 is intended to ensure that development Is of a 

scale, form and character appropriate to its location.  

Assessment work being carried out will highlight 

potential visual impact of waste related 

development. Annex 1 to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the assessment that will need to be taken into 

account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lyne Lane site 

because of the risk of it being polluting to the local 

environment 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society 

Air Quality Impact Assessment is being carried out to assess the 

potential impacts on air quality arising from emissions resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 14 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, including air quality. Any emissions 

from the site would be regulated by the Environment Agency to ensure 

they do not cause harm to human health. 

 Annex 1 will be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements that are 

needed to help ensure unacceptable impacts on air 

quality do not occur as a result of waste 

management development in this location. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Lyne Lane site 

because of the poor access and the roads not 

being capable of dealing with an increase in 

HGV/car movements, including Holloway Hill and 

this distance of the site from Junction 11 of the 

M25 

Residents, The 

Chertsey 

Society and 

Cappagh Group 

 Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

P
age 142



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 79 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Lyne Lane Sewage Treatment Works, Chertsey 

network. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the Lyne Lane site 

because of the risk any development will 

exacerbate existing congestion  

Residents, 

Cappagh 

Group, 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

and The 

Chertsey 

Society 

 Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concerns over the development of the Lyne Lane 

site as it might limit Surrey's recycling potential 

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  Concern over the deliverability of the Lyne Lane 

site because of its inclusion in the 2008 plan and 

its status as still not in use 

Cappagh Group This site was identified following a thorough process of site identification 

and evaluation including a new call for sites (as set out in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation Report). There is no evidence to suggest 

that this site cannot be practically delivered over the life of this plan 

though this is subject to further detailed technical assessment currently 

being undertaken. The plan includes a range of deliverable sites to 

provide certainty and flexibility in ensuring that waste management 

capacity requirements can be achieved. 

No action arising. 

  Concern over the suitability of the Lyne Lane site 

because of its location within the Green Belt 

Cappagh Group The Lyne Lane site is located within the greenbelt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

No action arising 

P
age 143



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 80 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Lyne Lane Sewage Treatment Works, Chertsey 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

  Concerns over the proximity of the Lyne Lane site 

to Chobham Common SPA 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society 

This concern is noted. Policy 14 sets out that planning permission will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on the environment, including the natural 

environment, biodiversity and geological conservation interests. 

The plan is subject to Sustainability Appraisal and 

Strategic Environmental Assessment, which 

together will form the Environment and 

Sustainability report. Further to this, a Habitats 

Regulation Assessment will be required to assess 

the impact of development on a European 

designated site, thus the potential impacts will be 

heavily studied and any issues will be 

addressed/mitigated where possible.  Annex 1 to 

include any specific key development management 

requirements, identified by the assessment that will 

need to be taken into account in any planning 

application for development at the site. 

  Concern over the suitability of development at the 

Lyne Lane because of the increase in risk/safety of 

increased HGVs and movements of children going 

to school around the area 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society 

Policy 14 states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities. Policy 15 states planning permission for waste 

development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that vehicle 

movements are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the highway network, therefore other users of 

the network, which would include those crossing roads. The county 

council is also undertaking a Transport Assessment which will consider 

Transport Assessment work will enable the council 

to get a better understanding of what the likely 

impacts will be on the surrounding transport 

network, which will enable us to identify issues. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of TA. 

P
age 144



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 81 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Land adjacent to Lyne Lane Sewage Treatment Works, Chertsey 

implications of waste related development on the transport network, 

including safety. 

  Concerns over the proximity of the Lyne Lane to 

Longcross Garden Village 

Runnymede 

borough Council 

and The 

Chertsey 

Society 

Policy 14 states that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities, which will including cumulative impacts arising from the 

interactions between waste developments and between waste 

development and other forms of development (The Garden village 

Proposal). Policy 15 states planning permission for waste development 

will be granted where it can be demonstrated that vehicle movements 

are minimised and that vehicle movements will not have an 

unacceptable impact on the highway network, therefore other users of 

the network, which would take into account the cumulative impact of 

traffic from both the waste development and the Garden village proposal. 

Cumulative impacts from different types of development are also being 

considered in the assessment work being undertaken for the plan, which 

seeks to understand the implications of locating different waste 

management facilities at each site. 

Assessment work will consider the impact of waste 

related development in combination with other 

development in the vicinity. The results of this 

assessment work will feed into the site development 

criteria which will guide suitable development at the 

site. 

Update Annexe 1 with outcomes of assessment 

work. 

P
age 145



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 82 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Sites – Other comments 

  Concern that incineration is an inappropriate 

technology  

Resident Incineration with energy recovery (or 'Energy from Waste') is a widely 

used and accepted option for managing waste effectively.  As set out in 

national policy, the 'Waste Hierarchy' (see paragraph 3.1.1 of the plan) 

recognises that recycling of waste is preferred over incineration (with 

energy recovery) and Policy 1 of the plan reflects this by ensuring that 

the management of waste takes place in a manner that "does not 

prevent management of waste at the highest point practical in the waste 

hierarchy". Policy 14 states that planning permission for waste 

development will only be granted where it can be demonstrated that 

there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the 

environment. As with most waste management facilities, any proposal 

for management by this method requires an Environmental Permit prior 

to being allowed to operate. The Environment Agency will only issue 

such a permit if it is satisfied that a facility can be operated without 

pollution of the environment and harm to human health. Air Quality 

Impact Assessment is being undertaken to establish whether the 

development of an incineration facility at any of the proposed allocations 

would have unacceptable impacts on the environment. The Background 

Paper "Types of Waste Management Facility" provides more information 

about Energy from Waste. 

Annex 1 will be updated to specify the types of 

waste management facility that could likely be 

accommodated at certain proposed allocations. 

  No concerns at this stage, but might have 

objections when details of development at each 

site are finalised 

Runnymede 

Borough Council  

The waste planning authority note this. Assessment work is being 

undertaken to determine the types and scale of waste related 

development that might be sutiable at each site. This will be incorporated 

into the site development criteria. 

Update Annexe 1 with the results of the 

assessment work being undertaken. 

  Concerns over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of the argument that EfW facilities 

should be located on small units within industrial 

estates 

Resident and 

The Chertsey 

Society  

Each of the sites is being assessed for their suitability for different types 

of waste related development, including EFW. As most of the allocated 

sites are situated within the greenbelt, any development on a site in the 

Green Belt would have to demonstrate that there is no other suitable 

location for this development as part of a need to demonstrate very 

special circumstances for the development. It is suggested that they 

would therefore have to conduct a suitable alternative sites assessment, 

which would include industrial estates. 

No arising action 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of the sites being within or 

adjacent to a biodiversity opportunity area 

Surrey Nature 

Partners 

This concern is noted. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on 

biodiversity is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning 

permission for waste development will only be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

environment and this specifically includes biodiversity opportunity areas.  

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the proposed biodiversity opportunity area as this 

is a key development management matter to which 

any proposal for development will need to have 

particular regard.  

P
age 146



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 83 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Sites – Other comments 

  Argue that more consideration of greener 

alternatives is needed i.e. more recycling 

Residents WNA has identified a need for more waste to be disposed of and 

recycling capacity is already being met. The plan's strategy is one of 

encouraging waste management further up the waste hierarchy, as 

referred to in Policy 1. The SWLP provides updated targets for 

sustainable management of waste for the period up to 2033 which reflect 

the plan's vision and strategic objectives. These targets determine what 

type of waste management will be needed in the future. The targets 

encourage the management of waste further up the waste hierarchy and 

is put into action by Policy 1. 

 No action arising 

  Existing roads surrounding the sites are 

unsuitable 

Residents and 

Wonham Place 

Ltd 

The WPA are undertaking a transport assessment of all proposed sites 

to assess the suitability of sites to accommodate different types and 

scales of waste related development and associated transport 

movements. 

As appropriate, update Annex 1 to reflect outcomes 

of TA. 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of the sites being within the 

greenbelt  

Resident and 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

The Martyrs Lane site is located within the greenbelt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

No action arising 

P
age 147



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 84 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Sites – Other comments 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of their access 

Resident and 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of the resultant increase in traffic 

Resident and 

Chambers 

Runfold Plc 

Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Argue that the list of sites in incomplete - Draft 

waste plan p.20 show up to 11 sites may be 

required and non tech summary p.11 says that 

these sites don't include sites for C,D and E 

waste or for landfill 

Claygate Parish 

Council 

The draft plan is not proposing to allocate any land for C, D&E waste or 

for Landfill. This issue is dealt with by Policy 1, that states that 

permission for development will be granted where the diversion of waste 

away from landfill is achieved in a matter that does not prevent 

management of waste at the highest point practical in the waste 

hierarchy.  

No action arising. 

P
age 148



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 85 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Sites – Other comments 

  Argue that an archaeological/ heritage impact 

assessment is necessary for each site 

Historic England The council notes and welcomes this comment. The council will need to undertake detailed 

assessment work that will set out the potential 

impact on archaeology/heritage at each site. 

  Reserves the right to object in the future on 

adverse effects on the historical environment 

Historic England The council notes and welcomes this comment. No action arising. 

  Concerns over increased development at a 

number of sites limiting Surrey's recycling 

capacity 

Resident The plan does not propose any closures to recycling facilities or 

reductions in recycling capacity, indeed it is intended to facilitate the 

management of waste by increasing recycling.   

No action arising. 

  Argue that building on or extending existing 

waste uses is favourable as it should cause less 

disruption 

Resident The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the draft 

plan 

No action arising 

  Concern over a number of the sites suitability 

because of their location within the green belt 

Residents and 

Guildford 

Borough Council 

A number of sites are located within the greenbelt, however, 

development could be permitted here under 'very special circumstances' 

- in particular the fact that a comprehensive search for sites has revealed 

very few alternative opportunities to meet strategic waste management 

requirements not located within the Greenbelt. As explained in 

paragraph 8.7.9 any proposed development "must be acceptable in its 

own right taking into account all material considerations including Green 

Belt policy". This is set out in Policy 9 that states proposals in the Green 

Belt “will be considered inappropriate unless the proposal preserves the 

openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land in the Green Belt or it is shown that very special 

circumstances exist. 

Where proposals for development in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be supported where very special circumstances 

exist such that the benefit of the development clearly outweighs any 

potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm". Para 8.7.11 

states: "additional considerations will still need to be taken into account 

at the time a planning application is submitted in order to comply with 

Green Belt policy. These consideration will need to be weighed in the 

balance when determining if very special circumstances exist. These 

are:  

a) An up to date assessment of the need for additional waste 

management capacity of the scale and type proposed in accordance 

with Policy 1 – Need for Non-landfill Waste Development. 

b) Other site specific considerations dealt with under policies including 

Policy 14 – Development Management and Policy 15 –Transport." Sites 

proposed for allocation in the Green Belt are sites which contain, lie 

No action arising. 

P
age 149



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 86 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Summary of Comments Raised by  Response Any action arising  

Sites – Other comments 

adjacent to or have been used for waste management provision in the 

past and/or are previously developed sites in whole or in part. 

  Argue that there is a need for these 

developments 

Resident The council agrees and notes the support for this element of the Draft 

plan 

No action arising 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of their poor accessibility  

Resident Transport Assessment is being carried out to assess the potential 

impacts on the highway network of traffic (including HGVs) resulting from 

waste management development in this location. The results of this 

assessment will be taken into account in the preparation of this plan 

including in the assessment of the suitability of this site. In accordance 

with Policy 15 of the plan, any proposals for development at this site will 

have to demonstrate that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the 

safety and capacity of the highway network, that there could be a safe 

and adequate means of access to the highway network and waste is 

able to be transported using the Lorry Route Network with minimal 

vehicle movements and use of local roads. Any planning permission that 

is granted would likely be subject to conditions on opening times and/or 

vehicle movements, to minimise any disruption to the surrounding road 

network. 

 Annex 1 to be updated to include any specific key 

development management requirements, identified 

by the transport assessment that will need to be 

taken into account in any planning application for 

development at the site. 

  Concern over the suitability of a number of the 

sites because of their location on floodplains 

Residents The issue of flood risk is covered in the Environmental and Sustainability 

Report and indicates that there is no issue with the sites in terms of their 

flood risk. Policy 14 states that planning permission will be granted 

where it can be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities and the environment, specifically in terms of 

flood risk. The County Council is undertaking a Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment to assess the risk of each of the sites to flooding. 

Update Annexe 1 with the results of the SFRA. 

  Concerns over the suitability of the sites 

because of their location adjacent to ancient 

woodland 

Natural England It is acceptedthat some are concerned with the sites proximity to ancient 

woodland. The avoidance of unacceptable impacts on Ancient Woodland 

is dealt with through Policy 14 that sets out that planning permission for 

waste development will only be granted where it can be demonstrated 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact on the environment and 

this specifically includes Ancient Woodland. 

Annex 1 will be updated to make specific reference 

to the Ancient Woodland as a key development 

management matter to which any proposal for 

development will need to have particular regard.  

  Argues that the sites seem reasonable - 

depending on checks and scrutiny 

Resident The council notes this comment. No action arising 

  Concern that the site descriptions should clarify 

that parts of the sites are located within 

greenbelt 

Guildford 

Borough Council 

The council notes this comment. Add clarification 

P
age 150



A p p e n d i x  6  –  S i t e s  p r o p o s e d  f o r  a l l o c a t i o n  | 87 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

  

P
age 151



A p p e n d i x  7  -  N o m i n a t e d  S i t e s  | 88 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 7 - Nominated Sites 

Site 
nominator 

Site Comments Response to comments Any action arising 

Antony 

Collier 

 

Kitsmead Recycling Centre, 

Trumps Farm, Kitsmead 

Lane, Longcross, Chertsey 

- Surrey County needs additional composting capacity, 

and suggested that Kitsmead could provide this in the 

future once they have achieved greater sustainable 

efficiencies. 

- Suggested that allocating the Trumps Farm site would 

protect current activities from encroaching development 

and would reduce the burden of meeting ‘very special 

circumstances’ for development in the Green Belt each 

time an application is submitted. 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:RU02 

A+B) 

- Allocation in the plan would not prevent the applicant from 

having to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’ for 

development in the Green Belt, as allocation of the site in 

the SWLP would not remove the site from the Green Belt. 

All sites allocated in the plan would have to demonstrate 

‘very special circumstances’ as part of any application. 

- The county council note that existing waste operations at 

the site would be safeguarded by policy. 

- The site has some possible additional capacity but is 

limited by site area (Circa + 10,000 tpa). It is not 

considered to offer enough additional capacity to be 

allocated as a strategic site. 

 
No action arising. 

Janet 

Ashton/Peter 

and Emma 

Chambers, 

 

Homefield Recycling and 

Recovery Facility 
- Stated that the Homefield site should be allocated as the 

pit does not have to be restored until 2042, therefore the 

site will be operative during the whole plan period and, 

although temporary permissions for recycling run out in 

2020, this could be renewed. 

- Suggested the site should be included in plan without 

current limitations in place. 

- Stated a crusher could be placed on site to deal with all 

material on site, so no need to transport material by 

road. 

- Homefield is the only major facility producing aggregate 

and soil in SW Surrey. Suggested that if it were to close 

then material would have to be moved over much 

greater distances. 

- Suggested the blanket approach of ‘Sieve E – former 

operational mineral workings and land allocated for 

mineral working’ does not allow for differentiation 

between a long term sand pit such as Homefield where 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:WA14) 

-  Site is excluded from allocation as it is a former minerals 

site. Minerals sites are justified as permissible on 

greenbelt land as they are temporary uses that must be 

restored as part of an ongoing restoration scheme. This is 

a policy approach taken by Surrey, which cannot be 

contradicted. The site is therefore not suitable for 

allocation within the plan. 

- The site is situated within an AONB. 

- The council’s Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD (ARJDPD) 

adopted in 2013 addresses the issue of C,D & E waste. It 

will be reviewed as part of the review of the Surrey 

Minerals plan. Until this review evidence suggests that 

there will be no significant need for additional C,D & E 

recycling capacity.  

 
Site plan needs to be 
redrawn.  
 
Publish background 
paper which provides 
evidence supporting the 
council’s approach to C, 
D and E waste. 

P
age 152



A p p e n d i x  7  -  N o m i n a t e d  S i t e s  | 89 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Site 
nominator 

Site Comments Response to comments Any action arising 

restoration takes many years because of the sheer scale 

of the working and a sand gravel type extraction of the 

type found in in NW Surrey where progressive 

restoration is a key part of the process and restoration 

closely follows extraction. 

- Stated that Homefield is operational for the whole plan 

period and is not subject to a staged restorations 

scheme with time restraints. 

- Stated that being in AONB is inconsequential, as the site 

will remain temporary and there are no current issues. 

- Stated that the other allocated sites are not viable, and 

detailed the previous applications on sites that have not 

gone ahead.  

- Suggested that Homefield fits with definition of a 

strategic site. 

Firstplan 

(Vilna 

Walsh) on 

behalf of 

Cappagh 

Group Ltd,  

Land at Addlestone Quarry, 

Byfleet Road, New Haw, 

Addlestone, KT15 

- Stated that the site is in the greenbelt but that the county 

council cannot eliminate this site purely based on that, 

as other sites are also in greenbelt. 

- Argued that allocated sites should include sites with 

existing recycling facilities currently operating on a 

temporary permission. It is said this would reduce sites 

coming forward on an ad hoc basis. This would provide 

long term certainty for operators.  

- Proposed Addlestone quarry for CDE waste recycling 

and suitable co-located waste uses.  

- Acknowledged that the site was not considered further in 

SWLP as no strategic allocations are currently proposed 

for CDE uses. 

- Stated that the site operators wish for there’re to be 

strategic CDE allocations.  

- Stated that the site also has capacity for co-location of 

other waste (e.g. composting).  

- Suggested that land at Addlestone Quarry is more viable 

than other sites, and that other allocated sites are 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:RU13) 

-  Site is excluded from allocation as it is a former minerals 

site. Minerals sites are justified as permissible on 

greenbelt land as they are temporary uses that must be 

restored as part of an ongoing restoration scheme. The 

site is therefore not suitable for allocation within the plan,  

- Please see Site ID and Evaluation doc for information on 

deliverability of sites. 

 

 
Publish background 
paper which provides 
evidence supporting the 
council’s approach 

P
age 153



A p p e n d i x  7  -  N o m i n a t e d  S i t e s  | 90 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Site 
nominator 

Site Comments Response to comments Any action arising 

undeliverable. They state that nothing having come 

forward on those sites in the last 10 years brings into 

question whether they are deliverable. 

Richard 

Ford, Brett 

Aggregates 

 

Hirthermoor, Stanwell Moor, 

Stanwell, Nr Staines, 

Middlesex, TW19 6AX 

- State that the site has a good location, good access 

(located next to Jtn 15 of M25) and is well screened. 

- Stated that the site takes in large volumes of waste but 

has a temporary permission which will expire, they argue 

it would be better to retain this site than to develop a 

new one capable of dealing with similar quantities. 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:SP01) 

-  This site was excluded from allocation in the preliminary 

round of sieving during the site identification and 

evaluation process as it is a former mineral working that is 

subject to restoration by means of in-filling. The site 

currently hosts a range of aggregates and soil recycling 

activities associated with ongoing restoration. planning 

permission requires that the site is restored by April 2023. 

The site is therefore not considered suitable for allocation 

in the plan. 

Publish background 
paper which provides 
evidence supporting the 
council’s approach 

Tim North on 

behalf of 

EGAP 

Recycling 

 

Hays Bridge Farm, 

Brickhouse Lane, South 

Godstone 

- This representation compared the Lambs Brickworks 

allocated site with the Hays Bridge Farm site considered 

in the Site Identification and Evaluation document, and 

sought to demonstrate the suitability of Hays Bridge 

Farm for allocation in the plan. 

- Suggested that the only difference between Lambs 

Brickworks and the Hays Bridge Farm site is their 

proximity to the strategic transport network (Hays Bridge 

being a further 1.2km from the A22). 

- Stated that Lambs Brickworks has limits on the number 

of traffic movements permitted to and from the site, with 

an overall daily maximum of 632 movements along 

Terracotta Road whereas Hays Bridge has no such 

restriction. 

- Stated that no consideration has been given to the 

importance of Lambs brickworks as a key employment 

site in the LPA’s administrative area. 

- Stated that Lambs Brickworks is in closer proximity to a 

greater number of designated areas than Hays Bridge 

(Godstone Ponds SSSI, Mole Gap to Reigate 

Escarpment SAC & SSSI, Surrey Hills AONB, Surrey 

Hills AGLV, NCIs vs Blindley Heath SSSI, and fewer 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:TA12) 

-  This site was excluded from allocation as it was caught in 

the site sieving process in the site identification and 

evaluation report. The sieves the site was caught by were 

Flood risk and water environment, proximity to SSI (high 

sensitivity receptors within 20m and 250m) and Transport 

(3.2km to A22 with no road access). It is considered that 

the site is situated in a remote rural location and offers 

limited scope for further expansion. 

- The county council note that Lambs Business Park is 

closer to the SRN and that Lambs Business Park has 

access to off-road transport through the use of a railway 

sidings. This, in combination with its proximity to the SRN, 

makes it a preferential choice for allocation. Further to this, 

Hays Bridge Farm is accessed from the west off 

Brickhouse Lane, which connects to the A22 (Eastbourne 

Road). The existing location is unsuitable in transport 

planning terms and offers no sustainable transport options 

onto the rural public highway network, subsequently the 

County Highway Authority (CHA) does not recommend 

that this site is suitable for intensification of use.  

- Surrey County Council is aware that Lambs Brickworks 

 
No action arising. 

P
age 154



A p p e n d i x  7  -  N o m i n a t e d  S i t e s  | 91 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Site 
nominator 

Site Comments Response to comments Any action arising 

NCIs and listed buildings) 

- Stated that Hays Bridge Farm scores more favourably 

on 6/10 of the indicators for the landscape and 

townscape character, visual amenity and historic 

environment when compared with Lambs. 

- Stated that that development at the Hays Bridge site 

would have less significant adverse impacts on human 

communities than the Lambs Brickworks site. 

- Stated that no information is provided as to why Hays 

Bridge Farm is scored as having a high sensitivity for 

water contamination, whilst land at Lambs brickworks is 

considered to have a medium sensitivity to water 

contamination. 

- In conclusion, they argue that in the context of the Site 

ID and Evaluation document and the draft Environmental 

and Sustainability Report, identical scoring arises, and 

that Hays Bridge Farm has less adverse impacts than 

Lambs Brickworks. 

has a limit on the number of vehicle movements permitted 

to and from the site. 

- The county council are aware that Lambs Business Park is 

identified as employment site in TDC Local plan economic 

needs assessment, and Hays Bridge Farm is not. The 

Lambs site is proposed for joint allocation to retain 

employment use. 

- Surrey County Council note that the information relating to 

the status of the Surface Water body catchment each site 

is located within is published by the EA, and may be found 

on the EA website. As stated in the Site ID and Evaluation 

doc, the SW body status of Hays Bridge is 'Poor', which 

contributes to making the site a less viable candidate for 

allocation that the Lambs site. 

 

Chris Foss 

 

Britaniacrest/Little Orchard 

Farm - 26 Reugate Road, 

Hookwood, RH6 0HJ 

- Stated the site is active but not fully developed. 

- Stated that the site currently holds planning permission. 

- Accepting commercial/industrial, construction/demolition 

and domestic waste, crushing/screening and production 

of aggregates and soils, and bailing of residual waste for 

export. 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:RE05) 

-  This site was excluded from allocation at the secondary 

sieving stage during Site Identification and Evaluation. 

- It is considered that the site offers limited scope for further 

expansion, and any further expansion could be dealt with 

under Policy 8, enhancement or extension of existing sites. 

 

 
No action arising. 

Resident Land adjacent to the A25 

and A22 next to Streets 

Court which was used when 

the M25 was being modified 

and now sits vacant. 

- Land was used when the M25 was being modified and is 

now vacant. 

- Site has good access to the M25, and would cause less 

disruption to locals. 

- Land nominated by resident, not the landowner and no 

details of the landowner provided. 

- Site is located near to Godstone in Tandridge, 

- Green Belt and not previously developed land. 

No action arising. 

Resident Dunsfold Park, Stovolds Hill, 

Cranleigh, Surrey, GU6 8TB 
- Landowner is Rutland DAL Limited - This is an allocated site in the recently adopted Waverley 

Local plan and as such is not suitable for allocation in the 

No action arising. 

P
age 155



A p p e n d i x  7  -  N o m i n a t e d  S i t e s  | 92 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Site 
nominator 

Site Comments Response to comments Any action arising 

- The site is a large industrial site within a growth area. emerging SWLP. 

-  Waste use may in principal be acceptable in employment 

areas   

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:WA21) 

Resident  Old Brick Works Capel 
- Site is away from residential centres and is already a 

brownfield site. 

- Land nominated by resident, not the landowner, and no 

details of the landowner provided. 

- Site is part of a former and potentially active mineral 

working  This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:MO11) . 

No action arising. 

Resident Land at the former airfield, 

Wisley. 
- Stated that the site has in the past been selected as a 

potential waste processing site. 

- Land nominated by unknown person, and no details of the 

landowner provided.  

- Site allocated in the Guildford Borough Submission Local 

Plan for a new settlement. 

- This site was considered and rejected in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document (Site ID:GU31) 

No action arising. 

 
  

P
age 156



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 93 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 8 – Comments on Policies 

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Policy 1 - 
Need for 
non-landfill 
waste 
developme
nt  

Waste should be managed effectively and 

in an environmentally sound manner. 

Resident  Noted. The policies of the SWLP are intended to ensure this happen in Surrey. No action arising 

Questions need for policy 1 (new sites) as 

some CRCs have reduced opening hours. 

Resident  The need for new sites encompasses more than just CRCs. Other waste management 

uses are also planned for.  

Check the plan is clear enough in 
explaining the range of 
management sites.    

Suggests that policy 1 should confirm that 

“…development will not be granted 

unless….” 

NZ Golf Club The WPA has positively worded this policy to ensure consistency with the NPPF.   No action arising 

Doesn’t believe that Energy Recovery 

should be an option.  

Resident  The waste needs assessment highlights a requirement for EfW capacity to manage 

residual waste. While the plan acknowledges a need for recovery capacity, it seeks to 

promote recycling capacity ahead of the need for recovery capacity. Recycling sits 

above recovery on the waste hierarchy and this is approach is therefore consistent 

with the directive and the vision for the draft SWLP (8.1.7).  

No action arising 

It is unreasonable to expect Surrey to be 

net self-sufficient considering over 

population and expected housing growth in 

the south east. 

Resident  planning on the basis of self-sufficiency is encouraged by European Waste 

Framework Directive and national planning practice guidance. The WPA also has a 

specific memorandum of understanding with other WPAs in the south east that each 

WPA will plan on the basis of net self-sufficiency. Under national policy the WPA is 

required to identify sufficient opportunities to meet the identified needs of its area for 

the delivery of waste management infrastructure. As set out in para 7.1.1 the plan's 

adoption of net self-sufficiency accepts that it is not practicable to deal only with waste 

produced in Surrey and that cross-boundary waste movements, including those from 

London, will be necessary to support the viability and efficient operation of waste 

management facilities. 

No action arising 

Support for net self-sufficiency as it 

provides flexibility for cross border 

transfers. 

South London 

Waste plan  

The WPA acknowledges support for planning on the basis of net self-sufficiency.  No action arising 

Suggests explanations of NPPW and 

CD&E. Suggest not using acronyms and 

abbreviations in policies themselves.  

Runnymede 

BC 

The WPA agree and acknowledge that these changes can be made to aid the reader.  Expand acronyms / abbreviations 
at the earliest stage and don’t use 
acronyms / abbreviations in policy 
text.  

Suggest consulting DEFRA 'national waste 

capacity study' to inform the plan / policy.  

Resident  The WPA will reflect on this document when it is published - however, in accordance 

with national policy and guidance, the plan has been prepared based on a detailed, 

robust Waste Needs Assessment that considers the specific future requirements in 

Surrey based on the principle of net self-sufficiency.  

Consider report when it is 
published.  

Argues that allocated sites should not have 

to demonstrate need for waste 

management capacity at an application 

stage as Surrey council will have already 

done this work when identifying a need 

WT Lambs 

agent  

The need can change over time and will have to be judged by most recent monitoring 

(AMR). It is also important to ensure that there is no oversupply of recovery capacity 

that could inhibit development of recycling capacity.  

No action arising 

P
age 157



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 94 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

within the plan.  

Suggests there is conflict between policy 1 

ii) and supporting text 8.1.5. In regard to 

meeting capacity as a minimum and 

applications not providing over capacity.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA acknowledge that there is a potential conflict with wording here.  Amend para 8.1.5 to say:  "This 
means that Surrey should plan to 
provide sufficient capacity to 
adequately manage forecast waste 
requirements in accordance with 
the Waste Hierarchy." 

Suggests policy 1 should make reference 

to ensure technology is suitable for specific 

waste stream. Suggest specific reference 

to encourage biological treatment.  

Guildford RA Certain technologies will be suitable for certain waste streams and not all waste can 

be biologically treated. Policy 1 aims for sustainable management of waste which will 

include biological treatment of waste as appropriate. 

No action arising 

Suggests that the plan make recognition to 

emerging and adopted local plan policies in 

the wording of the policies. This could 

include the addition of text such as "subject 

to compliance with other policies in the 

SWLP and where relevant demonstrate 

compatibility the adopted or emerging 

policies of other Local plans" after 

"permission will be granted" in several of 

the policies. 

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

The WPA acknowledge these comments but disagree that it is necessary to make 

specific reference to the need for proposals to be consistent with other policies of the 

Development. This duplicates wording and, if not included in some policies might 

imply that other polices do not need to be taken into account. Paras 1.1.6 and 1.1.7 

already make the position clear as follows: "This plan forms part of the overall 

development framework for Surrey. Other waste and minerals related policy can be 

found in the Surrey Minerals Plan (2011), the Aggregates Recycling Joint 

Development Plan Document (2013) and the Minerals Site Restoration 

Supplementary planning Document (2011). The planning policy for non-waste and 

minerals related development can be found in the Local plans of the District and 

Borough Councils in Surrey. 

1.1.7 When determining applications all relevant policies of the development 

framework, as well as national policy, will be taken into account." 

No action arising 

Policy 2 - 
New or 
improved 
recycling 
and 
recovery 
facilities  

There is no evidence as to how policies will 

be achieved.  

Resident  The policies are based on a robust evidence base and previous consultation on 

options and so are considered to be deliverable. Their achievement will be monitored 

through the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) annually.  Increases in recycling will be 

evidenced in the AMR as will an increase in recycling capacity.  

No action arising 

Preventing & reducing waste has to be 

done at a national level in order to be 

achieved.  

Resident  Acknowledgement that this is important.  The Policy Context section details all 

relevant European and National policy and legislation, the plan has been prepared in 

line with these. Para 6.2.1 notes that "in preparing Local plans, waste planning 

authorities should drive waste management up the waste hierarchy. This means 

encouraging prevention of waste, preparing for re-use, recycling and recovery of 

waste." 

No action arising 

Support for co-location being encouraged 

by policy 2. 

Resident, WT 

Lambs agent  

Acknowledgement of support.    

Comments that policy / consultation is too 

complicated.  

Resident  In an attempt to reduce the complexity an executive summary and guidance had been 

provided but it is acknowledged that there are technical elements to the plan and the 

consultation and the council will review the approach to help improve future 

consultations. 

Review approach to future 
consultations.  

Comments that permission should not be 

granted just because a site is included in 

CPRE Surrey, 

NZ Golf Club 

Proposals for development on allocated sites will need full planning applications and 

be subject to the necessary detailed technical assessments of likely impacts. Para 

No action arising 

P
age 158



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 95 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

the plan. Once the use is known, there 

needs to be detailed assessments of the 

likely impacts. 

8.7.13 states: "All sites will be subject to a formal planning application process and will 

be required to demonstrate that they are consistent with the policies in this plan 

including the key development requirements." 

Suggest policy 2 ii) could be restrictive to 

because co-location may not result in fewer 

lorry movements. Suggest this could 

conflict with policy 8. Respondent would 

prefer to see lorry movements covered on a 

case by case basis in policy 14.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

Policy 2 ii) states benefits of co-location should be demonstrated which may include 

fewer lorry movements. The text therefore recognises that fewer lorry movements may 

not result from co-location. 

No action arising 

Suggest abbreviations WDA, WCA should 

be expanded. 

Runnymede 

BC 

Acknowledgement that these can be expanded.  Expand acronyms / abbreviations 
at the earliest stage and don’t use 
acronyms / abbreviations in policy 
text.  

Suggest at “(iii) there is a clear need for the 

development proposal having regard to the 

net supply of waste and the capacity of 

existing and planned waste management 

facilities within the County and the site is 

otherwise suitable for waste development 

when assessed against other policies 

within the SWLP.” 

WT Lambs 

agent  

This is covered by Policy 1 that requires a clear need for a new facility to be 

demonstrated. 

No action arising 

Suggests that policy should make clear that 

allocations made in the emerging SWLP 

are afforded priority in meeting the need for 

new waste facilities in Surrey, over 

unallocated sites being subject of 

speculative allocations. 

WT Lambs 

agent  

Although development on allocated sites is generally preferred, allocated sites located 

in the Green Belt will not have priority over suitable non Green Belt sites and 

proposals for development of Green Belt allocations will need to demonstrate that 

suitable non Green Belts sites are not available. This position will be made clearer in 

the plan. 

Include text in plan to confirm that 
allocated sites located in the 
Green Belt will not have priority 
over other suitable non Green Belt 
sites and proposals for 
development of Green Belt 
allocations will need to 
demonstrate that suitable non 
Green Belts sites are not available. 

Comments that policy is too broad because 

it covers too many waste streams. 

Suggests that policy be split, one for 

recycling and material recovery and one for 

energy recovery.  

Guildford RA The WP A disagree. Policy two should not be split to cover different management 

streams (other than C, D & E Waste) as the criteria set out for new and improved 

facilities apply to all waste streams. Policies 3, 5 and 6 provide further policy on 

proposals for management of specific waste streams. 

No action arising 

8.2.6 “Generally the county council is 

supportive of recycling and recovery 

operations where it can be demonstrated 

that facilities will not have adverse effects 

of amenity or environment. “  It one thing to 

say Surrey CC supports a small community 

recycling facility, quite another to say it is 

“supportive of” large incinerator plants. 

Guildford RA The WPA will be supportive of waste development that manages waste further up the 

waste hierarchy and is suitable in regard to its surroundings and scale. This applies 

for all types of waste management facilities.  

No action arising 

P
age 159



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 96 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Suggests removing the word ‘may’ and 

replace with ‘should’ or perhaps even 

‘shall’.  

Resident  These are examples of benefits. Proposals may provide other benefits, not all can be 

listed in policy text.  

No action arising 

Policy 3 - 
New or 
improved 
facilities for 
recycling 
CD&E 
waste 

There should be a method for residents to 

dispose of CD&E waste beyond kerb-side 

collections to reduce the risk of fly tipping.  

Resident  The WPA acknowledges this comment and understands that there are concerns 

regarding fly tipping of CD&E waste. The plan intends to help reduce the amount of 

fly-tipped CDE waste by ensuring a sufficient number of authorised facilities can be 

developed. However this is an issue for the WDA and won’t be covered in the plan.  

No action arising 

Suggests there should be a free allowance 

for residents to dispose of small amounts of 

CD&E waste.  

Resident   This is an operational matter to be considered by the WDA that provides CRC sites.  Comment referred to the WDA. 

Suggests CD&E waste can be used as 

hardcore in new developments.  

Resident  The WPA agrees. The aim of policy 3 is for CD&E waste to be recycled with one use 

potentially being hardcore in new developments.  

No action arising 

Questions whether 80% target can be 

improved, asks if the remaining 20% can 

be recycled.  

Resident  The 20% of waste not recycled would be beneficially 'recovered to land', such as in 

the restoration of old mineral workings, as specifically allowed for in Policy 5. 

No action arising 

CD&E waste is a major waste stream 

delivered to CRCs but opportunities for 

recycling are being reduced as CRC 

opening hours are being reduced.  

Resident  The WPA acknowledges this comment. However CRC opening hours are an 

operational matter to be considered by the WDA that provides CRC sites.  

Comment referred to the WDA. 

General support for policy 3.  East Sussex 

CC 

The WPA acknowledge support of policy 3.  No action arising 

Concern that just because a site is 

allocated in the plan should not mean that 

detailed consideration is taken at the 

application stage. 

CPRE Surrey  Allocated sites will be subject to full planning applications and require equal 

assessment to non-allocated sites at an application stage. Para 8.7.13 states: "All 

sites will be subject to a formal planning application process and will be required to 

demonstrate that they are consistent with the policies in this plan including the key 

development requirements." 

No action arising 

Suggest the deletion of the words ‘will be 

granted’ and substitution of the words 

‘….will need to demonstrate that’ or 

alternatively “….will not be granted 

unless…” 

NZ Golf Club The WPA has positively worded this policy to ensure consistency with the NPPF. No action arising 

Wish for the plan to reference importance 

of soil recycling at Patteson Court to 

safeguard operation.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

WPA agree that soil recycling / pre-treatment is important. This issue is covered by 

Policy 7 – Safeguarding. 

No action arising. 

Suggest that the definition for C, D and E 

waste could have been added earlier at 

policy 1.  

Runnymede 

BC 

C, D & E waste is defined earlier under Waste Management Context (See Paragraph 

4.1.3) 

No action arising 

Suggests that where possible reuse should 

be favoured over recycling (reusing bricks 

rather than crushing them) 

Effingham PC The WPA agree and would reassure the respondent that reuse is encouraged through 

the plan as it is further up the waste hierarchy than recycling. Especially see Policy 4.  

No action arising 

Support for policy 3 iii) encouraging WT Lambs The WPA agree with this comment and note that policy 3 iii) is essential for meeting No action arising 

P
age 160



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 97 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

development of CD&E recycling at minerals 

working restorations. This is important due 

difficulties with sourcing inert waste without 

hosting a recycling operation.  

agent  CD&E recycling capacity.  

Questions benefit of co-location other than 

in aiding minerals restorations. Stating 

minerals working restorations would be the 

only likely development to achieve logistical 

and efficiency benefits of policy.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA disagree with this comment and would highlight benefits like combining soil 

treatment and CD&E recycling at a site to reduce lorry movements. In any event co-

location associated with mineral restoration is an important activity. 

No action arising 

Concern increased CD&E recycling targets 

will impact minerals site restorations. 

Suggest recognition that this will increase 

time periods on restorations.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA acknowledge that increased recycling targets will impact the amount of inert 

waste available for restoration. Paragraph 8.3.7 in the plan states "The approach 

within the SWLP is to encourage the sustainable management of waste in line with the 

waste hierarchy. As such, the SWLP promotes the recycling of inert material over the 

recovery of this material to land. Surrey County Council recognises the tension that 

may exist between supporting recycling of C, D & E waste and encouraging timely 

restoration, as ongoing recycling might slow down restoration and the fact this will 

increase restoration time limits. Temporary extensions are often granted to combat 

this. " 

No action arising 

Questions how a measurement indicator for 

waste arisings can be measured in the 

future if this has not been measured in the 

past.  

Resident  Estimates of CDE waste have been made in the past. The AMR and LAA will used to 

monitor arisings and recycling rates of this type of waste in future. This is in line with 

national policy.   

No action arising 

Concern that policy for co-location of 

recycling facilities will prejudice restoration 

of minerals sites leading to unacceptable 

extensions of permissions. Comments that 

County Council must do more than just 

recognise a tension exists and policy is 

robust in ensuring co-location doesn’t result 

in unacceptable extensions of permission.  

Spelthorne BC The WPA acknowledge that CD&E recycling has resulted in longer restoration 

periods, however this has to be balanced with the need to provide recycled aggregate 

which reduces the need for mineral working of primary aggregate. Furthermore these 

facilities are important for ensuring CDE waste is processed to produce clean inert 

non-recyclable material that is appropriate for restoration.  

No action arising 

Policy 4 - 
Sustainable 
constructio
n and waste 
manageme
nt in new 
developme
nts  

Suggests CD&E waste can be used as 

hardcore in new developments.  

Resident  The WPA agrees. The aim of policy 3 is for CD&E waste to be recycled with one use 

potentially being hardcore in new developments.  

No action arising 

Suggest clarification on who will use this 

policy (presumes districts & boroughs).  

East Sussex 

CC 

The WPA acknowledge this comment and agree that this policy will be implemented 

by districts and borough and borough councils. There is reference to districts and 

boroughs using the policy in the supporting text but it could be made clearer that these 

authorities will be expected to apply this policy when dealing with most planning 

applications. 

Improve reference to districts and 
boroughs implementing this policy 
in supporting text. 

Suggest adding examples of what 

constitutes major development is in 

practice.  

East Sussex 

CC 

A specific reference to major development is included (defined in the TCPO 2015). 

However it is considered that the preamble should make it clearer that this policy 

applies to major development and not all development. 

Add text to section 8.3 to make it 
clearer that this policy applies to 
major development and not all 
development. 

General support for policy 4.  CPRE Surrey  The WPA acknowledge support for policy 4.  No action arising 

P
age 161



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 98 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Suggest that a site Waste Management 

plan, or a specific Environment Statement 

chapter is made a requirement of policy 4, 

as well as the Council’s waste planning 

application validation check list. 

WT Lambs 

agent  

A site waste management plan could be submitted with a planning application to 

demonstrate compliance with the Policy. This will be explained in the supporting text. 

Add information about the role of 
Site Waste Management plans in 
demonstrating compliance with 
Policy 4.  

Support for the provision of integrated 

storage within new developments for waste 

recycling. 

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA acknowledge support for policy 4.  No action arising 

Suggest that “will be supported” is 

confusing given that this policy will rarely 

be the main determinant as to whether a 

location is appropriate.  We suggest this 

policy would sit more comfortably alongside 

other planning policy considerations if it 

read “Major development will demonstrate 

that:”    

Guildford RA All relevant policies need to be taken into account when considering a development 

and this is made clear in paragraph 1.1.7 that states: "When determining applications 

all relevant policies of the development framework, as well as national policy, will be 

taken into account." It is noted that other policies use the term "will be granted" rather 

than ‘will be supported" and so to ensure consistency the term "will be granted" will be 

used.  

Replace the term "will be 
supported" with "will be granted". 

Policy 5 - 
Recovery of 
inert waste 
to land 

General support for policy 5. NZ Golf Club The WPA acknowledge support for policy 5.  No action arising 

Suggests policy should also specify the 

importance of inert material for use in 

landfill operations. Inert material provides a 

necessary engineering material and an 

appropriate after-use of inert waste.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

The WPA acknowledge this comment and would reassure the respondent the policy 5 

includes landfill restorations as recovery. The WPA agree that this could be made 

clearer.   

Amend para 8.4.2 as follows: "In 
Surrey, inert material derived from 
C, D & E waste is a valuable 
resource and when used in 
mineral site restoration as inert fill 
or as landfill capping material is 
considered to be a recovery 
operation" and amend Policy 5 as 
follows: "The recovery of inert 
waste to land is encouraged where 
this is necessary to implement 
minerals restoration and non-inert 
landfill restoration schemes. 

Comments on whether waste movements 

from South London Waste plan authorities 

will be able to continue.  

South London 

Waste plan  

The WPA acknowledge these comments and will respond in regards to these DtC 

comments. The plan does not inhibit the management of waste from South London in 

Surrey. Para 7.1.1 notes that the Spatial Strategy takes account of "Managing some 

waste from London and other surrounding counties; net self-sufficiency accepts that it 

is not practicable to deal only with waste produced in Surrey and that cross-boundary 

waste movements, including those from London, will be necessary to support the 

viability and efficient operation of waste management facilities." 

Log as DtC 

Concern that 'other development' will 

reduce waste stream available for minerals 

restoration because ‘other development' 

will require CD&E recycling on site, this 

takes material away from restorations.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

Minerals restoration often also involves on-site CDE recycling to produce clean inert 

material that can be used in restoration. It is accepted that the Policy could be 

strengthened to ensure restoration of mineral working is preferred over other recovery 

to land activities. 

Amend policy to 'other 
development that will not 
prejudice mineral restoration 
activity...’  

Suggests policy should include requirement Guildford RA This is generally an operational matter dealt with by the Environmental Permit that is No action arising 

P
age 162



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 99 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

for quality assurance that material being 

recovered is inert and not hazardous. 

issued and enforced by the Environment Agency. In certain cases relevant conditions 

may also be applied to planning permissions. 

Suggests that policy 5 could include 

provision inert waste to be used as sound 

barriers (bunds) alongside major highways. 

Suggesting green waste be used on top to 

provide a visual and environmental benefit.  

Resident  The WPA agree and would reassure the respondent that provision for 'other 

development' covers this.  

Add 'Landscaping and noise 
attenuation' to list of 'other 
recovery operations' included in 
paragraph 8.4.3 

Policy 6 - 
Disposal of 
non-inert 
waste to 
land 

Comments that there are many risks with 

burying non-inert waste and there are other 

technologies for methane recovery like 

digesters?  

Resident  The WPA acknowledge these comments and highlight that land is not being allocated 

for landfill and the plan aims to move waste up the hierarchy away from disposal. 

Methane from landfills is carefully managed and used to create electricity. Paragraph 

8.5.5 states: "Any application for landfill must provide details of how the site will be 

restored and any measures needed to manage landfill gas". In addition all non-inert 

landfills require Environmental Permits from the Environment Agency which ensures 

that any emissions do not cause harm to human health or pollution of the 

environment. 

No action arising 

Suggests the deletion of 'will be granted' 

and include either 'will need to 

demonstrate…’ or will not be granted 

unless….” 

NZ Golf Club The WPA has positively worded this policy to be consistent with the NPPF.   No action arising 

Support for policy 6 that it recognises the 

importance of landfill in achieving net self-

sufficiency.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

The WPA acknowledge support for policy 6. No action arising 

Importance for policy 6 / plan to recognise 

future need for landfill to deal with waste 

streams from London/other authorities and 

comments it is unclear whether 

consultations on such waste movements 

have taken place.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

Discussion and consultation with neighbouring authorities has been ongoing and is 

continuing. This is reported in the Duty to Cooperate statement. 

No action arising 

Comments that Landfill is also an important 

way to deal with hazardous materials.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

The WPA acknowledges this comment and agree there is a need to include text to 

confirm the potential use of landfill for dealing with hazardous waste streams.  

Add supporting text stating 
importance of landfill when dealing 
with hazardous waste.  

  Suggest para 8.5.2 should specifically refer 

to pre-treatment for landfill as some 

residues are not necessarily in stable form 

for landfill.  

Guildford RA Even though it is expected that only residues will be landfilled, unlike inert waste, non-

inert waste may undergo further chemical and biological activity - such as that 

involved with the production of landfill gas. However the Environmental Permit issued 

by the Environment Agency ensures that any emissions (to water, air and land) will 

not result harm to the human health or pollution of the environment.  

No action arising 

  Do not support 0% target for household 

waste going to landfill and believes this will 

increase quantity of waste being 

incinerated. Comments that incineration 

requires landfill for bottom ash.  

Guildford RA The management of waste by incineration (with energy recovery) is preferred over the 

disposal of waste by landfill which is the least preferred form of waste management. 

This is because incineration involves significant energy production. Bottom ash can be 

recycled as an aggregate. 

No action arising 

P
age 163



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 100 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Policy 7 - 
safeguardin
g  

Concern regarding current CRCs closing 

and the resultant fly tipping because of this.  

Resident  The WPA acknowledge the concern the respondent has regarding CRC closures and 

subsequent fly tipping. CRCs are the responsibility of the WDA.   

 No action arising 

Suggests that this policy might also 

safeguard sites with planning permission 

for waste management operations which 

have not yet been implemented. 

East Sussex 

CC 

Agree.  The policy and supporting text will 
be updated to ensure that sites 
with permission for waste 
management will be safeguarded 
for that purpose. 

Support for safeguarding where there it is 

required. 

CPRE Surrey The WPA acknowledge support for policy 7.  No action arising 

Support for safeguarding Martyrs Lane 

CRC. 

NZ Golf Club  The WPA acknowledge support for the safeguarding of an existing site.  No action arising 

Do not support safeguarding of Martyrs 

Lane allocation.  

NZ Golf Club The WPA acknowledge this comment. The Martyrs lane site is currently safeguarded 

as an existing allocation in the 2008 plan.  

No action arising 

Suggest that policy 7 needs to consider the 

impact on capacity from nearby uses not 

just total loss of site.  

Grundons  Agree. Policy 7 will be reworded to make it clear that existing and planned sites 

should be safeguarded from new development proposed near to existing and planned 

waste facilities. This would be consistent with proposed changes to the NPPF 

concerning 'Agents of Change'. 

Amend Policy 7 to ensure existing 
and planned sites should be 
safeguarded from new 
development proposed near to 
existing and planned waste 
facilities. 

Suggest that consideration of non-waste 

related development is included as an 

indicator in table 17. Strengthening policy 7 

with this will be in line with national policy 

and reduce risk to Patteson Court landfill 

site from residential development.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

Agree. An additional indicator will be included in Table 17. Add the following additional 
indicator to Table 17: "Number of 
safeguarded waste where planning 
permission has been granted to 
non-waste development nearby 
contrary to advice from Surrey 
County Council as the WPA" 

Information provided on safeguarded waste 

sites in Hampshire near the 

Hampshire/Surrey border. Noted that 

nearly 51,000 tonnes of waste from Surrey 

was managed at some of these sites. 

Confirmation that there is no reason that 

sites reported as managing waste from 

Surrey cannot continue to do so. 

Hampshire CC  The WPA acknowledge these comments from Hampshire CC and will log them as 

engagement in accordance with DtC.  

Log as DtC. 

Comments that land owner has no interest 

in developing Wisley site for waste use and 

does not regard safeguarding policy for 

site.  

Wisley 

Property 

Investments  

In light of the fact that the landowner has no interest in the site for waste use and the 

allocation of the site in GBC submission local plan, the WPA will not object to non 

waste development. Once the SWLP has been adopted this site will lose its status as 

a site allocated for waste management use. 

No action arising 

Comments that para 8.6.4 notes 

safeguarding “does not rule out alternative 

development” and “the presumption is that 

waste development should be 

safeguarded.” A mechanism for what would 

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA Agree. The Policy needs to be clearer about the circumstances when 

alternative development would be allowed. 

Add wording to the Policy to make 
it clearer about the circumstances 
when alternative development 
would be allowed. 

P
age 164



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 101 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

be considered suitable alternative 

development and whether this would be 

concurrent with waste management uses is 

not provided for in the policies. Para 8.6.4 

weakens the presumption for waste 

management uses of allocated sites. 

Suggest change of wording to state that 

safeguarding is a policy consideration not a 

material consideration. (In line with s.38 

(6)). 

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA disagree - policy considerations fall under the heading of material planning 

considerations. Government guidance states: "How must decisions on applications for 

planning permission be made? 

To the extent that development plan policies are material to an application for planning 

permission the decision must be taken in accordance with the development plan 

unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise (see section 70(2) of 

the Town and Country planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 – these provisions also apply to appeals)." 

No action arising 

Comments that policy 7 is irrational as if 

site is no longer required, permitted rights 

would override safeguarding policy.  

Resident  The WPA disagree if the site has been developed, is allocated or has planning 

permission for a waste use then permitted rights for other uses would not exist. 

No action arising 

Suggest clarification is required that 

temporary sites are not safeguarded under 

policy 7. 

Spelthorne BC There is a need to make the position regarding temporary sites clearer. Temporary 

sites have safeguarded status for as long as their permission exists. 

Amend supporting text and/or the 
policy to make position on 
safeguarding temporary sites 
clearer. 

Support for safeguarding to ensure the 

provision of suitable waste management 

infrastructure.  

Spelthorne BC The WPA acknowledge support for policy 7.  No action arising 

 
  

P
age 165



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 102 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

 

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

Policy 8 - 

Enhancement 

or extension 

of existing 

facilities  

Questions whether there is a wide 

enough reference point with regards to 

key organisations providing evidence on 

enhancement. Asks if WPA should also 

be contacting key environmental 

organisations in the area. 

Resident  It is acknowledged that this comment and would reassure the respondent that 

proposals for enhancement and extension are subject to full planning applications that 

will provide key & local organisations the same opportunity to comment as they would 

on new sites. 

No action arising  

Comments from TFL with concerns that 

expansion to Charlton Lane facility may 

impact on the land required for Crossrail 

2.  

TFL It is acknowledged that this comment and it will be logged under DtC. Any proposal to 

expand the facility would need to take into account any impact on Crossrail 2 so this 

could be considered in any decision to grant planning permission. 

Log as DtC 

Concern that types of potential expansion 

aren't listed and that this may lead to 

different unsuitable waste use 

expansions at current facilities.  

Mole Valley 

DC 

The respondent should be reassured that expansion / extension proposals would be 

subject to full planning applications which would restrict unsuitable development. 

Policy 8 expects proposals for enhancement and extension of existing facilities to 

demonstrate benefits to the local amenity and environment.  

No action arising  

Suggest a list of current sites in waste 

management use be listed within the 

plan. Stated they had difficulty finding this 

information.  

Mole Valley 

DC 

It is acknowledged that these comments and will ensure an accessible list of current 

sites is available.   

Include, and update, list of existing 

waste facilities in the Annual 

Monitoring Report  

Suggest wording is changed by putting 

'and' at the end instead of 'or' to make 

policy 8 sound.  

CPRE Surrey Expansions to recycling facilities do not need to demonstrate that waste will be 

managed further up the waste hierarchy. The Policy allows for a reduction in capacity 

only if waste is managed further up the hierarchy. 

No action arising  

Suggest deletion of the word 'generally' in 

reference to enhancement being within 

the current footprint of the site. Use of 

'generally' in regard to enhancement 

being within the footprint of the site is 

unclear and restrictive due to increases 

in site area being subject to development 

management policies. 

NZ Golf Club 

and Biffa 

Waste 

Management 

The wording of the Policy will be reviewed to ensure it is effective. Review wording of Policy 8 

Suggests that policy 8 should not limit 

expansion in terms of capacity. As there 

are limiting factors to capacity (EA 

permits).  

Grundons  Agree and would reassure the respondent that enhancement will also be encouraged 

where other benefits result or where waste is managed further up the waste hierarchy.  

No action arising  

P
age 166



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 103 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

Support for expansion of sites as they 

are currently located away from residents 

with established transport routes.  

Effingham PC It is acknowledged that support for policy 8.  No action arising  

New proposals should consider rail 

access.  

Effingham PC Transport of waste to and from sites is considered specifically by Policy 15 which 

expects opportunities for transport by rail to be considered. This would also be applied 

when proposals for extensions to sites are considered. 

No action arising  

Concern that policy will restrict uses at 

Lambs BP from CD&E recycling to EfW 

due to policy requirement for no capacity 

loss and movement up the waste 

hierarchy.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The allocation of the site in the plan will specify the uses that site can be used for and 

this may include EfW (to be confirmed following detailed assessment) - such strategic 

allocation for EfW would override Policy 8 though, at the time of the application, it 

would be necessary to demonstrate that there was a continued for need for energy 

recovery (in accordance with Policy 1).   

No action arising  

Wish for larger site allocation of Lambs 

BP due to policy 8 requirement of 

expansion generally being within the 

footprint of the site.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The size of the allocated site will be reviewed in light of comments received. Review area of Lambs Business 

Park allocation 

 

Concern that policy is too vague. 

Clarification on whether “enhancement or 

extension” supports a new process 

higher up the hierarchy or expansion of 

an existing process that is compatible 

with the hierarchy  

Guildford RA It is acknowledged that these comments and would confirm that policy 8 supports both 

a new process up the hierarchy and intensification of a current activity that brings 

more capacity.  

Review Policy 8 to ensure it is as 

clear as possible.  

Suggests policy is unnecessarily 

restrictive. States policy should make it 

easier to enlarge sites to reduce impact 

of finding new ones.  

Resident  The WPA disagree and would draw the respondent's attention to the positive nature of 

the policy which is intended to encourage enhancement of current sites. For the WPA 

to be supportive however some benefits must be achieved e.g. Capacity or 

environmental benefits. Also note that Strategic Objective 4 which is: "To retain and 

make best use of existing sites for waste development through safeguarding against 

non-waste development and supporting improvement of facilities." 

No action arising  

Suggest clarification that policy for 

enhancement does not apply to 

temporary sites. Concern that 

enhancement will lead to sites becoming 

established and they won’t be fully 

restored.  

Spelthorne BC In certain cases certain types of enhancement may be appropriate at temporary sites. 

The temporary nature of sites will be taken into account when any proposals are 

considered and this will be clarified in the text. 

Add text to confirm that the 

appropriateness of enhancements 

and extensions will take account of 

any time limits relating to the 

operation of sites. 

Policy 9 - 

Green Belt  

Comments that only brownfield sites 

should be allocated and there is sufficient 

brownfield land in Surrey.  

Resident While brownfield sites are preferable, extensive site identification and assessments 

haven't identified sufficient brownfield land to meet future waste management needs. 

Applications for development on Green Belt allocations will have to demonstrate that 

alternative suitable brownfield sites are not available.  

No action arising  

Suggest wording “If the site also lies 

within the Surrey Hills AONB, in 

balancing whether very special 

Surrey Hills 

AONB Board 

Protection of AONB is sufficiently covered in the NPPF and in policy 14 both of which 

would need to be taken into account when considering proposals which might have an 

impact on AONB. 

No action arising  

P
age 167



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 104 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

circumstances are considered to 

outweigh the inappropriateness of such 

facilities in the Green Belt, great weight 

will be given on the other hand to 

whether the proposed development 

would conserve the landscape and 

scenic beauty of the AONB”.  

Concern that policy could lead to a large 

loss of Green Belt and that this needs to 

be considered further. 

Resident  The WPA agree that some Green Belt land could be lost. This is balanced against the 

need for waste management capacity and the lack of suitable non Green Belt sites as 

defined in the very special circumstances which is consistent with national policy 

protection of Green Belt land.  The plan states in paragraph 8.7.4: "...it is not 

considered possible to meet the anticipated waste management needs of the county 

without developing waste management facilities on Green Belt land. The overarching 

need for waste management in Surrey combined with a lack of suitable alternative 

sites outside the Green Belt and the need to locate facilities close to sources of waste 

are reasons why it is considered that very special circumstances may exist allowing 

development within the Green Belt. 

8.7.5 Mineral development is not inappropriate development in the Green Belt, 

provided that it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with 

the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. Waste development which is related 

to the restoration of mineral sites can play a positive role in the objectives of the 

Green Belt. For example, restoration can result in a suitable after use of a site with 

opportunities for access to restored open countryside." 

No action arising  

Concern that Policy 9 pre-empts waste 

development on Green Belt and policy 9 

could trigger other inappropriate 

developments.  

Resident  Developments on Green Belt land will still be subject to full applications and have to 

prove very special circumstances as well as minimising the impact they have on the 

Green Belt. Policy 9 will not trigger other inappropriate development as it solely relates 

to waste development.  

No action arising  

Concern that very special circumstances 

defined in policy 9 aren’t strong enough. 

Resident  The very special circumstances are considered to be consistent with national policy on 

the protection of Green Belt.  

No action arising  

Consider it to be highly unlikely that other 

sites will be required. There will need to 

be a detailed assessment of the impacts 

before deciding if a site is suitable for the 

proposed process. 

CPRE Surrey The Waste Needs Assessment indicates that there will not be sufficient waste 

management capacity in Surrey over the life of the plan period and so new facilities 

are likely to be required. All planning applications for waste management facilities will 

need to be accompanied by a detailed assessment of potential impacts.  

No action arising  

Need to ensure proposals are assessed 

against other policies in the development 

plan. 

NZ Golf Club Agree. The plan confirms this in paragraphs 116 and 117.  No action arising  

Support that policy provides flexibility, 

especially in regards to the proximity 

principle.  

Biffa Waste 

Management  

It is acknowledged that support for policy 9.  No action arising  

Comments that reference to not being 

able to meet future need without 

Resident  It is acknowledged that the respondent's concern. The needs assessment and 

detailed site assessments and evaluation revealed future waste management needs 

No action arising  

P
age 168



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 105 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

developing on the Green Belt is defeatist 

and likely to prejudice future planning 

decisions.  

are unlikely to be met without developing on Green Belt. Future planning decisions will 

be made in line with the plans policies and if developments can demonstrate very 

special circumstances.  The plan states; 8.7.4 However, it is not considered possible 

to meet the anticipated waste management needs of the county without developing 

waste management facilities on Green Belt land. The overarching need for waste 

management in Surrey combined with a lack of suitable alternative sites outside the 

Green Belt and the need to locate facilities close to sources of waste are reasons why 

it is considered that very special circumstances may exist allowing development within 

the Green Belt. 

8.7.5 Mineral development is not inappropriate development in the Green Belt, 

provided that it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with 

the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. Waste development which is related 

to the restoration of mineral sites can play a positive role in the objectives of the 

Green Belt. For example, restoration can result in a suitable after use of a site with 

opportunities for access to restored open countryside. 

Support for recognition that Green Belt is 

required to meet capacity gap. 

WT Lambs 

agent  

It is acknowledged that support for policy 9.  No action arising  

Desire for policy 9 not to require 

allocated sites to demonstrate 'very 

special circumstances' suggesting this 

has already been done through work 

selecting the site and identifying the 

need.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

A need has currently been identified but applications will need to demonstrate, at the 

time they are made, that a need based on the most current waste data exists in order 

to demonstrate very special circumstances. 

No action arising  

Wording on the approach to special 

circumstances is unclear. 

Guildford RA The WPA disagree and argue the wording to the approach is clear. Policy 9 details 

factors which may contribute to very special circumstances. 

No action arising  

Argues that sites allocated (in current 

plan) that were in the Green Belt 

struggled to come forward because of 

demonstrating very special 

circumstances. This has led to a lack of 

allocated sites getting planning 

permission.  

Bridge Court 

Holdings  

It is acknowledged that these comments. However they would suggest that the nature 

of the proposals on some of these allocated sites has led to a lack of permission being 

granted not just that they were unable to prove very special circumstances.  

No action arising  

Suggest policy 9 should include 'New or 

extended proposals should preserve the 

openness and character of the Green 

Belt and improve the attractiveness and 

setting of that location as well as 

demonstrate very special circumstances.' 

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

The key characteristic of Green Belt is its openness and so there is to need to 

separately refer to its character. Impacts on the setting and attractiveness of the 

location are addressed in Policies 13 and 14. 

No action arising  

Concern that previously allocated sites 

are allocated again without proper 

consideration. For a 'tilted balance' 

argument potential uses and current 

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

Proper consideration has been given to the identification of sites - the sites proposed 

for allocation were selected from an original long list of 200 sites. The process is set 

out in the Site Identification and Evaluation report.   

No action arising  

P
age 169



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 106 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

external factors must be considered.  

Suggest wording in policy 9 be more 

closely aligned with the wording set out in 

the NPPF and make it clear that "very 

special circumstances" have to be 

demonstrated for each and every 

proposed development in the Green Belt 

which has to considered on its own 

merits so that "the potential harm to the 

Green Belt by reason of 

inappropriateness, and any other harm, 

is clearly outweighed by other 

considerations. The factors which have 

been listed in the policy are not the only 

factors which should be taken into 

account. 

Spelthorne BC It is acknowledged that these comments. The factors listed in the policy is not 

intended to be an exhaustive list of the very special circumstances. Agree wording 

needs to more closely align to that in the NPPF to ensure consistency. 

The policy will be amended as 

follows: (delete text in purple italics 

add text in bold and underlined) 

"Where proposals for development 

in the Green Belt are considered 

inappropriate, these will be 

supported where very special 

circumstances exist such that the 

benefit of the development clearly 

outweighs any potential harm to 

the Green Belt and any other 

harm. ‘Very special 

circumstances’ will not exist 

unless the potential harm to the 

Green Belt by reason of 

inappropriateness, and any 

other harm, is clearly 

outweighed by other 

considerations." 

Acknowledges that policy makes 

reference to the positive role of waste 

development in relation to the restoration 

of mineral sites in the Green Belt. 

Concern that with extended restoration 

timescales due to recycling impact the 

benefits of restorations and suggest that 

timescales are imposed so that there is a 

clear expectation of when temporary 

uses will cease and when the benefits of 

restoration will be achieved. 

Spelthorne BC The need to balance increased production of recycled aggregate with the need to 

restore mineral sites in a timely fashion is recognised by the plan which states at 

paragraph 8.3.7 that states: "The approach within the SWLP is to encourage the 

sustainable management of waste in line with the waste hierarchy. As such, the 

SWLP promotes the recycling of inert material over the recovery of this material to 

land. The tension that may exist between supporting recycling of C, D & E waste and 

encouraging timely restoration is acknowledged, as ongoing recycling might slow 

down restoration." 

No action arising  

 Policy 10 – 

Strategic 

Waste Site 

Allocations-  

Objection to the non-allocation of current 

Trumps Farm composting site that is 

operated by Colliers Environmental.  

Colliers 

Environmental 

Services  

The site was considered as part of the site identification exercise undertaken by the 

WPA. The site was removed for the following reasons as set out in 4.2.10 of the Site 

ID & Evaluation report 'There is scope for some rationalisation of composting and 

green waste operations but only limited scope to increase capacity hence it is not 

recommended for inclusion in the emerging SWLP.' 

No action arising  

 There is currently too much flexibility in 

the plan. The plan should make it clear 

what types of waste management use 

would be suitable for development at 

each of the allocated sites. Some groups 

will not feel able to comment on the sites 

Resident, 

CPRE Surrey, 

Guildford RA, 

Tandridge DC, 

Spelthorne 

BC, 

The SWLP preparation so far has identified sites that are potentially most suitable in 

principle. Technical assessment work is being undertaken to establish which types of 

waste management facility would be suitable for development at the proposed 

allocated sites. 

Update Annex 1 to confirm which 

types and scale of waste 

management facility would be 

suitable for development at the 

proposed allocated sites 

P
age 170



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 107 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

without knowing what is proposed and 

the scale of the development. 

Runnymede 

BC  

Comments that there should be no 

assumption that planning permission will 

be granted.  

CPRE Surrey It is acknowledged that these comments and would reassure the respondent that 

allocated sites will be subject to full applications. They are sites identified as most 

suitable for accommodating waste management uses and do not assume permission 

will be granted. Paragraph 8.7.13 states: "All sites will be subject to a formal planning 

application process and will be required to demonstrate that they are consistent with 

the policies in this plan including the key development requirements." 

No action arising  

Suggests that applications must 

demonstrate they are consistent with the 

policies of the local development plan not 

just the provisions of the SWLP. 

NZ Golf Club Agree. The plan confirms this in paragraphs 116 and 117.  No action arising  

Suggests policy is worded "planning 

permission will only be granted for the 

development of waste facilities at the 

following strategic waste sites if the 

applicant can demonstrate to the 

satisfaction of the county council that the 

proposals is consistent with other policies 

of the Waste plan and the key 

requirements for each of the sites have 

been fully addressed".  

Woking BC The policy is positively worded (to be consistent with the NPPF) while ensuring 

proposals must be consistent with policies in the development plan and address the 

key development criteria.  

No action arising  

Support the exclusion of Wisley Airfield 

from allocations.  

Wisley 

Property 

Investments  

Support is noted. No action arising  

Comments that consultation is flawed 

highlighting people being asked to 

comment on other areas without having 

any local knowledge in particular.  

Resident  The consultation does not assume that all those responding will have detailed 

knowledge of all the sites. Objective information is presented on the merits of each 

site and why it was selected in the Site Identification and Evaluation Report - this 

intended to allow anyone to comment on the merits of all the sites. 

No action arising  

Acknowledgement that further 

assessment will be done to establish 

appropriate potential uses on sites. 

Assessments should also consider the 

realistic mediations and the particular 

circumstances, surroundings and 

planning characteristics of the locations 

which may be affected. 

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

It is acknowledged that these comments. Assessments will establish what uses may 

be acceptable on sites taking into account the potential for mitigation of impacts. 

Detailed impact assessment of proposals with information on mitigation will be 

assessed at the application stage.  

No action arising  

Support for current 2008 SWP and policy 

WD2 that excludes thermal treatment 

being appropriate. Desire for this to be 

continued in new SWLP.  

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

It is acknowledged that these comments. Technical assessment is currently being 

undertaken to establish they types of waste management facility that could be 

developed at each site without causing unacceptable impacts. 

No action arising  

Acknowledgement that policy 10 is not Spelthorne BC The WPA would reassure the respondent that acceptable uses at sites will be No action arising  

P
age 171



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 108 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

technology specific but consider it 

important to give guidance of the scale of 

developments which would be 

acceptable on sites.  

disclosed once detailed assessments have been undertaken.  

 

Concern that site 8 (Lambs) will fail to 

meet the sustainable transport objectives  

Resident Transport Assessment of this site is being undertaken to establish its suitability in 

terms of the sustainable transport objectives. 

Update Annexe 1 with the 

outcomes of the Transport 

Assessment. 

 

Concern that the Lambs Business Park 

site is unsustainable and environmentally 

unsound 

Residents This comment is acknowledged. All of the allocated sites in the SWLP are assessed 

as part of the Environmental and Sustainability Report, which deals with Strategic 

Environmental Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal. 

No action arising. 

Policy 11 - 

Other areas 

suitable for 

development 

of waste 

management 

facilities 

Object to policy 11 making provision for 

possible waste development on 

established employment sites. 

Comments that waste related 

development could have a significant 

negative impact on employment areas 

within the borough.  

Surrey Heath 

BC 

It is acknowledged that these comments. Other policies of the plan, in particular Policy 

14, would ensure that proposals for waste development on established employments 

sites would only be permitted if it were demonstrated that the site could be operated 

without causing unacceptable impacts. The WPA would seek to work with Surrey 

Heath BC at an application stage to avoid policy conflict. 

After targeting consultation with 

districts and boroughs, include list 

of industrial estates in the plan 

which have been assessed as 

having potential for development 

to take place without causing 

unacceptable impacts 

Comments that development should be 

on brownfield sites only and the Green 

Belt must be preserved or that Green 

Belt is inappropriate for waste 

management sites.  

Resident While brownfield sites are preferable, extensive site assessments haven’t identified 

insufficient brownfield land to meet future waste management needs. The plan states 

at paragraph 8.7.4: ".... it is not considered possible to meet the anticipated waste 

management needs of the county without developing waste management facilities on 

Green Belt land. The overarching need for waste management in Surrey combined 

with a lack of suitable alternative sites outside the Green Belt and the need to locate 

facilities close to sources of waste are reasons why it is considered that very special 

circumstances may exist allowing development within the Green Belt." 

No action arising  

Believes waste processing located inside 

buildings in previously developed areas 

is preferable to the development of new 

sites in the countryside. 

Resident  The WPA agree that these areas are preferable for waste development and indoor 

activities are encouraged where they mitigate negative impacts. However work to 

identify potential sites has revealed that future requirements for waste management 

capacity are unlikely to be met by development on brownfield sites alone. Many of the 

allocations are located on land that would generally not be described ‘countryside’. 

No action arising  

Disagrees with policy, states that 

brownfield land can often include garden 

land that is inappropriate for waste 

development, also industrial estates can 

be inappropriate e.g. B1 accommodating 

composting.  

CPRE Surrey Inappropriate waste uses will not be granted permission on industrial estates or 

garden land as these would not satisfy other policies of the plan, in particular Policy 

14. All proposals will be subject to full applications and need to be consistent with 

other policies in the plan if they are to be permitted.  

No action arising  

The Policy will allow sites to come 

forward without similar scrutiny to 

allocated sites. Sites could be advanced 

without the same level of public 

consultation as allocated sites.  

NZ Golf Club All proposals for waste development would be subject to full applications 

accompanied by assessment of potential impacts and would require consultation. 

Proposals will not be granted permission unless they are consistent with the policies 

of the development plan. 

No action arising  

P
age 172



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 109 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

Sites must come forward on the basis 

that they have been reviewed as part of 

the plan consultation and adoption 

process and that proposals have to be 

considered against the wider 

development plan and not just the SWLP 

(as required by Policy 11 (iii). 

NZ Golf Club  Not all waste management capacity can come from allocated sites due to 

development being market driven. Smaller facilities in particular may be suitable for 

development on smaller non allocated sites.  This policy therefore allows for flexibility 

in the way that waste management capacity can be developed. Paragraph 1.1.6 of the 

plan states: "This plan forms part of the overall development framework for Surrey. 

Other waste and minerals related policy can be found in the Surrey Minerals Plan 

(2011), the Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan Document (2013) and the 

Minerals Site Restoration Supplementary planning Document (2011). The planning 

policy for non-waste and minerals related development can be found in the Local 

plans of the District and Borough Councils in Surrey. 

1.1.7 When determining applications all relevant policies of the development 

framework, as well as national policy, will be taken into account." 

No action arising  

Concern that there is potential conflict 

between policy 11 and policy IE2 of 

Runnymede Local plan which seeks to 

safeguard B use land for employment.  

Runnymede 

BC 

 The council consider that certain proposals for waste management might be suitable 

for development on allocated employment land. Other policies of the plan, in particular 

Policy 14, would ensure that proposals for waste development on established 

employments sites would only be permitted if it were demonstrated that the site could 

be operated without causing unacceptable impacts. 

No action arising  

Suggests that policy 11 should include a 

requirement for applications on non-

allocated sites to have regard to the 

County’s net waste arisings and capacity 

of facilities. This is to ensure the 

development of waste management 

facilities is plan-led.  

WT Lambs 

agent  

The WPA agree. The plan requires all sites (allocated and non-allocated) to prove the 

need for development against the latest assessment of waste management capacity 

requirements - see Policy 1. 

No action arising  

Concern that policy 11 is too vague. The 

text "development of facilities to meet 

identified shortfalls in waste management 

capacity" on “redundant agricultural and 

forestry buildings and their curtilages” 

could be appropriate or could give rise to 

inappropriate development. States that 

policy is not clear enough to achieve 

desired outcome without having a 

negative effect on the countryside.  

Guildford RA Policy 11 is positively worded to support development on previously developed or 

industrial land away from greenfield sites and Green Belt. Other policies of the plan, in 

particular Policy 14, would ensure that proposals for waste development on would 

only be permitted if it were demonstrated that the site could be operated without 

causing unacceptable impacts.  

No action arising  

Policy 12 - 

Waste Water 

Treatment 

Works 

Concern for capacity of Horley STW (Lee 

St) in regards to new housing and limited 

space for development on the STW. 

Odour from STW is getting more 

frequent.  

Resident  It is acknowledged that the respondents concern. Lee Street STW is run by Thames 

Water and as the sewerage undertaker it is their responsibility to ensure capacity at 

the site. Odour nuisance should be reported to the Environment Agency that is 

responsible for regulating emissions from the facility. Any expansion of capacity would 

require planning permission that would be considered against all the policies of the 

development plan. 

No action arising  

Concern that policy 12 doesn’t 

adequately consider planned increase in 

Resident  The sewerage undertaker will review capacity of existing sites and their ability to 

manage wastewater in future using the best available data including housing 

No action arising  

P
age 173



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 110 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

homes.  allocations. This flexible policy allows for expansion where it is needed.  

Comments on current situation at 

Cranleigh STW - Concern that current 

capacity is insufficient. Mention working 

party that has been set up. Note that 

capacity at STW is a limiting factor to 

development in the area and issues with 

infrastructure like the pumping station at 

the end of Cranleigh Rd. 

Ewhurst & 

Ellens Green 

PC, Resident  

The sewerage undertaker will review capacity of existing sites and their ability to 

manage wastewater currently and in future using the best available data including 

housing allocations. This flexible policy allows for expansion where it is needed.  

No action arising  

Strongly disagree with policy. Understand 

need for new sites but states it is 

unacceptable to grant planning 

permission automatically without looking 

at the implications of the proposed use 

on the site and its surroundings. 

CPRE Surrey  Proposals at new and existing sites would need to be consistent with all the relevant 

policies of the development plan which includes those intended to ensure that no 

unacceptable impacts would occur as a result of the development - see Policy 14 in 

particular.  

No action arising  

Comments that reference to Guildford 

Boroughs 'proposed submission local 

plan' should be changed to 'submission 

local plan'.  

Guildford BC It is acknowledged that this comment and will alter text accordingly. Para 8.8.3 remove 'proposed'. 

Support for the identification of the new 

(Guildford) wastewater treatment works 

and in particular including the land for 

future expansion. 

Thames Water It is acknowledged that support for policy 12. No action arising  

Suggests policy 12 be amended to read 

“The upgrading or expansion of existing 

wastewater/sewage treatment works will 

be supported, either where needed to 

serve existing or proposed new 

development, or in the interests of long 

term and wastewater management.” to 

be in line with national policy.  

Thames Water  The WPA agree in principle. Add appropriate  text to Policy 12 

Suggests policy 12 could provide similar 

support for upgrades/extensions at 

existing wastewater and sewage 

treatment works. 

Thames Water The WPA would suggest that as written policy 12 adequately supports upgrades and 

extensions. The policy states; …new…or for the improvement or extension of 

existing… 

No action arising  

Policy 12 should recognise that some of 

these works are in locations with very 

high flood risk which may not be 

appropriate for a larger modern biogas 

plant.  

Guildford RA  The risk of flooding caused by any proposed development would be considered at the 

planning application stage to ensure that unacceptable flooding impact do not occur 

as set out in policy 14.  

No action arising  

Disagrees with policy making provision 

for STW to expand at other sites due to 

Resident  Policy 12 is designed to make expansion acceptable where required. Policy 12 does 

not make provision for engineering or technical details of STWs. It will be up to 

No action arising  

P
age 174



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 111 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

them being gravity fed. Statement on 

expansion is unsuitable in this context.  

industry and operators to decide if sites are capable of expansion. 

Suggests that policy 12 should refer to 

what the WPA consider should happen to 

WWTW that are likely to become 

redundant during the plan period. 

Concern that these sites shouldn’t just be 

allocated for another waste use.  

Reigate & 

Banstead BC 

The WPA has consulted the water companies responsible for operating WWTWs in 

Surrey and is not aware of any WWTW sites ceasing operations during the plan 

period. These sites would be safeguarded until the waste use ceases.  

Consider amending wording of the 

Policy or Policy preamble to 

provide further clarity.  

Policy 13 - 

Sustainable 

Design 

General support for Policy 13. Residents, 

CPRE Surrey 

It is acknowledged that support for policy 13. No action arising  

Comments that the most modern 

techniques (not the cheapest) to reduce 

smell, noise, etc. must be adopted.  

Resident  This is addressed by the policy that states: "planning permission for waste 

development will be granted where it can be demonstrated that development follows 

best practice for built design".  The provisions within policy 13 and other policies will 

require technologies that bring the most benefit and smallest negative impact. 

No action arising  

Suggests policy 13 is contradictory as the 

development of a waste management 

facility cannot by definition make a 

positive contribution to the quality of the 

local environment unless that 

environment has already suffered 

degradation from another undesirable 

use.  Suggests mitigation measures are 

of little concern considering the negative 

impacts of waste development. 

Resident  Biodiversity gains for example can be created as part of sustainable design even on 

land that wasn’t already degraded. The mitigation measures are essential to ensure 

that waste developments are sustainable during construction and throughout their 

operational life. National planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) aims to ensure any waste 

management facilities are a positive contribution to communities and to balance the 

need for waste management facilities with the interests of the community (3.2.9). The 

plan seeks to ensure that all new development is of a high standard. It encourages 

well-designed schemes which will make a positive contribution to the quality of the of 

the local environment (8.9.3) 

No action arising  

Suggests that policy 13 should be cross 

linked to policies proposing new 

development. 

CPRE Surrey The WPA agree. Policy 13 would be considered against applications for new waste 

development.  

No action arising  

Suggests amending wording to "planning 

applications for waste development will 

need to demonstrate that the proposals 

follow....." 

NZ Golf Club The WPA has positively worded this policy to be consistent with the NPPF.   No action arising  

The monitoring measure and target 

refers to design guidance which has not 

been detailed in the plan so this cannot 

be assessed. 

Grundon 

Waste 

Management 

This comment is acknowledged. The Design Guidance will be produced once the plan 

is adopted and will be used in monitoring. 

Clearer reference to the availability 

of the Design Guidance will be 

included in the plan 

Would like to see Policy 13 reflected 

more in the vision statement. 

Resident  Agree that specific mention to best practice design could be included in the Vision 

statement.   

Consider mentioning best practice 

design in the Vision statement.  

Section iii) refers to ‘necessary’ 

landscaping and biodiversity gains, 

however there doesn’t seem to be a 

definition of what ‘necessary’ means in 

this context. Clarification should be 

Natural 

England 

The expectation of net landscaping gains are dependent on the scale and nature of 

proposals. Inclusion of expectations in policy 13 could restrict consideration of such 

matters at the appropriate stage. 

Add supporting text to clarify WPA 

approach to assessing what it 

would consider to be appropriate 

in terms of landscaping and 

biodiversity gains 

P
age 175



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 112 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising 

included to establish what is expected of 

developments in terms of net gain and 

landscaping. 

Any waste processing that potentially 

emits chemicals should not considered.  

Technology can fail, and unless strict, 

unannounced environmental checks are 

made on a regular basis, there is 

potential for lax management of 

emissions 

Salfords & 

Sidlow PC 

Any waste management facility would need to obtain and Environmental Permit 

issued by the Environment Agency which is intended to ensure that emissions from 

such facilities do not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment.  

The plan states; impacts related to waste activities including dust and fumes should 

consider sensitive receptors as well as the extent to which impacts can be mitigated 

(8.9.11). And further covered in Policy 14. 

No action arising  

Suggest that policy wording be changed 

to “will demonstrate” rather than “will be 

granted where it can be demonstrated”.  

This policy sits alongside others rather 

than being a sole determinant.    

Guildford RA The WPA has positively worded this policy to be consistent with the NPPF. Policy 13 

must be considered along with other policies in the plan.  

No action arising  

 

Concern that any proposal should clearly 

state how any waste strategy should 

protect, maintain or even help improve 

the status of biodiversity in Surrey 

 

Resident 

 

This suggestion is acknowledged. The plan states…all waste development should 

demonstrate that the development…includes necessary landscaping and biodiversity 

gains (Policy 13). In delivering biodiversity enhancements, measures should be taken 

to contribute to the Green Infrastructure network to maintain existing habitats and to 

enhance habitat connectivity. Production of a Green Infrastructure master-plan should 

be considered for large scale developments (8.9.34). The positive role that high 

quality new development can play in providing new habitats and increasing 

biodiversity is recognised and development should include measures for the 

enhancement of biodiversity where justified by the nature of the proposal. Any 

creation, enhancement, and management of habitats, ecological networks, and 

ecosystem services should be consistent with wider environmental objectives (8.9.35).   

 

Add mention of biodiversity to text 

related to Strategic Objective 6. 

 

 

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

 

Policy 14 – 

Development 

Management 

Highlights that the plan covers 

Aerodrome safeguarding matters - 

Imperative that these references are 

retained to ensure there is no danger to 

air safety 

Gatwick Airport 

Limited  

It is acknowledged that these comments and would reassure the respondent that 

these reference will be retained.  

 No action arising 

Argues that there needs to be wider 

consultation with other interest groups 

when looking at impact on biodiversity  

Resident A wide range of interest groups have commented on this draft policy and their 

comments have been taken into account. They will also be able to comment on any 

applications when they go out for consultation.  

 No action arising 

Concern over who is defining the word 

- "unacceptable" - different notions 

Resident Acceptability of impacts are determined in light of relevant national policy and 

guidance and previous decisions and case law as well as advice from statutory bodies 

such as the Environment Agency, Historic England and Natural England . It is the 

 No action arising 

P
age 176



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 113 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

planning Committee's roles to weigh the impacts and benefits of proposals when 

reaching a decision on acceptability. 

Argues that the health of residents 

must be fully considered, therefore no 

development should be considered 

close to homes 

Resident The health of residents is covered under policy 14 'general amenity' and applications 

must demonstrate they will not have an unacceptable impact on residents’ health.  

 No action arising 

Argues that the most 

modern/sophisticated (not the 

cheapest) to reduce smell/noise etc. 

must be adopted 

Resident The plan seeks to ensure waste management developments have minimal negative 

impacts. Proposals will need to demonstrate technologies that align with this.  

 No action arising 

Concern that suitable assessments 

must be made of effects of landfill on 

groundwater during flooding conditions, 

not just normal conditions 

Resident This will be assessed at the application stage.  No action arising 

Suggests that the two sites suggested 

in Runnymede could be used to grow 

crops so we are less reliant on imports, 

post Brexit 

Resident It is acknowledged that these comments. The loss of any agricultural land has to be 

balanced with the need to development sufficient waste management capacity to meet 

requirements. The plan prefers the development of brownfield sites over greenfield 

and any proposals for development on Green Belt sites will need to demonstrate that 

no alternative suitable brownfield land is available.  

 No action arising 

Concern that the aim is straightforward 

- but exactly how and where waste will 

be managed less so and less definite 

Resident The plan, through its policies and allocations identifies suitable locations for waste to 

be managed. Policies clearly encourage management of waste up the hierarchy this 

can involve a range of technologies.  

 No action arising 

Suggested that "with particular 

attention being given to protecting the 

AONB where applicable" should be 

inserted into the end of (v) Policy 14 

(p.69) 

Surrey Hills AONB 

Board 

The Council wishes to ensure that emphasis is given to protecting the AONB.  Consider amending Policy 

wording. 

Suggests that Policy 14 should come 

earlier in the document 

CPRE Surrey The policy's position in the plan has no effect on the weight given to it.   No action arising 

Shows general support for the policy CPRE Surrey, 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

and Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

It is acknowledged that support for policy 14.   No action arising 

Suggest the policy should read - 

"planning permission will only be 

granted where it can be demonstrated 

that the proposed waste development 

will not have an unacceptable impact 

either individually or cumulatively on 

the following" 

New Zealand Golf 

Course 

Policy 14 has been positively worded to be consistent with the NPPF.   No action arising 

P
age 177



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 114 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

Concern that policies should be more 

cross linked or referenced to one 

another 

CPRE Surrey and 

New Zealand Golf 

Course 

It is acknowledged that these comments. Waste development must be acceptable 

against all the policies in the plan. The Strategic Objectives indicate the 

interconnectivity between the policies. 

 No action arising 

Argues that there has not been 

adequate assessment of air quality and 

travel impacts  

Resident Transport and air quality assessments are being undertaken to confirm the suitability 

of the sites proposed for allocation. 

Update Annexe 1 with the 

outcomes of the assessment 

work. 

Concern that incinerators are highly 

polluting - many studies suggest that 

there are adverse health impacts on 

people living near incinerators 

Resident Modern energy from waste facilities (incinerators) are known to operate without 

causing adverse health impacts. All proposals for waste management facilities will 

require Environmental Permits from the Environment Agency which ensures that any 

emissions do not cause harm to human health or pollution of the environment.  

 No action arising 

Argues that incineration involves 

releasing high levels of CO2, which will 

have a negative impact on climate 

change  

Resident EfW is preferable to disposal as it is higher in the waste hierarchy. Incineration will 

only be permitted to manage waste that can't be recycled.  

 No action arising 

Supports the recognition of the 

importance of Surrey's historic 

environment 

Historic England It is acknowledged that support for policy 14.  No action arising 

Comments that no consideration is 

taken for accountability or traceability 

to waste arriving at sites. Concern that 

contaminated waste can be mixed by 

waste disposers prior to crushing. 

Concern that with the constraints on 

budgets monitoring of waste and the 

effects of waste will not be undertaken 

or enforced if applicable. Comments 

that Surrey makes no effort to make 

the companies that operate these sites 

conform to what they agree to when 

the permissions are granted. 

Comments that insufficient evidence 

shown that landfill material is 

scrutinised for illegal materials such as 

asbestos, plaster board or 

contaminated material particularly as 

no responsibility (paper trail) can prove 

what ever went into any form of crusher 

etc.  was in fact clean to start with. 

Residents  It is acknowledged that these comments. Operators require an Environmental Permit 

from the EA and these place restrictions on the types of waste that can be managed 

at sites and ensure this is monitored and enforced. The WPA undertakes regular 

monitoring of sites and responds to reported breaches of permission to ensure 

planning permissions and conditions are adhered to. Enforcement action will be taken 

where breaches are identified.  

 No action arising 

Concern that there is currently many 

small scale sites that deal with this 

waste that are allowed to continue in 

use without proper monitoring by 

Resident  It is acknowledged that these concerns. Sites that operate without planning 

permission will be subject to enforcement action. The council and the EA investigate 

any reports of potentially unregulated activity.  

 No action arising 

P
age 178



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 115 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

authorities or Surrey County Council. 

HGV operating centres being set up on 

existing farm sites should be routinely 

objected to by SCC but are not. 

Support for (8.9) emphasis on ensuring 

that opportunities for achieving 

biodiversity net gains are realised 

through the development process. 

Concern for potential light pollution 

from waste management facilities is 

adequately covered. 

Surrey Nature 

Partnership 

The WPA acknowledge support for policy 14.  Para 8.9.9 states: Amenity generally 

refers to residents’ expectations for enjoyment of their surroundings. It can cover a 

range of issues from noise, dust, odour, and disturbance due to illumination and 

vibration. 

 No action arising 

Suggests at 8.9.25, mention might also 

be made to the relevance of post-

mineral restoration to biodiversity 

conservation.  

Surrey Nature 

Partnership 

The WPA acknowledge these comments and will ensure appropriate reference is 

made to biodiversity gains from post-mineral restoration is included.  

Make reference to benefit of 

minerals restorations on 

biodiversity.  

Suggests at the end of 8.9.27 the 

following is inserted: "The 

determination of applications within the 

AONB will be in accordance with this 

Government policy together with the 

landscape policy within the local  local 

plan and policies within the adopted 

AONB Management Plan.” 

Surrey Hills AONB 

Board 

 It is recognised that it would be helpful to mention these other material considerations 

which would be taken into account when assessing the suitability of proposals. 

 Amend wording as 

appropriate. 

Suggest at 8.9.26 reference be made 

to particular AONBs (Surrey Hills & 

High Weald).  

Natural England It is recognised that it would be helpful to make specific reference to the AONBs in 

Surrey which do have additional policy protection in the NPPF. 

 Amend wording as 

appropriate. 

Suggest at 8.9.31 policy should make 

clear that any impacts upon European 

designated sites the application of the 

Imperative Reasons of Overriding 

Public Interest (IROPI) test would be 

required before any compensation 

could be considered. 

Natural England It is recognised that it would be helpful to make specific reference to the fact that any 

impacts upon European designated sites the application of the Imperative Reasons of 

Overriding Public Interest (IROPI) test would be required before any compensation 

could be considered. 

Make changes to text to clarify 

specific requirements of 

Habitats Regulations   

Suggest at 8.9.35 that clarity is 

required to establish which 

developments would be expected to 

enhance biodiversity.  

Natural England It is recognised that it would be helpful to give examples of how development could 

enhance biodiversity 

Provide examples of how 

development could enhance 

biodiversity in paragraph 

8.9.35 

Argue that TDC/SCC have shown in 

the past that they do not enforce 

planning consents if they choose to 

Resident The WPA acknowledge these comments. For waste related development the WPA 

regularly monitor sites and investigate observations of the public and will look to take 

action where a breach is established.  

  No action arising 

Question whether barge transportation 

has been considered and argue that 

Residents The WPA acknowledge these comments. Provision for water transportation is made in 

policy 15, however, it may not be viable and the wharf infrastructure may not exist. 

  No action arising 

P
age 179



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 116 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

not to consider barge transport is a 

huge omission 

Concern that proposals are based on 

subjective ideals and not reality - e.g. 

waterways for transportation are not 

viable 

Resident Policy 15 aims to encourage the most sustainable transport methods. Policy 15 

recognises this and states; Where practicable and economically viable, the 

development makes use of rail or water for the transportation of materials to and from 

the site; 

  No action arising 

Concern that waste transportation is 

largely road based with the negative 

consequence of increased volume of 

HGV movements 

Residents and The 

Chertsey Society 

As with the transport of most other goods and materials, waste transport is largely 

road based due to locational and financial requirements of rail and water transport. 

Policy 15 seeks to minimise the effects of HGV movements and ensure surrounding 

highways have adequate capacity. A Transport Assessment is being undertaken to 

understand the likely impact of different types and scales of waste development at 

each of the allocated sites. 

 Update Annexe 1 with the 

outcomes of the TA. 

 

Policy 15 – 

Transport and 

Connectivity 

Aims of this policy are good/supported Resident The WPA acknowledge support for policy 15.   No action arising 

Concern over how much road 

transportation will be needed and how 

helpful existing rail network coverage 

will be 

Resident and 

Oxsted and 

Limpstead 

Residents Group 

The WPA acknowledge that, like other goods and materials,  waste transportation is 

generally by road. Transport assessments are being undertaken to gauge an 

acceptable level of vehicle movements at sites. The existing rail network will help 

achieve sustainable transport where possible.  

As appropriate, update Annex 

1 to specify how access to 

sites should be achieved. 

Concern that no reassurance has been 

given to local people that the potential 

impact on traffic and transport 

infrastructure will be minimised and 

mitigated where possible 

Bisley Parish 

Council 

Policy 15 seeks to minimise impacts of waste development where possible, all 

proposals will have to conform to this policy. The plan states: "In order to mitigate 

impacts related to transport Traffic Management plans would generally be required at 

the planning application stage. Applications for waste development will often require a 

Transport Assessment to support them. Traffic Management plans and Transport 

Assessments will be considered by the Highway Authority, who will make 

recommendations as appropriate" (8.10.3). The WPA is undertaking both a transport 

and air quality assessment to inform the next stage of the plan. 

As appropriate, update Annex 

1 to specify how access to 

sites should be achieved. 

Concern over increased pollution when 

existing pollution is bad enough 

Residents and 

Oxsted and 

Limpstead 

Residents Group 

The WPA is undertaking both a transport and air quality assessment to inform the next 

stage of the plan. This will establish the scale and use of acceptable facilities at 

proposed sites to ensure there are no unacceptable impacts caused by pollution.  

As appropriate, update Annex 

1 to specify how access to 

sites should be achieved. 

Concern that there must be adequate 

capacity on the Lorry Route Network 

CPRE Surrey Policy 15 requires development to ensure it does not have an unacceptable impact on 

the highway network. A transport assessment is being undertaken to assess the 

suitablility of accessing sites by road that will consider the capacity of the Lorry Route 

Network . 

As appropriate, update Annex 

1 to specify how access to 

sites should be achieved. 

Argue that there should be an 

additional requirement that there is no 

adverse impact on local communities 

because of the increased flow of HGVs 

CPRE Surrey Policy 15 requires developments not to impact the safety of the highway network 

which serves local communities. Policy 14 'amenity' covers other traffic related 

impacts like noise and pollution.  

 No action arising 

Argue that the policy should be 

reworded to read "Proposals for waste 

facilities will need to demonstrate that" 

New Zealand Golf 

Club 

Policy 15 has been positively worded to ensure consistency with the NPPF.   No action arising 

Concern that the road classification of Grundon Waste The WPA acknowledge these comments and will clarify this.  Clarify ‘local road’ and/or 

P
age 180



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 117 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

"local road" is not clear enough - not 

sure what is meant by this 

Management revise wording.  

Concern that the plan states there is a 

need to address impacts on roads, but 

this is not being undertaken in detail at 

this stage - Dealing with this matter at 

the application stage is far too late, 

particularly if a problem is revealed in 

the detailed assessment 

Residents The WPA is undertaking a transport assessment for all sites to inform the next stage 

of the plan. This will identify what type and scale of development, in transport terms, is 

suitable at each site.  

 Update Annexe 1 with the 

outcomes of the TA. 

Point iv) should be reworded to say - "a 

site will not be allocated if adequate 

access and safety cannot be met" 

Resident Policy 15 will be used by the WPA at an application stage not to assess whether sites 

are allocated. Proposed allocations are being subject to a detailed transport 

assessment and will not be allocated if it cannot be shown that in principle the site 

cannot be accessed adequately and safely. 

As appropriate, update Annex 

1 to specify how access to 

sites should be achieved in 

light of transport assessment. 

Concern that the policy is non-

descriptive in terms of the requirements 

for a transport assessment 

accompanying an application  - if there 

is a certain threshold to which a 

Transport Assessment is required, then 

this should be included within the policy   

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

The WPA acknowledge these comments. It is not considered possible to implement a 

specific threshold for applications to require a transport assessment. This is because 

the scale of a development must be considered with other factors like existing highway 

capacity or suitability of roads.  

 Consider providing 

clarification as to when a TA 

would be required.  

It will be impossible for SCC to put in 

place effective control of the substantial 

increase in lorry movements if consent 

is given 

Resident The WPA have the power to enforce against breaches of planning 

permission/conditions and will do so when identified. Regular monitoring is undertaken 

to monitor compliance.  

 No action arising 

Shows support for Policy 15 - the policy 

will result in fewer vehicle movements 

on the county’s already constrained 

highways network - aligns with the 

NPPF   

WT Lambs Holding 

Ltd and Guildford 

Resident 

Association 

It is acknowledged that support for policy 15.   No action arising 

Suggests caution with wording to 

ensure promotion of co-location does 

not encourage, in inappropriate 

locations, the addition of high impact 

facilities alongside more modest waste 

facilities 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

It is acknowledged that these comments and would reassure the respondent the an 

application for co-location would be encouraged if it results in fewer vehicle 

movements but will still be subject to all other policies in the plan to ensure there isn't 

inappropriate development.  

 No action arising 

Policy should include the words "on 

site", for the current provision would 

allow turning, parking and manoeuvring 

on the kerb side of dual carriageways 

as it is so weak  

Resident Agree. Amend clause v) as follows: 

"Satisfactory on site provision 

is made for vehicle turning and 

parking, manoeuvring, loading, 

and, where appropriate, wheel 

cleaning facilities." 

Supports the idea of using sustainable Tandridge District It is acknowledged that support for policy 15.   No action arising 

P
age 181



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 118 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

transport using rail or water Council 

Argues that Policy 15 lacks sufficient 

commitment to the use of sustainable 

transport   

Tandridge District 

Council 

The WPA acknowledge these comments. Policy 15 encourages the most sustainable 

methods where possible (rail & water) but recognises that this may not be practical 

and/or viable and so in such cases applies requirements to limit impacts on roads.  

 No action arising 

Concern that opinions of residents over 

past planning applications are being 

ignored again  

Resident The proposed allocation of sites has resulted from a completely new site identification 

and evaluation exercise. All comments on these sites are being considered by the 

WPA before a final decision is made. Residents will also have an opportunity to make 

representations to the planning Inspector who will examine the plan.  

 No action arising 

Supports SCCs professional judgement  Resident This support is acknowledged.   No action arising 

Concern that community engagement 

should happen earlier in the process 

Resident With regards to Policy 16, the policy encourages developers to engage with the local 

community before an application is submitted. The WPA consider this the earliest 

stage possible.  

 No action arising 

Concern that the consultation was not 

published widely enough - only found 

out about the consultation by chance. 

The documents were too complicated 

and unintelligible and require 

knowledge of planning issues. There 

should be a wider, more transparent 

consultation.  

Residents The WPA acknowledge these concerns. The WPA followed best practice guidance on 

conducting the consultation and every effort was made to reach as many residents as 

possible especially those living close to the proposed sites. The WPA are required to 

make all consultation documents public. Documents will be read by industry, interest 

groups, other councils as well as residents. This requires some complexity to 

documents. A Non-Technical Summary (NTS) was produced to enable residents to 

have a sufficient knowledge of the plan to comment while not being overly complex. 

The WPA followed best practice guidance on conducting the consultation to reach as 

many people as possible. 

 The consultation process will 

be reviewed prior to the next 

stage of consultation, and will 

incorporate any feedback 

made. 

Concern that in the case of site 8, there 

are only a few local residents, and as a 

result, even if all of them complained, 

this would only be a small volume of 

complaints  

Resident The WPA is concerned with the merits of the comments being made about the 

suitability of sites and not the number of responses.  

 No action arising 

Concern that the documents are too 

complicated and are overwhelming. 

Argues that they are virtually 

unintelligable to the average person as 

they require knowledge of planning 

issues 

Residents The WPA are required to make all consultation documents public. Documents will be 

read by industry, interest groups, other councils as well as residents. The documents 

must also be consistent with planning law and national and government policy. This 

requires some complexity to documents. A Non-Technical Summary (NTS) was 

produced to enable residents to have a sufficient knowledge of the plan to comment 

while not being overly complex. The WPA followed best practice guidance on 

conducting the consultation and every effort was made to reach as many residents as 

possible.  

 The inclusion of Executive 

Summaries and Non-

Technical Summary 

documents will be considered 

at the next stage of the plan 

making process. 

Concern that this policy does not seem 

to appear to require that the views of 

those people are taken into account 

Resident and 

CPRE Surrey 

There is national policy and guidance on how the WPA should take representations 

into account. Policy 16 encourages applicants to engage with communities.  

Add text to make clear that 

comments are taken into 

account by the WPA before 

planning permission is 

granted. 

Argues that community involvement 

and participation is to be encouraged - 

especially by those who live near to 

Resident The WPA agree, policy 16 encourages community engagement by applicants. This 

would encompass those living near where waste is managed. The Council has sought 

to engage with communities through each consultation that has been carried out. 

 No action arising 

P
age 182



A p p e n d i x  8  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  P o l i c i e s  | 119 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

where waste is being managed 

Concerned that there is a risk that 

houses in the surrounding area will be 

severely devalued 

Resident The WPA acknowledge these concerns. However the impact on house values is not a 

material planning consideration that needs to be taken into account by planning 

authorities either at plan making stage or planning application stage. Policy 14, 

however, seeks to ensure that planning permission will be granted where it can be 

demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities and the 

environment, which includes general amenity. 

 No action arising 

Concern that there is inadequate 

respect awarded to the greenbelt 

Resident The WPA acknowledge these comments. Protection of the Green Belt is provided for 

by policies 9 and 10.  

 No action arising 

Argues that the policy should be 

reworded to read: "Proposals for waste 

development will need to demonstrate 

that the applicant has…" 

New Zealand Golf 

Club 

Policy 16 has been positively worded to be consistent with the NPPF.  No action arising 

Concern that Policy 16 requires 

community engagement and the 

implication is that applications would be 

refused without this - There is no 

requirement to undertake this, it is 

merely good practice - It would be 

unlawful to refuse on what is an 

unsound planning reason 

Grundon Waste 

Management 

The Council note this comment.  The Council will review the 

wording of this policy. 

Concern that consultation with the 

public is a tick box exercise  

Residents The WPA will consider all responses to develop the plan and take into account views 

of residents, operators, interest groups and other local authorities. The WPA view 

consultation and the views of other as essential to developing the plan.  

  

Questions whether a stand alone policy 

is needed or if this matter would be 

better picked up through guidance or 

picked up as part of policy 14? 

Runnymede 

Borough Council 

The WPA don’t believe that policy on community engagement is a 'development 

management' criteria as it is not concerned with controlling the impacts of a facility.  

  

Generally welcomes the approach, but, 

suggest adding to Policy 16 "and 

demonstrated how they have taken 

community feedback into account" 

Guildford 

Residents 

Association 

Agree it is important for applicants to show how comments have been taken into 

account. 

Amend text as appropriate 

 
  

P
age 183



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 120 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Appendix 9 – Comments on Site Identification and Evaluation 

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

 

Site ID 

and 

Evaluation 

Process 

General support for the Site Identification 

and Evaluation process, it seems fair and 

reasonable. 

Residents Acknowledgement of support. No actions arising. 

It is a shame more industrial sites could not 

be put forward. 

Resident Industrial sites were excluded from further consideration in the Site 

Identification and Evaluation document based on comments from 

operators through the Issues and Options Consultation (September 

2016). The minimal capacity that has been delivered on land use for 

industrial purpose in Surrey previously and the regular turn-over in 

occupation of individual units and sites within industrial estates makes 

their allocation within the emerging SWLP impracticable. This issue 

was specifically considered in the background paper "Delivery of Waste 

Management Capacity in Surrey 2008 – 2017". However it is 

acknowledged that industrial estates may offer suitable opportunities 

for the development of waste facilities in Policy 11 of the SWLP.  

A list of industrial estates that 

might offer opportunities for 

waste management 

development will be added to 

the plan, following targeted 

consultation with Districts and 

Boroughs.  

Concerns that the report does not take into 

account the Green Belt, proposed sites 

located within the Green Belt is 

inappropriate. 

Residents Surrey County Council recognises this concern in relation to Green 

Belt. The site selection process did take account of the Green Belt but 

few suitable, deliverable sites not located in the Green Belt were 

identified - this is set out in the "Site Identification and Evaluation 

Report". National policy requires development in the Green Belt to 

meet stringent tests.  Although most of the proposed allocated sites are 

located within the Green Belt, it is recognised that any application for 

development on the Green Belt must demonstrate "very special 

circumstances" and should comply with Policy 9 "Green Belt" in the 

plan as well as the NPPF. 

The Spatial Strategy will be 

strengthened to make it clear 

that development in the Green 

Belt should only take place in 

very special circumstances and 

that other suitable alternative on 

Green Belt sites would be 

preferred.  

Concerns that the report does not take into 

account the impacts the proposals will have 

on traffic. 

Residents The Site Identification and Evaluation report, and the Annex of 

shortlisted sites, considers potential transport impacts and accessibility 

in evaluating potential sites. Policy 15 seeks to ensure that vehicle 

movements associated with the development are minimised and will 

not have an unacceptable impact on the capacity of the highway 

network. Surrey County Council is assessing the impacts of potential 

development at the proposed allocated sites on the transport network. 

A detailed Transport Assessment will be carried out, highlighting any 

areas of concern which can then be addressed/mitigated against. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect 

findings of the transport 

assessment. 

Concerns that the report does not take into 

account how local communities/residents will 

be affected by the proposals. 

Residents The Site Identification and Evaluation report considers proximity to 

sensitive receptors. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 

unacceptable impact on communities including air quality, noise, dust, 

fume, odour, vibrations, illuminations etc.  

Annex 1 will be updated to 

mention site specific matters 

concerning impacts on 

communities which need to be 

addressed at the planning 

P
age 184



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 121 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

application stage.  

Concerns that the report does not take into 

account schools. 

Residents This comment is acknowledged and accepts the importance of 

considering the safety around schools in relation to the increased 

vehicle movements (HGVs).  The Site Identification and Evaluation 

report considers proximity to sensitive receptors which includes 

schools.  

No actions arising. 

Concerns that the report shows no 

consideration for flooding. 

Resident Surrey County Council acknowledges this concern. Policy 14 states 

that planning permission for waste development will be granted if it can 

be demonstrated that there will not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities and the environment, specifically in relation to flood risks.  

The Site Identification and Evaluation report considers flood risk. 

Separate detailed flood risk assessment is being undertaken to confirm 

the impact that sites proposed for allocation in the plan will have on 

flood risk.  

Annex 1 will be updated to 

mention site specific matters 

concerning impacts on flood risk 

which need to be addressed at 

the planning application stage. 

Slyfield Area Regeneration Programme 

(SARP) has been earmarked but still have 

concerns regarding the increased sewage 

and the amount of pumping required from 

new developments. 

Resident Surrey County Council notes this concern and notes that the water 

company responsible for the SARP area will have been consulted as 

part of the local planning process. 

No actions arising. 

It was suggested in areas of former landfill 

where it is unknown what lies beneath the 

surface, more than a 'desktop' exercise and 

a walk around are needed to establish what 

may lie underneath. 

Resident Annex 1 specifically identifies the existence of former landfills (where 

relevant). Any planning application for development in such locations 

would have to be accompanied by a site investigation report to confirm 

that no unacceptable impacts would arise from development on areas 

of former landfill. 

Update Annex 1 to include 

mention of need for site 

investigation report where 

relevant. 

Stated that the report is unsuitable (No detail 

provided). 

Resident The report is a robust assessment of the availability of potential sites 

for development of waste management capacity in Surrey and has 

been in accordance with national planning policy and guidance.  

No actions arising. 

Acknowledgement that some efforts have 

been made to avoid obvious pollution of 

public thoroughfares. 

Resident Surrey County Council notes this comment. Policy 14 seeks to ensure 

that there will not be an unacceptable impact on communities or the 

environment.  

No actions arising. 

The report needs to consider pollution, 

especially from dirty emissions. 

Residents The Site Identification and Evaluation report includes consideration of 

proximity to sensitive receptors and potential effects of noise and air 

emissions. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there not be an unacceptable 

impact on communities or the environment in relation to air quality, 

noise, dust, fumes, illuminations etc. 

Annex 1 will be updated to 

mention site specific matters 

concerning impacts on 

communities which need to be 

addressed at the planning 

application stage. 

The report needs to consider the level of 

noise that will be created. 

Resident The Site Identification and Evaluation report includes consideration of 

proximity to sensitive receptors and potential effects of noise. Policy 14 

seeks to ensure that there not be an unacceptable impact on 

communities or the environment in relation to noise. 

Annex 1 will be updated to 

mention site specific matters 

concerning impacts on 

communities which need to be 

addressed at the planning 

P
age 185



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 122 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

application stage.  

The report does not mention Horsell 

Common or the impacts this development 

would have on the area. 

Resident Any proposals for waste management development near to Horsell 

Common would not be permitted unless it was demonstrated that such 

development would not have an unacceptable impact on this SSSI. 

Annex 1 will be updated to 

include mention of the need to 

protect Horsell Common 

Stated that the report seems 

comprehensive. 

Resident Acknowledgement of support. No actions arising. 

Stated that the information is vague, 

overcomplicated and insufficient. Stated that 

the site identification and evaluation exercise 

is misleading. General opposition to the 

length of the report, it is indigestible, difficult 

to understand and time consuming to read. 

Consider devising a summary with links to 

the more detailed report. 

Residents, CPRE Surrey, 

Grundons Waste Management 

This comment is acknowledged. The document has been prepared in 

accordance with national planning policy and guidance and is 

considered a robust assessment of the availability of potential sites for 

development of waste management capacity in Surrey. The plan needs 

to comply with legislation, national policy and guidance and  sufficient 

evidence is required to support the policies and site allocations, and so 

the documentation is necessarily long and can be complex. 

Develop and publish a non-

technical summary document 

for the Site Identification and 

Evaluation Report, this will 

summarise in more simple 

terms the current document and 

will shorten the length. 

It was noted that the aim is not targeting 

sustainability but more of a cost cutting 

exercise. 

Resident The plan is to provide for necessary waste management capacity in a 

sustainable manner and will take into account recommendations from 

the Sustainability Appraisal. 

No actions arising. 

The report states that there are no air quality 

issues in Tandridge, a respondent believes 

this is incorrect as Godstone Parish has 

undertaken work with negative results. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. Annex 1 identifies that there are no 

AQMAs in Tandridge which is factually correct.  TDC annual report 

identifies AQ issues generally 

https://www.tandridge.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/Business-and-

Licensing/Environmental/Tandridge-ASR-2017-final-Tandridge-

version.pdf . Air Quality Impact Assessment is being undertaken to 

assess the impact on air quality of development at site proposed for 

allocation. 

Update Annex 1 to confirm the 

type and scale of development 

that could be accommodated at 

each of the sites proposed for 

allocation taking account of the 

results of the AQIA. 

It is noted that any site should be situated 

away from residential areas and put closer 

to built up areas with wider roads and good 

transport links. 

Residents Surrey County Council acknowledges this suggestion. These matters 

have been taken into account in the site evaluation process. 

No actions arising. 

Stated that some proposed sites are better 

suited than others. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. No actions arising. 

Stated that the site near Heathrow (Oakleaf 

Farm) is less unacceptable than others. 

Resident Surrey County Council note this comment. The process identifies sites 

that are potentially most suitable in principle. Further assessment is 

underway to confirm the type and scale of development that could be 

accommodated at each of the sites proposed for allocation. 

Update Annex 1 to confirm the 

type and scale of development 

that could be accommodated at 

each of the sites proposed for 

allocation. 

It was noted that sites need to be allocated 

within the Green Belt as there is no other 

suitable non-Green Belt land available. 

Grunion Waste Management This comment is acknowledged. Although allocated sites may be 

located within the Green Belt, it is recognised that any application for 

development on the Green Belt must demonstrate "very special 

circumstances" and should comply with Policy 9 "Green Belt" in the 

plan as well as the NPPF. 

No actions arising. 

P
age 186



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 123 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

The County Council is allocating sites within 

the Green Belt as there are no other non-

Green Belt sites available. The failure of 

Policy 9 to reflect this is a barrier to delivery 

and seems to run counter to Policy 10.  

Grundon Waste Management This comment is acknowledged.  The policies need to be considered 

together and the plan as a whole. The County Council is also seeking 

to ensure that the plan is consistent with national and government 

policy with regards to Green Belt. 

No actions arising. 

It is not clear whether the Site Identification 

and Evaluation report reflects the entire site 

GU23 (Land to the north east of Slyfield 

Industrial Estate), Guildford. May need to 

check the discussion on site suitability and 

application of sieves for consistency with the 

attributes of the site. 

Guildford Borough Council The Site Identification and Evaluation report will be reviewed and 

updated as necessary to clarify the position.  

Review the discussion on site 

suitability and application of 

sieves for consistency with the 

attributes of site GU23 (Land to 

the north east of Slyfield 

Industrial Estate) 

Further clarification needed with regard to 

the Former Wisley airfield site (GU31) as it is 

reflected in the GB SLP (ref. Policy A35). 

Guildford Borough Council Surrey County Council acknowledges this request for further 

clarification. 

Provide further clarification with 

regard to GU31 as it is reflected 

in the Guildford Borough SLP 

(ref. Policy A35). 

Consider comparing the quality of life of 

residents at each proposed site. 

Resident  Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an unacceptable 

impact of the quality of life of communities including air quality, noise, 

dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc.  The Site Identification 

and Evaluation considers potential effects on proximate sensitive 

receptors in a consistent way.  Impact on residents is one 

consideration. 

Annex 1 will be updated to 

mention site specific matters 

concerning impacts on 

communities which need to be 

addressed at the planning 

application stage. 

How will the Council monitor and measure 

the impacts on the residents? 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there 

will not be an unacceptable impact on residents including air quality, 

noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc. The Council has a 

dedicated enforcement team that monitors sites to ensure compliance 

with conditions. Reports of noncompliance with conditions will be 

investigated and enforcement action will be taken as necessary. 

No action arising. 

Explain how each sites complies with the 

NPPF and Policy 9 (Green Belt). 

Resident Surrey County Council acknowledges this request for explanation.  The 

Evaluation process considers factors that determine suitability 

reflecting NPPF and NPPW. 

No actions arising. 

The report evaluation of Land at & adjoining 

Leatherhead STW does not give any 

justified beneficial reasons as to why it is 

being considered. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged.  The Site Identification and Evaluation 

report identifies that there are no reasons to exclude the site, based on 

the assessment/sieving against a range of factors. 

No action arising. 

Consider further assessments of the air 

quality. 

Resident Acknowledgement of this suggestion. Air quality assessments will be 

required should sites come forward for development as required by 

Policy 14. 

Update Annex 1 to take account 

of findings of Air Quality Impact 

Assessment. 

Highways assessment needs to be carried 

out. 

Resident Surrey County Council acknowledges this suggestion for highway 

assessments to be carried out. Transport assessment is being 

undertaken to enable Surrey County Council to understand in more 

Update Annex 1 to take account 

of findings of transport 

assessment and confirm the 

P
age 187



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 124 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

detail the potential impacts upon the local road network of development 

on sites proposed for allocations. This will inform the contents of Annex 

1. The Transport Assessment will enable the county council to get a 

better understanding of the likely impacts to the surrounding transport 

network, this will allow Surrey County Council to identify issues, and 

attempt to resolve/mitigate them. Policy 15 seeks that vehicle 

movements will be minimised, will not have unacceptable impacts on 

the capacity of the highway network and there is a safe and adequate 

means of access to the highway network and a Transport Assessment 

will need to accompany any applications to comply with this policy and 

Policy 14. Also, waste will be able to be transported with minimal use of 

local roads and vehicle movements will not have an adverse impact on 

the safety of the highway network. 

accessibility of the site by road. 

Para 4.2.13 the site plan should reflect the 

plan provided in Appendix 1 of these 

representations. The site area should be 

increased to 8 ha. The evidence base 

document should also acknowledge that the 

railway siding is privately owned and 

therefore permission from Network Rail will 

not be required to operate it. Para 4.2.28 

The site area should be altered to 8 ha. 

Paragraph referred to is incorrect and should 

be 4.2.13. Similarly, Table 6 should be 

altered to reflect the true site area for Lambs 

Business Park. 

W T Lambs Holdings Ltd Acknowledgement of this suggestion. The site will be re-evaluated 

based on the new site area proposed by the promoter. 

Amend site plan and reference 

to Network Rail. Reassess site 

based on new plan.  

Stated that low level radioactive waste next 

to residential areas is unacceptable. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there 

will be no unacceptable impact on communities arising from the 

management of waste. 

No action arising. 

3.3.9 Guildford does not have any AQMA's 

yet it is known that air quality exceeds 

international limits along the A3. 

Resident Surrey County Council notes this comment. Transport and air quality 

impact assessment is being undertaken that will consider the 

implications of any waste related development at each of the sites. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

findings of assessment so the 

sites proposed for allocation in 

the plan including 

recommendations regarding 

vehicle movements. 

3.5.4 Site allocation 'Green Belt', 

'countryside beyond Green Belt' and 'outside 

countryside beyond the Green Belt' - there is 

nothing else outside countryside beyond the 

Green Belt… save urban and suburban 

town. This sieve is leaking and needs re-

Resident Acknowledge of this suggestion. Land 'outside countryside beyond the 

green belt' is intended to represent largely urban areas. 

Definitions to be clarified. 

P
age 188



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 125 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

defining. 

3.5.15 The distance of 20 metres is 

extremely close. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged.  Guidance by IAQM is cited that is 

reflected in this criteria, providing a consistent means of assessing 

sensitivity. 

No action arising 

4.2.17 Slyfield site has been assessed but 

results have been hidden - still generating 

methane and is a fire hazard. This is not 

recognised in the current waste 

management plan. 5.1.4 A full on site 

investigation need to be honestly completed 

and displayed prior to the inclusion of site 

GU23. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. Any proposals for development of this 

site would need to take the existence of old landfill (this specifically is 

mentioned in Annex 1) into account and ensue that this did not result in 

unacceptable impacts - Policy 14 would apply in particular. The Site 

Identification and Evaluation report applies criteria to assess 

acceptability and suitability in principle.   Full site investigations will be 

required should sites come forward for development. 

No actions arising. 

Appendix 1 site ref GU23/GU22 should be 

excluded. 

Resident Surrey County Council acknowledges this suggestion. GU22 has not 

been selected. GU23 was selected following a robust site identification 

and evaluation exercise that was undertaken in accordance with 

national policy and guidance. 

No action arising 

Appendix 2 site ref GU23 is an incorrect 

designation as it is not Green Field, it is in 

fact 'disused waste dump' sitting in Zone 3b 

floodplain with failing clay bunds adjoin river. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. Parts of the site are greenfield while 

others are restored landfill (Annexe 1 page 11) which would be 

considered as PDL. 

Amend Annexe 1 to reference 

to greenfield (including restored 

landfill). 

Appendix 3 Table A3-1 appears to be 

mistitled as the low figures are higher than 

the high figures, the table makes no rational 

sense. 

Resident Surrey County Council has checked this table and notes that the C&D 

Recycling figures for Low and High recycling scenarios should be 

swapped. 

Revise figures in Table A3-1 . 

General support for tables' A3-2/3/4, they 

make complete sense and are 

understandable and logical. 

Resident Surrey County Council recognises the support for Tables' A3-2/3/4. No actions arising. 

The report underestimates the risk 

associated with bringing Martyrs Lane site 

forward as a potential allocation. It should be 

eliminated from consideration. 

New Zealand Golf Club This comment is acknowledged. The site was selected following a 

robust site identification and evaluation exercise that was undertaken in 

accordance with national policy and guidance. 

No actions arising. 

The significance of the impact of 

development upon the Thames Basin 

Heaths SPA should be fully assessed at the 

strategic stage as we do not consider that 

adequate mitigation can be advanced to 

outweigh any harm that may result. 

New Zealand Golf Club This comment is acknowledged. HRA is being undertaken that will 

consider the impact on the Thames Basin Heaths SPA. Potential 

impacts on TBH from waste use and transport are being assessed. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

outcomes of the HRA. 

Stated that Martyrs Lane should not have 

progressed to stage 2 as it should have 

been ruled out following the Preliminary 

Sieving stage under Sieve E. 

New Zealand Golf Club This comment is acknowledged.  Appendix 2 defines this as 'greenfield' 

but is is reported as being restored landfill, and so is consistent with 

NPPF.  Clarification will be added that restored landfill is different to 

restored mineral workings that are excluded from consideration.  

Add clarification to report 

P
age 189



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 126 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

The report fails to recognise constraints that 

exist in terms of access to the strategic 

highways network. 

New Zealand Golf Club This comment is acknowledged. Accessibility is considered in Annexe 

1 and further transport assessment is underway to establish specific 

issues related to vehicle movements. Policy 15 seeks that vehicle 

movements will be minimised, will not have unacceptable impacts on 

the capacity of the highway network and there is a safe and adequate 

means of access to the highway network. Also, waste will be able to be 

transported with minimal use of local roads and vehicle movements will 

not have an adverse impact on the safety of the highway network. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

findings of assessment so the 

sites proposed for allocation in 

the plan including 

recommendations regarding 

vehicle movements. 

Annexe A fails to acknowledge that HGV 

movements through the junction of Martyrs 

Lane/Woodham Lane is restricted and that 

all movements must access and exit via the 

McLaren Roundabout on the Guildford 

Road. The accessibility to the strategic road 

network has therefore been over estimated. 

New Zealand Golf Club Noted.  Annexe 1 considers transport and accessibility and a Transport 

Assessment would be required to accompany any application. 

Transport assessment is also being undertaken to enable Surrey 

County Council to understand in more detail the potential impacts upon 

the local road network of development on sites proposed for 

allocations. This will inform the contents of Annex 1. The Transport 

Assessment will enable the county council to get a better 

understanding of the likely impacts to the surrounding transport 

network, this will allow Surrey County Council to identify issues, and 

attempt to resolve/mitigate them.  

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

findings of assessment so the 

sites proposed for allocation in 

the plan including 

recommendations regarding 

vehicle movements. 

Copyhold Works (Site RE16): The Borough 

Council appreciates the clarification in the 

plan that the Copyhold site is not required 

for waste related purposes. This site has 

been identified in the Development 

Management Plan Regulation 19 document 

as a housing allocation. Reigate & Banstead 

Borough Council confirm that ongoing 

engagement has taken place between 

Surrey County Council and the Borough 

Council on this. However, concerns remain 

for further consideration in relation to the 

adjacent Patteson Court development, which 

remains an active and regulated site and 

relevant to the Waste Local plan 

implementation as contributing to dealing 

with waste arisings during the new plan 

period.  

 

Patteson Court (Site RE18) is a landfill site 

with full consents and restoration regime. 

This has been subject of ongoing discussion 

between the Borough and County Council 

Reigate and Banstead Borough 

Council 

Surrey County Councils acknowledges these comments. Discussion 

with Reigate and Banstead Borough Council on this matter are 

ongoing. Paragraph 8.5.1 notes that disposal of waste is  "the least 

preferred option for waste management in the waste hierarchy, 

however it is an option Surrey County Council still need to plan for. 

There is a long history of non- inert landfill in Surrey at Patteson Court 

and this site has planning permission until 2030." 

Continue discussions with 

Reigate and Banstead Borough 

Council and Biffa. 

P
age 190



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 127 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

and the operator. The latter has expressed 

concerns about the potential development of 

residential properties adjacent to the current 

landfill site. This is likely to be a matter 

which is considered at the forthcoming DMP 

Examination. The Borough Council reserves 

its position to raise matters in relation to the 

emerging Waste Local plan policies 

depending on the outcome of the 

examination and where an existing and 

consented waste site is subject to proposals 

to vary or extend the life of a consent 

condition and/or agreed restoration 

programme. 

The site is in the Green Belt, as are seven 

out of the nine shortlisted sites in the plan 

and as were most of the identified sites in 

Policy WD2 of the 2008 plan. It has thus 

been accepted that the location of a site in 

the Green Belt is not an over-riding 

constraint for waste management 

development. However, the approach of the 

Council in this plan is to exclude from 

consideration 'Former Operational Mineral 

Working and Land Allocated for Mineral 

Working' - Sieve E in Background Policy 

Paper 6. This blanket approach does not 

allow for any differentiation between a long-

term sand pit such as Homefield where 

restoration takes many years because of the 

sheer scale of the working and a sand and 

gravel extraction of the found in North-West 

Surrey where progressive restoration is a 

key element of the whole operation, with 

restoration following closely behind 

extraction. Homefield is going to be 

operational for the whole of the plan period 

to 2033 and beyond and is not subject to a 

staged restoration scheme with time 

constraints. 

Chambers Runfold Plc This comment is acknowledged. Mineral extraction is seen as an 

essentially temporary activity and communities have an expectation 

that once worked the sites will be restored rather than used for waste 

management.  The temporary nature of mineral extraction development 

is an important factor when applications for mineral extraction are 

considered in the first place. 

No actions arising. 

Having regard to the original list of 20 sites Spelthorne Borough Council This comment is acknowledged. No actions arising. 

P
age 191



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 128 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

in Spelthorne all but one of which have been 

discounted, it is not considered that there 

are any other sites which the Borough 

Council could identify as being suitable for 

inclusion in the plan. 

 Oakleaf Farm identification for waste 

development is consistent with its current 

use. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Acknowledgement of support. No actions arising. 

Oakleaf Farm - there are a number of 

matters of fact and details on which the 

Borough Council seeks clarification having 

regard to the possible extent of future uses 

and activities which might be proposed on 

site. 

Spelthorne Borough Council This comment is acknowledged in relation to Oakleaf Farm. Provide further clarification in 

regards to the possible extent of 

future uses and activities at 

Oakleaf Farm. If needed, meet 

with Spelthorne Borough 

Council to discuss this point in 

further detail. 

Oakleaf Farm - The site areas proposed in 

the plan excludes the site of the MRF 

building which was erected on the site a few 

years ago as part of the overall planning 

permission for the permanent waste use of 

the site. This permission also required the 

construction of an earth bund around the 

whole area to provide a visual and sound 

barrier. The site description and criteria 

make no reference to this although it would 

be reasonable to expect any additional 

waste facilities to be provided within the 

bunded area. 

Spelthorne Borough Council This comment is acknowledged. Update Annex 1 to reflect this 

information. 

Oakleaf Farm - The whole site is 

immediately to the north of King George VI 

Reservoir which forms part of the South 

West London Waterbodies Special 

Protection Area for birds. This is not referred 

to in the biodiversity section of the key 

development requirement but would be an 

important factor in the assessment of any 

proposal.  

Spelthorne Borough Council This comment is acknowledged and note that the Habitats Regulations 

Assessment will consider impact of any waste related development on 

SPAs. 

Review the biodiversity section 

for Oakleaf Farm. Update/make 

changes if necessary. Update 

Annexe 1 with the outcomes of 

the HRA. 

The key development requirement for Green 

Belt makes reference to Spelthorne 

proposing to undertake a Green Belt 

Assessment as part of the preparation of its 

Spelthorne Borough Council This comment is acknowledged. Look at the Green Belt 

Assessment in detail on 

Spelthorne's website. 

P
age 192



A p p e n d i x  9  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  S i t e  I d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a n d  E v a l u a t i o n  | 129 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

new local plan. This work has now been 

completed and the Borough Council can 

confirm that Local Area 2a in which this site 

is located was assessed as performing 

moderately against the purposes of the 

Green Belt. Further detail on the Green Belt 

Assessment may be found on the Council's 

website. 

TA10 Lambs Brickworks - The site sieve 2 

states that "The site is located at a sufficient 

distance from designated SPAs and SACs 

for its use for some form of energy recovery 

to be feasible." This matter which needs to 

be considered through HRA screening, 

which should also factor in the volume of 

HGV movements throughout the area 

associated with waste uses. 

Tandridge District Council This comment is acknowledged. HRA is being undertaken that will 

consider the impact on the SPAs and SACs. 

Update Annex 1 to reflect the 

outcomes of the HRA. 

 

  

P
age 193



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 130 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

 

 

Appendix 10 – Comments on Duty to Cooperate 

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

Duty to 
Cooperate 
and update 
statement 

Stated that the successful campaign of Walton 

residents against the development at Weylands 

2015/16 was ignored by Surrey County Council. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged.   Site was assessed using 
consistent methodology as set out in Site Identification report 
and annex. This process is consistent with national policy 
and guidance. Comments about the site will be taken into 
account. 

Update Annex 1 to include any 
further mention of specific 
matters that will need to be 
addressed at the planning 
application stage in light of 
consultation comments and 
outcomes of further 
assessment. 

Concerns that there has been no cooperation 

with local communities or the public. 

Residents There has been considerable consultation and engagement 
with local communities. It is the Councils priority to ensure 
local communities and members of the public are kept 
informed and are fully engaged throughout the preparation of 
the plan. The LPA are required to produce a Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) and plans are produced in 
accordance with it. The Regulation 18 Consultation sought to 
engage with a number of stakeholders. Details of these are 
set out in Appendix 1. 

No arising actions. 

Stated that the list of organisations that the 

Waste Authority deal with should be enlarged. 

Resident Acknowledgement of this comment. Surrey County Council 
has a list of organisations that is contacted throughout the 
preparation of the plan.  Organisations which must be 
consulted in undertaking DtC are prescribed. However, 
suggestion if there are any organisations missing that you 
feel should be on the list, please let Surrey County Council 
know to be able to update the list. 

Add other relevant 
organisations to consultee 
database. 

DtC statement needs to happen. Resident This comment is acknowledged and can reassure the 
respondent that the Duty to Cooperate Statement will be 
prepared to evidence its compliance with Section 33A of the 
planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (amended) 
that places a duty on Local planning Authorities "to engage 
constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis" with 
prescribed and other relevant organisations to maximise the 
effectiveness with which plan preparation is undertaken. 

Ensure the Duty to Cooperate 
Statement is effective and up 
to date throughout the 
preparation of the plan. 

All parties, including Parish Council's, resident 

associations and the public should be kept 

involved and discussions must be held. 

Residents Parish Councils, resident associations and the public have 
been kept involved in accordance with the Council's SCI. On 
Surrey County Council's consultation questionnaire it gave 
respondents the option to whether they wish to be kept 
informed on the progression of the plan. Those who selected 
yes, will be sent updates on the progression. 

Send updates on the stages of 
the plan to those who wished 
to be kept informed according 
to the consultation. 

P
age 194



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 131 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

Concerns that the consultation was not publicly 

advertised effectively as a number of 

respondents claimed they had not heard about 

the SWLP. 

Residents, CPRE Surrey The county council made a significant efforts to publicise the 
consultation and received a large number of comments but 
will make improvements around advertisement for future 
consultations and keep the webpages up to date on the 
progression of the plan. 

For future consultations, look 
into additional ways to 
publicise and advertise the 
consultation and the 
progression of the plan to 
residents and organisations. 

Some respondents feel Surrey County Council 

should be obliged to contact every 

household/resident in Surrey with a proposal of 

this type in a pro-active way. More attention and 

consideration should be given to the communities 

and residents views who will be affected and 

Surrey County Council must listen to all feedback 

received. 

Residents and Wonham Place RTM 
Limited 

Surrey County Council can confirm that all feedback received 
will be considered and listened to throughout the preparation 
of the plan and will be documented and made available as 
part of the plan-making process. The preparation of this 
document forms an important part of this process.  
 
The County Council identified and notified all residents living 
within a certain distance of sites proposed for allocation. The 
Council also contacted community organisations such as 
parish councils and resident associations.  
 
Policy 14 seeks to ensure that there will not be an 
unacceptable impact on communities including air quality, 
noise, dust, fumes, odour, vibration, illumination etc.  

Continue to take into account 
and document all feedback 
received and carry out any 
necessary actions/changes 
that may be required.  

Stated that the report seems sound. Resident Acknowledgement of support. No actions arising. 

Some respondents are not convinced that DtC 

has ever taken place or ever will, it is not usually 

adhered to. 

Residents Surrey County Council can reassure respondents that Duty 
to Cooperate has taken place and will continue to take place 
throughout the preparation of the SWLP. See the DtC 
Scoping Statement which will be updated regularly to show 
an ongoing record of engagement that has been undertaken. 
DtC is a legal requirement and must be demonstrated and 
tested in the preparation of the plan.  Organisations which 
must be consulted in undertaking DtC are prescribed and 
this does not include residents. 

Keep the Duty to Cooperate 
Scoping Statement updated 
with new issues that arise or 
different bodies that need to 
be involved in discussions. 

It was stated that several environmental bodies 

were unaware of its existence. 

CPRE Surrey Table 10 includes the environmental bodies Surrey County 
Council made aware of the consultation. This list is reviewed 
for each consultation to ensure that as many relevant bodies 
are contacted as can be considered reasonable. 

Review list of environmental 
bodies Surrey County Council 
contact during consultations. 

The statement does not "set out who the council 

expects to engage with." 

Claygate Parish Council This comment is acknowledged. The Duty to Cooperate 
Appendix 1, Tables 9 And 10 list the adjoining authorities 
and other bodies we carry out cooperation with under Duty to 
Cooperate. Appendix 1 of this document lists the authorities 
and bodies that we have engaged with so far. 

No action arising 

The statement does not outline whether Parish 

Council's should be consulted. 

Claygate Parish Council There is no requirement to engage with Parish Councils 
under the DtC, however all Parish Councils were made 
aware of the consultation and invited to comment.  

No action arising 

It was stated that the questionnaire was not an 

effective way of engaging as it was too 

complicated. To improve it needed fewer but 

more general questions. 

Claygate Parish Council, Residents The questionnaire is set out in a deliberate way to encourage 
comments to be made within specific themes, relating to 
specific parts of the plan. Guidance on how to complete the 
questionnaire was provided and the format of the 
questionnaire has allowed easier analysis of comments 

For the next consultation, 
revise the questions used. 
Consider adding more general 
questions, for example an 
"Other comments" option to 

P
age 195



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 132 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

made. It is acknowledged that there is always scope for 
improvement and feedback on the process will be 
considered for the next consultation. 

avoid respondents putting 
comments into a random box 
on the survey. 

The Council has embarked upon the preparation 

of its Site Allocations DPD to identify specific 

sites to meet future development needs. A draft 

DPD has been published for Regulation 18 

consultation, and the Council is analysing the 

representations to inform the Publication version 

of the DPD which will be published for Regulation 

19 consultation in due course. As part of this 

process, the Council is exploring the possibility of 

safeguarding the land east of Martyrs Lane to 

meet future development needs between 2027 

and 2040. The Council consulted on this specific 

proposal between January and March 2017, and 

the County Council was directly consulted. Under 

the duty to cooperate, officers of the Council 

have also been discussing this matter with their 

counterparts at the County Council. 

Woking Borough Council This comment is acknowledged. Continue to carry out 
discussions and meetings with 
Woking Borough Council and 
other District and Borough's 
throughout the preparation of 
the SWLP. 

Stated that it seems insufficient and ineffective. Resident Surrey County Council acknowledge this comment but 
disagrees the consultation was insufficient and ineffective. 
Over 300 responses were received and this included over 
700 comments different aspects of the draft plan. These are 
all being considered and will directly influence the content of 
the plan. 

The council is continually 
looking to improve the way in 
which it consults on draft 
proposals and specific 
suggestions for doing this will 
be considered. 

General support for the County Council's 

proactive approach to ensure DtC requirements 

are met in the preparation of the plan in 

accordance with the NPPG. 

Biffa Acknowledgement of support. No actions arising. 

Concerns regarding the encroachment of 

residential and associated development 

proposed within the Reigate & Banstead 

Development Management Policies document 

this is currently undergoing consultation. 

Biffa Surrey County Council recognises this concern. Policy 7 
safeguards existing and allocated waste sites. 

Implementation of Policy 7 

The proposed strategy in Reigate and Banstead's 

Development Management Policies document 

undermines the policies set out within the plan.  

Biffa Surrey County Council recognises this concern. The County 
Council has engaged consistently with Reigate and 
Banstead BC on this issue and will continue to do so. 

Ongoing discussion between 
Reigate and Banstead BC’s 
emerging Development 
Management Plan. Check 
Development Management 
Policies to ensure no 
conflicts/contradictions 
between policies. 

P
age 196



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 133 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

The Council should also have due consideration 

of the draft London plan that is currently 

undergoing public consultation. Part of waste 

management strategy set out within the 

consultation document is a drive towards 100% 

net self-sufficiency. It seeks to achieve this in part 

by a significant reduction in the amount of waste 

exported outside of London for treatment. 

Currently, London achieves circa 60% net self-

sufficiency, which has been the case for a 

number of years. Nonetheless, to achieve net 

self-sufficiency a significant amount of waste 

would continue to be exported outside of London 

for treatment. 

Biffa This comment is acknowledged. The DtC report documents 
discussions held with GLA and London Boroughs through 
SEWPAG and the London Waste planning Forum. SEWPAG 
responded to the Draft London Plan. The plan specifically 
recognises that waste from London will need to be managed 
within Surrey. 

No action arising 

The draft London plan requires Borough Councils 

to engage with Authorities outside of London, 

where waste is proposed to be exported for 

disposal and/or treatment. It is not clear whether 

such discussions have taken place, however this 

strategy clearly has implications for the delivery 

of the London Plan given that landfill capacity in 

surrounding regions is declining rapidly. There is 

therefore an obligation for Surrey to engage with 

the Mayor's Office as early as possible to ensure 

that the policies proposed in the plan will not be 

undermined by the strategy within the draft 

London Plan. 

Biffa This comment is acknowledged.  The DtC report documents 
discussions held with GLA and London Boroughs through 
SEWPAG and the London Waste planning Forum. SEWPAG 
responded to the Draft London Plan. The plan specifically 
recognises that waste from London will need to be managed 
within Surrey. 

Ongoing dialogue with 
Borough Councils within 
London. 

There is no evidence of Surrey County Council's 

willingness to engage with other authorities on a 

one to one or group basis. 

Resident Surrey County Council is willing to carry out meetings to 
discuss other authorities’ comments on the documents. 
Amongst other things the council is an active member of 
SEWPAG. See the Scoping Statement "Actions and 
outcomes under the Duty to Cooperate" for evidence of past 
meetings with authorities to discuss the plan. This document 
is a 'living document' and will be updated as new discussions 
take place. 

Continue to update this table 
to ensure evidence is provided 
to show the county council's 
willingness to engage with 
other authorities. Be willing 
and open to accept meetings 
with authorities who wish to 
discuss the plan in further 
detail. Continue membership 
of SEWPAG. 

The DtC and update statement was considered 

to lack environmental strategy. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged. The DtC report addresses 
the Duty rather than an 'environmental strategy'. 

No action arising 

Acknowledgement of the amount of work that has 

gone into this. 

Resident Surrey County Council recognises this comment.  No actions arising. 

Acknowledgement that Runnymede is listed as a Runnymede Borough Council Surrey County Council recognises this comment.  No actions arising. 

P
age 197



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 134 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

'Relevant Authority' in Appendix 1. 

The Council acknowledge that waste is a 

strategic matter which is relevant to the 

requirement of the Duty to Cooperate and the 

Council are committed to working with the Waste 

Authority to explore the points raised further 

should you need. 

Tandridge District Council Surrey County Council acknowledge this comment. Continue engagement with 
TDC in developing the plan. 

The Council is keen to be kept up to date on the 

consideration of Lambs Business Park and look 

forward to an ongoing dialogue. 

Tandridge District Council Surrey County Council acknowledges that Tandridge District 
Council is keen to keep engaging over the consideration of 
Lambs Business Park. 

Continue to communicate and 
cooperate with Tandridge 
District Council on the Waste 
plan development especially 
around the consideration of 
Lambs Business Park. 

Grateful for the arrangement for officers from our 

two council's to meet to go through these 

comments, and other representations received to 

this Regulation 18 Consultation and, in particular, 

to look at opportunities for the joint working, 

under the Duty to Cooperate, which we would 

commend. 

Reigate & Banstead Borough Council Surrey County Council recognises this comment on recent 
discussions that have been held between the county council 
and the Borough Council. 

Continue engagement in 
developing the plan. 

The Council welcomes the opportunity to discuss 

in more detail the issues and practical matters 

referred to in their response. 

Spelthorne Borough Council Surrey County Council acknowledges this offer for future 
discussion with Spelthorne Borough Council. 

Set up a meeting with the 
Borough Council to discuss in 
more detail the issues and 
practical matters they raised in 
connection to the plan. 

Very poor consultation. Resident The county council made a significant efforts to publicise the 
consultation and received a large number of comments. 

Surrey County Council to re-
evaluate the consultation 
process and make 
improvements before the next 
round of consultations. 

Respondent felt as if the council was trying to 

stop people having their say, impossible to state 

their views/feelings. 

Resident Surrey County Council acknowledges this concern and can 
reassure that respondents’ views on the plan are extremely 
valued and important. This was made clear in the 
consultation documentation. 

No action arising 

Stated that the documents were too long to read. Resident Surrey County Council note this comment. However, the 
documentation needs to meet requirements set out in 
planning law, policy and guidance and is necessarily detailed 
and in some cases complex. A non-technical summary of the 
plan was made available. 

Surrey County Council will 
look to develop executive 
summaries or non-technical 
summaries for documents 
which are currently long and 
complex. This will hopefully 
ensure everyone is able to 
understand and read the 
documents without difficulty. 

Interested to know whether there is future 

capacity in Surrey landfills for C, D & E waste 

South West London Plan This question is acknowledged and a response will be 
considered. 

No arising actions. 

P
age 198



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 135 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

from outside of Surrey or whether it is planned 

that the Surrey landfill capacity will be solely met 

with arisings from within Surrey. 

Stated that the plan should be taken account of 

what neighbouring Authorities are considering for 

their own areas. 

Resident This comment is acknowledged and values the importance of 
taking into account the development in neighbouring 
authorities.  This is dealt with through the DtC process and 
report. 

 Surrey County Council will 
also continue to meet and 
cooperate with neighbouring 
authorities to discuss the plan 
and other development taking 
place in surrounding areas 
which may need to be 
considered. 

Network Rail and TfL are jointly developing 

Crossrail 2, the aim of which is to provide 

additional rail capacity in south west to north east 

corridor London. A triangle of land between 

Upper Halliford station and Charlton Lane has 

been identified as one of the stabling site 

locations and is required to operate Crossrail 2. 

 

We understand there is an existing permission to 

extend the existing strategic waste facility at this 

location and this is being implemented. Whilst the 

current Issues and Options document does not 

set out any specific proposals, any further 

explanation of this facility beyond the existing 

permission, could impact of the proposed sidings 

and potentially impact on the ability to deliver the 

railway. It will therefore be necessary for any 

further expansion of the waste facility on this site 

(should it be proposed) to avoid the land required 

to facilitate Crossrail 2. 

 

Crossrail 2 is committed to working with local 

authorities to develop our proposals and would 

be pleased to provide further advice in relation to 

the development of the plan. 

TfL This comment is acknowledged.  Surrey County Council will 
continue to cooperate with 
Transport for London and will 
keep them up to date with the 
progress of the plan.  

Respondent stated that the very nature of the 

method for this consultation shows how flawed 

the consultation areas are, being asked to 

comment on areas without having any local 

knowledge. 

Resident Surrey County Council note this comment. The County 
Council wish for the consultation process to be as effective 
as possible, and will be reviewing the success of the 
Regulation 18 consultation based on feedback received.  

Review and make necessary 
changes to the consultation 
process to improve the 
method for the next round of 
consultations. 

It is sometimes argued that where more specific Reigate & Banstead Borough Council This comment is acknowledged.  Proximity to sensitive 
receptors is a factor in the Site Identification and Evaluation 

Arrange a meeting with 
Reigate and Banstead 

P
age 199



A p p e n d i x  1 0  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  D u t y  t o  C o o p e r a t e  | 136 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments 
Raised by 
 

Authorities’ Response Any action arising  

legislation exists e.g. Environmental Health 

legislation that this is a sufficient safeguard to the 

achievement of sustainable spatial planning for 

waste management and this obviates the need to 

consider such matters at the planning policy 

stage. It would be helpful to recognise where 

other legislation has to deal with situations where 

decisions have already been taken on land use 

allocation but if factored in at an earlier stage a 

different spatial provision would have been 

optimal. So for example looking at air quality and 

noise issues relating to lorry movements and air 

quality issues relating to emissions and impacts 

on surrounding residential and institutional uses 

e.g. hospitals, decisions on locating new waste 

treatment and management facilities should 

factor in such considerations at the outset to 

ensure that the optimum locations are selected at 

the planning policy stage and not left to consider 

after allocations are made. 

 

The Borough Council would wish to receive 

reassurance on this from the County Council and 

to ensure that decisions over waste management 

allocations are sufficiently informed through joint 

and multidisciplinary working between the two 

authorities, reflecting their different statutory 

remits. 

process. Assessment work (including Air Quality Impact 
assessment, Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment and 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment) is being undertaken to 
better understand the possible implications of locating 
different waste facility types at each site. The results of this 
will be incorporated into the site development criteria. 

Borough Council to discuss 
this point in further detail to 
provide them with 
reassurance. Acknowledge 
role of other pollution control 
agencies in the plan. 

 
  

P
age 200



A p p e n d i x  1 1  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  o t h e r  B a c k g r o u n d  d o c u m e n t s  | 137 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

 

Appendix 11 – Comments on other Background documents 

 

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

Abbreviations List An abbreviations list would have been useful. According to 

“Draft Waste Local Plan” (p. 20), “other” includes recycling 

and metal/ELV, where ELV means End of Life Vehicle 

Claygate Parish Council Noted The Submission plan document will 
include a list of abbreviations. 

Annex 1 Shortlisted Sites Site description for Lyne Lane STW is inaccurate. 

Runnymede Borough Council believe it should read: "The site 

is an undeveloped piece of land comprised of scrub and poor 

quality grassland that was previously used as a composting 

facility. The site is located to the north west of Chertsey and 

Addlestone, to the south east of Virginia Water and the south 

of Thorpe. The site is bounded to the south by a rail line, with 

agricultural land beyond, to the west by the M3 motorway, to 

the east by Chertsey STW and recycling centre, and to the 

north by the intersection of the two motorways." 

Runnymede Borough Council Noted The site description has been 
reviewed and will be amended in the 
light of these comments. 

Annex 1 Shortlisted Sites Land adjacent to Trumps Farm is in close proximity to the 

Council's proposed residential led allocations at Virginia 

Waste South and the Longcross Garden Village. Lack of 

information has been provided on the proposed uses making 

it difficult to comment whether there would be an adverse 

impact on these allocations. The Council would wish to 

ensure that there would be no conflict between the two 

emerging local plan allocations and the use of RU02C. 

Runnymede Borough Council Noted. The county 

council is currently 

undertaking 

assessment work to 

understand the 

potential impact of 

different types of 

waste related 

development. These 

assessments will 

consider the in-

combination impact of 

development from 

other plans to ensure 

that there is no 

conflict or 

unacceptable 

cumulative impact 

from development. 

Annex 1 Development criteria for 
sites to be updated to reflect any key 
information identified by the 
assessment work. 

Draft Waste Local Plan  “Draft Waste Local Plan” (p. 17) uses categories including Claygate Parish Council Noted.  This will be clarified in the 
Submission plan. 

P
age 201



A p p e n d i x  1 1  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  o t h e r  B a c k g r o u n d  d o c u m e n t s  | 138 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

“waste from households”, which “refers to all waste collected 

by Surrey CC and the 11 districts and boroughs”, but says 

that approximately 86% of waste from households is 

“household waste”. The other 14% apparently includes “street 

cleaning, parks and grounds, business and construction”. Of 

these, the last two seem to overlap with “commercial and 

industrial” and “C, D & E”. This section surely needs 

clarification. 

Non-Technical Summary Doesn’t include policies  Resident  Noted. The Non-Technical Summary of the 
SWLP will be amended to include the 
policies. 

Non-Technical Summary 

 

Concern that the non-tech summary p.8 shows that it is 

assumed that Surrey will produce essentially the same 

amount of waste in 2033 as now - which is a questionable 

assumption 

 

Claygate Parish Council 

 

The Non-Technical 

Summary states that; 

overall, the amount of 

waste produced in 

Surrey is expected to 

rise from 3,517.018 

tonnes per year in 

2018, to, 3,830,000 

tonnes per year in 

2033. All assumptions 

are questionable but 

this is considered to 

be the best estimate 

of what might happen 

in future - this is 

explained in the 

Waste Needs 

Assessment.  

 

No action arising. 

Waste Management Facilities Insufficient attention is given in this document to the potential 

contribution of anaerobic digestion (AD) which should be 

seen as a priority waste management facility with its 

scalability, focus on removing biodegradable waste and 

potential to harness energy.  

Guildford Residents Association Noted. No action arising. 

Waste Management Facilities Energy from waste includes AD.   Either “energy from waste” 

(EfW) should be sub-divided into biological and incineration, 

or EfW should be renamed as”incineration and other thermal 

processes”.  

Guildford Residents Association Noted. No action arising. 

Waste Management Facilities The potential contribution of pre-treated, stabilised landfill Guildford Residents Association Noted. No action arising. 

P
age 202



A p p e n d i x  1 1  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  o t h e r  B a c k g r o u n d  d o c u m e n t s  | 139 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

should also be included as a management option with a 

potential part to play. If material is stable, landfill of some 

material can be a good option as part of an overall strategy 

that recovers value first.  The waste hierarchy and directive 

are primarily intended to recover value and remove unstable, 

polluting material from landfill rather than to stop all landfill.  

In some cases, a volume of material to landfill may be a 

better option than a smaller volume of hazardous material to 

landfill that has been though a thermal process.  c10% of 

municipal waste to landfill can be a good option if overall 

more treatment is higher up the hierarchy than energy 

recovery.   

Waste Management Facilities The explanations given in this Note are inaccurate and 

inadequate to allow officers and councillors to make 

considered decisions on the type and placement of future 

infrastructure. EfW is a generic term used to describe 

anaerobic digestion as well the various forms of incineration 

(mass-burn, gasification, pyrolysis).  

References to discussion and controversy, should be 

included especially when these point towards a very finite 

future indeed for some of the technologies being suggested. 

Resident  Noted. The 

information in this 

report is derived from 

reputable sources. 

The report is intended 

to be an informative 

and objective 

document informing 

interested parties 

about different types 

of waste management 

facility, and the county 

council consider that it 

delivers this aim. 

No action arising. 

Waste Needs Assessment Several respondents raised detailed comments on the WNA. 

Amongst these were: 

- Concerns regarding recycling targets; 

- Consideration of the impact of other development on 

waste needs; and, 

- How the capacity gap is calculated for each waste 

stream. 

Grundons, Residents, CPRE 

Surrey. Hampshire CC, Guildford 

Residents Association. 

All concerns have 

been logged and 

noted and will be 

addressed during the 

next stage of the plan, 

when the WNA will be 

refreshed to 

incorporate the most 

recent data. 

Refresh WNA and incorporate any 
necessary changes highlighted as 
part of this consultation. 

Waste Needs Assessment Safeguarded sites on the Hampshire/Surrey border: 

- Rushmoor HWRC/Transfer Site, Eelmoor Road, 

Farnborough 

- Lynchford Lane WTS, Farnborough 

- Aldershot Garrison STW 

- Hollybush Lane, Aldershot 

Hampshire County Council This comment is 

acknowledged. 

No actions arising. 

P
age 203



A p p e n d i x  1 1  –  C o m m e n t s  o n  o t h e r  B a c k g r o u n d  d o c u m e n t s  | 140 

 

S u r r e y  C o u n t y  C o u n c i l  R e g u l a t i o n  1 8  C o n s u l t a t i o n  I n t e r i m  S u m m a r y  R e p o r t  

Theme Summary of Comments Raised by Response Any action arising  

- Unit 3 & 4 Stubs Industrial Estate 

- Universal Car Spares 

- Chambers Waste Management 

- 1A Hollybush Industrial Park 

- Ivy Road HWRC, Aldershot 

 

Reports from the WDI (2016) show that Surrey exported 

50,865 tonnes of inert waste to three of Hampshire's 

safeguarded sites that are adjacent to the Surrey border; 1A 

Hollybush Industrial Park, Hollybush Lane Waste Transfer 

Station & Recycling Facility and Lynchford Lane Materials 

Recycling Facility. I am not aware of any reason why any of 

these site would not continue to operate in the future and 

should not have particular planning issues continuing to 

receive Surrey's waste. 

 P
age 204



Environment and Infrastructure 

Select Committee 

10 May 2018 
Capital Investment and the role of 

volunteer and parish council input in maintaining 

public rights of way 

 
Purpose of report: For Discussion  

 

Introduction: 

 

1. Surrey’s public rights of way network comprises around 3,400km of 
publicly maintainable highway. The County Council’s 
responsibilities include legal definition and changes to the path 
network, maintenance and enforcement. In recent years the total 
budget from the County Council for this work has been reduced by 
around 50% as a result of the funding pressures, against a 
background of increasing public demand for access to the 
countryside. 
 

2. This report aims to outline some of the significant issues facing the 
County Council in respect of public rights of way at the present 
time including capital investment and the role of volunteers and 
parish councils in helping to maintain the network. 

 

 

Financial and resource background 

 

3. For 2017/18 the public rights of way revenue budget was £628,000 
and the capital budget was £175,000. This is approximately 50% 
less than the total available budget 10 years ago. Increasing 
contractor and material costs over the same period has effectively 
reduced the resource further. 
 

4. Demand from the public appears to be increasing with an average 
of 100 new reports being received by the team each week and a 
total of over 3,000 live issues/reports being in the system at any 
one time.  

 

5. Annual capital funding of £175,000 currently provides replacement 
bridges and larger surface repair works, where paths would 
otherwise have to be closed on safety grounds. 

 

6. Following an assessment of priorities across E&I management of 
all public rights of way bridges has been transferred to the 
Countryside Access Team. Approximately 30 bridges were 
replaced each year in previous years, but current capital funding 
allows for around 10- 15 bridges to be replaced each year. The 
effect of this reduction will be an increasing amount of paths closed 

Page 205

Item 10/18



due to dangerous bridges, a reduction in the overall condition of 
the asset and an increasing maintenance backlog. 

 

7. A priority statement for both Legal Definition and Maintenance and 
Enforcement is used to support staff on dealing with significant 
workloads and to target resources at high priorities such as public 
safety and significant financial or legal risks. These are attached as 
annex A. 

 

 

Volunteer and parish council input 

 

8. The Countryside Access Team currently supports a large and 
diverse volunteer work programme, with groups and individuals 
undertaking a wide range of tasks, such as: vegetation clearance, 
repairs to stiles/gates and path surfaces, bridge repairs and path 
condition surveys. Groups from the Surrey Ramblers and other 
interest groups, special needs groups and parish councils 
undertake tasks supervised by the Countryside Access Team. A 
Volunteer Path Warden scheme has been running successfully for 
around 4 years, with individual volunteers being trained and 
equipped with tools to undertake smaller maintenance tasks under 
their own supervision. 

 

9. To expand the volunteer programme is likely to require resources 
such as tools, materials and staff supervision, as well as an 
increasing pool of willing volunteers. 

 

10. The Countryside Access Team have recently invested in an 
interactive web form that allows work to be allocated out from the 
council’s internal database to trained volunteers and for them to 
‘accept’ or ‘reject’ tasks if they choose. The system will be rolled 
out over 2018/19 and it is hoped that this will allow more, smaller 
scale tasks to be completed by volunteers without significant extra 
resource required from SCC. 

 
11. The new system will also allow parish councils to view all 

outstanding issues/reports in their areas, so that local funding can 
be targeted towards this work, if available and considered a local 
priority.  

 

External Funding: 

 

12. The Countryside Access Team has managed in recent years to 
attract funding for specific projects and in 2017/18 £415,900 was 
spent in Elmbridge and Redhill with additional smaller sums 
equalling over £10,000 on local access work and a further £4,000 
spent by the Ramblers on gates.  The latter is part of their ongoing 
programme to replace stiles with gates on the network. In addition 
£20,000 was received from the North Downs Way Officer for work 
on the paths that form the North Downs Way National Trail. 

Page 206



 
13. These are relatively small sums but show the scope to potential 

attract more, The sources included CIL (Community Infrastructure 
Levy) Parish Councils, District and Borough Councils and larger 
scale transport infrastructure projects. Member involvement and 
support for local CIL funded schemes is important to raise the 
profile and potential of projects of the public rights of way network.  

 
14. It should be recognised that there is an increasing backlog of 

statutory rights of way work that the Council is simply unable to 
complete given the current level of resources. The estimated cost 
of the current backlog of maintenance tasks is around £3,600,000. 
The team have set out priority statements to ensure the public are 
aware of what can be done, timescales and the order of that work. 
These will need to be reviewed annually in line with budgetary 
changes. 

 
15. Working within the priority statements means many lower priority 

issues/reports will remain unresolved for significant lengths of time. 
 
16. The team continue to seek efficiency improvements in all aspects 

of the teams work, such as the new web form for volunteers and 
will seek additional funding sources where available. 
 

17. In addition the Strategy for the Countryside Estate, will set out the 
direction the overall service is going in to achieve financial self-
sufficiency. 

 

Recommendations: 

 

18. The Committee are asked to note the report and input ideas on 
how the service and members can encourage and facilitate closer 
working with Parish Councils and local volunteer groups to support 
local input and increase funding. 

 

Next steps: 

 

 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

Report contact: Steve Mitchell, Countryside Access and Operations 

Manager, Place Development Service. 

 

Contact details: 020 8541 7040  steve.mitchell@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

Sources/background papers: N/A 

  

Page 207



Annex A 
 

 GUIDANCE ON HOW SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL  
ASSESSES PRIORITIES FOR DEALING WITH 
MAINTENANCE AND  
ENFORCEMENT PROBLEMS ON THE RIGHTS OF 
WAY NETWORK  
There are over 3500 km of public rights of way in Surrey which we 
divide into 4 areas, each with a countryside access officer. Due to the 
number of reports we receive it is essential for operational reasons 
that that we deal with certain issues first.  
All maintenance and enforcement problems reported to Surrey 
County Council or  
identified through inspections will be allotted a priority when they 
enter our on line system. We will consider the following factors when 
allocating a priority to a report:  
• Level of danger to the public.  
• Degree of hazard, obstruction, encroachment or inconvenience.  
• Level of use, or likely use, of the path and the type of path (eg 
strategically  
important, route to schools, stations, town or village centre etc, SCC 
promoted route or National Trail).  
• Inclusion as part of the County Council’s promoted route network or 
National Trail.  
• Volume of complaints received from different sources.  
• Likely duration of problem.  
• Cause of problem and whether it is within the County Council’s 
powers to  
rectify.  
This list is in no order of importance, nor weighting given to any 
factor.  
Priorities will be assigned with consideration to the effect upon all 
public users of the  
rights of way network. Normally the order of priorities for dealing with 
problems  
will be as follows.  

Priority 1  
Accident/incident where serious injury has occurred.  

public.  

retaining wall, dam, large void in surface of path etc).  
 

Priority 2  
with no alternative route.  

-compliance that would lead to an irredeemable 
loss of path.  

blic.  

Page 208



use on strategic routes (not already included in the annual vegetation 
cutting list programme).  
 
Problems that would normally be allocated either a priority 3 or 
4, if on a strategically important route will move up a priority 
number.  
 

Priority 3  
-County Council structure i.e stile or gate.  

Electric fencing without crossing aid.  

 

Temporary or significant obstruction with no alternative route.  

 

Obstructing crops or ploughing which affect the use of the path.  

already included in annual vegetation cutting programme).  

maintained).  

 

 

fence/structure compromising public access  
 

Priority 4  
Misleading Notice (other than those in Priority 3 above)  

Non-County Council structure making access inconvenient (eg 

high or ageing stile)  

 

Surface vegetation/conditions spoiling enjoyment of path (not on 

annual vegetation cutting programme  

heavy vegetation  

 

drails/steps/boardwalks/etc.  

affect the use of the path.  
 

Priority 5  
Boundary or private access issues that do not affect the public 

users of a path  

De minimus obstruction/encroachment  

 

Pro-active and Cyclical Work  
Certain matters will be dealt with pro-actively or cyclically outside the 
above priority  

Page 209



Guidelines. These include:  
Roadside sign replacement, waymarking and non roadside 

signposting (mainly during winter)  

Annual vegetation cutting programme (spring/autumn)  

 

Page 210


	Agenda
	2/18 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 28 FEBRUARY 2018
	Minutes
	34 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
	35 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE SELECT COMMITTEE
	37 PAY AND CONSERVE - CAR PARK CHARGING ON THE COUNTRYSIDE ESTATE
	Proposed Tariffs for Car Park Charging
	Revised Annexe for Select Cttee 29 November 2017


	6/18 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	E&I- Forward Work Programme March 2018
	E&I SC- Reccs Tracker March 2018

	7/18 UPDATES FROM MEMBER REFERENCE GROUPS AND TASK GROUPS
	8/18 TACKLING SINGLE USE PLASTICS
	9/18 REVIEW OF THE SURREY WASTE PLAN: CONSULTATION ON DRAFT PLAN
	2018-04-25 Reg 18 Consultation Interim Summary Report FINAL

	10/18 CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND THE ROLE OF VOLUNTEER AND PARISH COUNCIL INPUT IN MAINTAINING PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY

